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Based in Hong Kong, PYI Corporation Limited focuses on ports and
infrastructure development and investment, and the operation of
ports and logistics facilities, in the Yangtze River region of China.
It also engages in land and property development and investment
in association with ports and infrastructure development. In
addition, PYI provides comprehensive engineering and property-
related services through Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited.
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

2017 2016
Revenue (HK$m) WA(BEBT)
The Group PN S 554 488
Share of associates and joint ventures BIhEE N NEEDE 3,847 5,303
Gross profit (HK$m) EF(EEBT) 172 152
Earnings (loss) before interest expense and tax KA B EFRATER (EIE)
(HK$m) (B&BT) 41 (399)
Earnings (loss) before interest expense, Rt FBERAEZ WE - -HEK
tax, depreciation and amortisation B AT (FE8) ([EBITDA]
("EBITDA" or “LBITDA") (HK$m) st [LBITDA]) (B & & T) 97 (308)
Loss attributable to shareholders (HK$m) IREREEEE(EEBT) (34) (298)
Shares in issue (m) BETRO (BER) 4,587 4,577
Net asset value' per share (HK$) BREEFE (Bx) 0.87 0.94
Loss per share (HK$) FlEE(ET) (0.007) (0.065)
Dividend per share (HK$) gRRKREET) — —
Total assets (HK$m) BEERAEBT) 7,782 8,426
Quick assets? (HK$m) RYPEE(BEE L) 923 1,175
Net current assets (HK$m) mBEEFE(BEEBIT) 792 1,056
Net debt® (HK$m) FAaE(BEET) 1,193 1,241
Shareholders’ funds' (HK$m) REES (AEBIT) 4,009 4,300
Capital employed* (HK$m) EBRE2(BEET) 4,550 5,047
Current ratio® TR B b S 1.49 1.62
Quick ratio® R RS 0.57 0.69
Net debt/equity ratio’ FAEE BN R 0.30 0.29
Gearing ratio® BARA G X 0.47 0.49
Return on equity® % 4 U 5 ° -0.8% -6.9%
Return on capital employed'® EHAERHE 2.0% -5.8%
Total shareholder return'! e e -8% 13%
1 The amount for each of net asset value or shareholders’ funds is equivalent to the amount of equity attributable to owners of PYI
EEFEIRREES 2 SHESENREEGARGREZZ &R

2 Quick assets represent current assets less inventories, stock of properties and current portion of prepaid lease payments
RYEEERPDEERTFE VEFERANEERBAZRSHS

3 Net debt represents bank borrowings less cash, bank balances and deposits
FEBEERITEFAERES RTEFREXR

4 Capital employed represents the sum of shareholders’ funds and non-current borrowings. Non-current borrowings of HK$541 million as at 31 March

2017 (2016: HK$747 million) are the sum of non-current portion of (i) bank and other borrowings and (ii) amounts due to non-controlling interests which

are interest bearing

EHAELEBRRES RIERBER LM - R2017F3A3NAZERBDEFRB5.41EE (2016 - 747FB L) BORTT R H A 15 5KA

T (i) S 5 B0 JB AN SR 42 BRCHE 25 SROR 2 SR B B 0 2 AN

5 Current ratio measures the ratio of current assets to current liabilities

MBLEFERPEEARBABOLEX

6 Quick ratio measures the ratio of quick assets to current liabilities

SUEEES SUREEVEURY DR

7 Net debt/equity ratio measures the ratio of net debt to shareholders’ funds

FAB/ AR EHEFABEARRESH L X

8 Gearing ratio measures the ratio of total borrowings to shareholders’ funds

EAABLRABEREREARRESNLLE

Return on equity measures the net profit or loss attributable to shareholders as a percentage of shareholders’ funds
BRiEKTEREEGEFEFNNEEBERFTESNT O

Return on capital employed measures the EBITDA or LBITDA as a percentage of the average capital employed over the year

EEAES KR 2EBMDAKBITDAGFAEBH A E S FHENE S L

Total shareholder return represents change in share price (ex dividend) over each financial year plus dividend paid during that year. The figure of —-8% for
2017 is the percentage change from closing share price of HK$0.180 at 31 March 2016 to HK$0.165 at 31 March 2017.
BEBRFIERE(REIREVREENEIMENEZIHORE - 2017 2 HF-8% A H2016F3 A31H Z R {H T E0.180/& T &=
201743 A31H 201658 L E D LLEH o
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Financial Highlights
MBRE

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN
% SRAB LK 2

Year-on-Year %

REBNML
HK$ 1.0 7 300
BT
08 r 1250
Y P Mw_
0.6 200
1150
04
1 100
-18% -3% -4% 2% 13% -8% - 50
FY F/E 12 13 14 15 16 17
== Share price (cum dividend)* == Share price (ex dividend) Il Total shareholder retumn
fe(E (GBS~ BB (B8 PR ER 48k zs

*  Share price (cum dividend) represents the aggregate of share price (ex dividend) and cumulative dividends paid from the date of listing of PYI
shares in Hong Kong on 21 September 1993
* REEEIREREGRE)REBRERMERE LM 2B (1993F9A21 B) BATRN Z 25t RE 2 &M

NET ASSET VALUE SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
PER SHARE BRRES BRERN(BE)
BREEFRE
HKS HK$m 4,923 HKe
e 12 VR gi 5,000 4,841 4,844 e Z B

0 0ot o 4,000 .

08 5000 ) 19 19

06 0

o 2,000 5 (0.7)

02 1,000 “

)

FY FY FY 6.5)
FE © T 14 15 16 17 FE 0 g 8 13 14 15 16 17
PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE DIVIDEND PER SHARE RETURN ON EQUITY
TO SHAREHOLDERS BRERE fR R W 22
Fi% 3R FE 4k 3% A (&5 18)
HKS$m HKe %
ag 40 il 8 ot ©
B 30| 262 . 6| 5.4%

200 4

100 86 86 2 2 1.7% 1.8%

0

100 (34)

-200

-300 298)
FY FY FY -6.9%
g 0 5 4 5 e 17 g w2 % s w15 16 17

5



I'-YIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2017 Annual Report

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRES

With its port network along the Yangtze
River, PYI has been well positioned to capitalise

on the new opportunities under the One Belt

One Road Strategy.

BEERIRBNBOHEE RECSHEFER
£ %] BERTEROHTEE -




Chairman’s Statement

ITRE|ES

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present the annual results of PYl Corporation
Limited (“PYI"” or the “Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017. The Group
recorded a consolidated revenue of about HK$554 million (2016:
HK$488 million), representing an increase of 14% from that of
the preceding year. Net loss for the year attributable to the
owners of PYl was about HK$34 million (2016: HK$298 million),
and basic loss per share was HK0.7 cent (2016: HK6.5 cents).
Shareholders’ funds decreased by 7% to about HK$4,009
million (2016: HK$4,300 million), representing net asset value
per share of HK$0.87 (2016: HK$0.94).

The board of directors of PYI (the “Board”) has resolved not to
recommend payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2017 (2016: Nil).

During the year under review, PYI achieved satisfactory progress
in implementing its Yangtze Strategy. The Group’s network of
cargo ports was strengthened and generating synergy value. A
detailed review of the Group’s operations this year is set out in
the Business Review section.

In June 2017, World Bank forecasted that global economic
growth would strengthen to 2.7% for 2017. The GDP growth
of China of 6.7% for 2016 has improved to 6.9% for the first
quarter of 2017. Despite the loosened fiscal and monetary
policies, the overall economic environment was still challenging.
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Chairman’s Statement

ITRBES

With its port network along the Yangtze River, PYI has been
well positioned to capitalise on the new opportunities under the
One Belt One Road Strategy which emphasizes on global
connectivity and economic growth in the region that we operate
in. However, in view of the national policy on the development
plan of Yangtze River Economic Belt (published in September
2016) and the consequential implementation measures,
promoting, among others, the more efficient utilisation of port
assets in Yangtze River region by way of consolidation of
ownership and operations, it is time for PYI to review our
options on how to cope with this new national policy. The
Group is also considering options to further improve financial
liquidity and to support future growth. Looking forward, PY! will
continue with the ports operations and resort development as
well as exploring for alternative business opportunities.

PYI continues to pursue effective internal control measures and
endeavours to enhance the quality of our overall corporate
governance measures. We maintained transparent
communications with investors and stakeholders, persisted to
pursue consistent and effective internal control and audit
programs, and offered relevant trainings across our offices in
the Mainland.

PYI demonstrated a strong commitment to corporate social
responsibility addressing on education and youth development
by sponsoring educational exchange program for students
coming from Nantong for eleven years. During the year, PYI also
donated, together with Paul Y. Engineering, HK$1 million to
Friends of Hope Education Fund to support their educational
works in the Mainland and Hong Kong. For the ninth
consecutive years , we were awarded with the title of “Caring
Company” by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service in
recognition to our corporate citizenship and our ongoing effort
in caring the community.

BEARIIRENE DMK RED MITFERE
PREI—F—BIRETF RS  ZHE
BRI 28 = 8 A BB BB A R I
KeB2E EE2016FIABRERENDENCR
IR ETERASEEIREEZERETRRED
MEASREIRSEOMEERGEERINEE
ERAABEOERZER RERRRBEESRE
CHEE NEHERMIMEE SEITEE
BEBERBNE - FINEMBRBERZFR
RIER - REARR - RELEE S DOEZ MK
FEXEZENRR UESHEMNELKKS -

REBEFTERZABERER XBNIER
PERZOEERKF BRMABEEREER
FOEAFREAENEBE FEER —HX
BROAMES REFREF YEEARQARIRE
HAEAZEI -

REBNBTLEMLGET LEHEEHRFR
FOFER BRNEPEAENELETEN
RREBHET —F-FRN REBRRERE
ARBREREBELTHREZRHUEES MU
XFAMRBEENBEER SES N THIL
REFHEE—DN SFEREEHEEFN
FREFEHERBBEEREIBRARBEIR
WHRE FETREEERECEARNMLSE
BEEMBEETRTENRHES -



Chairman’s Statement

ITRE|ES

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices and
corporate social responsibilities are included in the Corporate
Governance Report and Business Review.

I wish to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to
my fellow Board members for their valuable guidance and
monitoring to the Group. On behalf of the Board, | would like
to express our appreciation to the Group's staff for their
dedication and contribution that gives impetus to the
development of the Group. | would also like to send our
gratitude to our shareholders, clients and partners for their
continuous support and confidence to the Group. | wish them
all prosperity and continued success in the coming year.

Yours faithfully,

Tom Lau
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017
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Business Review
PYI will stay in line with China’s national policy and general development
directions on implementation of our Yangtze Strategy.

REEENERH TR T HER
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Business Review

REER

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

Ports and Logistics

The ports and logistics business of PYI delivered stable
performance during the year, which most of our ports recorded
a satisfactory increase in both cargo throughput and container
throughput. Nonetheless, PYI takes heed of the challenging
economic landscape ahead through enhancement of operational
efficiency measures.

Nantong Port Group (45% owned)

Nantong Port Group contributed about HK$62 million (2016:
HK$99 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year.
The decrease in contribution was caused by the decline in iron
ore handling fee due to increasing market competition and the
absence of one-off subsidy recorded in last year.

Nantong Port is a China’s category-one national port opened to
foreign trade and an important hub port of the country. As a
major river port in the Yangtze Delta Region, Nantong Port
provides easy access to the Yangtze region by road and
waterway and is an ideal hub port for cargo trans-shipment in
the Yangtze Delta Region. Nantong Port Group owns a shoreline
of 4.2 km and a land mass of 1.6 sgq km with 4 major terminals
namely Tongzhou Terminal, Jianghai Terminal, Langshan
Terminal and Container Terminal, and they together operate 24
berths. The main cargoes handled by Nantong Port Group are
iron ore, minerals, cement, steel, coal, fertilizers, grains and
edible oil.

Annual cargo throughput of Nantong Port Group in 2016
increased by 1% to about 66.5 million tonnes (2015: 66.1
million tonnes), while the container throughput in 2016

increased by 3% to 574,000 TEUs (2015: 558,000 TEUs).

EEOBREKRRE
BORYAR

FRA-REBOARVMAEBIFLERERR X
ZHREOZENEHERERERTEENRE
MBI @E WU - RERT D EATRHKB
MOEEREYEEBERENZERE ZHEE
fEH Y -

HEEBOEE (5545%#5)

FAN -EREOSEERAD I & %5 & Bt
#476,2008 7 7T (2016 : 9,900 8 % 7T) - & B &
Lo TERTEHREMBESEHBEAEERER
DU RTERREFHREZ — R BT -

HBEER —EARBMRBEIENBRR—EORF -
WTRBERN-—EEEZNERE - (EAR=ZAME
—EAEZ RIS - FRBIEEE EARERRK
FENRIRE YERR=ZAMER— @2
BHNEYFBEE0 EREODEERBREER
FA2DNE (hi16FARE  UWHAEEEH
SE - BD@INGE - TIEE  RILABREEBTEE -
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FTEFHBA TR KRR WM Ex -
BERL - B I iE o o
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Business Review

ERER

In response to the new national policy on the development plan
of Yangtze River Economic Belt (published in September 2016)
and the consequential measures implemented by the provincial
and local government, promoting, among others, the more
efficient utilisation of port assets in Yangtze River region by way
of consolidation of ownership and operations, the Group has
been engaging in ongoing negotiation on the possible
divestment of our equity interest in Nantong Port Group.

Yichang Port Group (51% owned)

Yichang Port Group contributed about HK$37 million (2016:
HK$17 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year.
During the year, it achieved growth in both revenue and gross
profit as being benefited from the increased coal throughput, as
well as the increased container traffic in Yunchi terminal phase
one which commenced commercial operation in May 2016.

Yichang Port is situated on the Yangtze River near the Three
Gorges Dam in Yichang, Hubei Province. Yichang Port Group is
principally engaged in transport logistics and minor properties
investments, providing transportation, cargo loading and
discharging, storage, as well as container services in its
62.4%-owned Yunchi terminals, shipping agent, cargo agent,
port logistics and port equipment rental services and
commodities trading in Yichang Port.

Annual cargo throughput of Yichang Port Group for the year
ended 31 March 2017 increased by 15% to about 8.4 million
tonnes (2016: 7.3 million tonnes). Its annual container
throughput increased by 26% to 167,000 TEUs (2016: 133,000
TEUs).

Jiangyin Sunan Container Terminal (40% owned)
Jiangyin Sunan continued to provide a satisfactory contribution
of about HK$10 million (2016: HK$8 million) to the segment’s
operating profit for the year.

Jiangyin Sunan is situated at New Harbour District of New
Harbour City in Jiangyin City and occupies a land area of 0.49
sg km, shorelines of 589 m long at outer port and 1,090 m long
at inner port with 11 berths. It is principally engaged in
containers loading and discharging as well as the storage,
maintenance, washing and leasing of containers.

Annual container throughput of Jiangyin Sunan in 2016
increased by 4% to 476,000 TEUs (2015: 457,000 TEUs).
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Business Review

ERER

Jiaxing International Feeder Port (90% owned)

Jiaxing International Feeder Port contributed about HK$12
million (2016: HK$7 million) to the segment’s operating profit
for the year. Although container throughput of the port was
affected by keen competition from nearby container feeder
ports, it strives to attain a higher profit margin through high
yield product mix.

Jiaxing International Feeder Port is situated at Nanhu District of
Jiaxing City and occupies a shoreline of 570 m and a land mass
of 326,000 sg m. The port has 10 berths which are principally
engaged in loading, discharging and storage of containers. The
port also features a range of integrated logistics supporting
services such as examination, quarantine, storage and
information services, etc.

Annual container throughput of Jiaxing International Feeder
Port for the year ended 31 March 2017 decreased by 11% to
about 164,000 TEUs (2016: 184,000 TEUs).

LPG, CNG and Logistics (100% owned)

The LPG and CNG distribution and logistics businesses of
Minsheng Gas achieved a breakeven segment result (2016:
operating loss of about HK$35 million) during the year.
Although Minsheng Gas reduced its sales price of both LPG and
CNG in order to maintain its market share, it succeeded to
control its gas procurement cost so as to attain a steady gross
margin. Consequently, its LPG and CNG retail and distribution
business is generating satisfactory operating profit as well as
operating cash inflow to Minsheng Gas. Despite its logistics
business is not profitable which affected the overall operating
result, Minsheng Gas is committed to strengthen its profitability
and sale performance through enhancement of logistics
measures and capturing new market opportunities from nation-
wide promotion of eco-friendly fuels.

55 5 ] B PR 7% 5B (15590 % 1 22 )

FR BERNTEBIEEAEAD L2 KEEHEF
B B #71,2008 78 7t (2016 : 7008 B 7T ) » # A
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RERR BEZ ERREREERBEEEHEY
M BRI o
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Business Review

ERER

Minsheng Gas owns and operates the largest LPG storage-tank
farm and a river terminal in mid-stream Yangtze, and has nine
LPG and five CNG fueling stations in Wuhan City. Through its
mature wholesale and distribution network, it has captured a
substantial share of the Wuhan LPG market for automotive
consumption. The increase of CNG in the product mix by
Minsheng Gas this year has delivered a more stable profit
margin and CNG shall continue to be a key contributor to the
result of Minsheng Gas.

Ports Development

Yangkou Port (9.9% owned)

The Group’s 9.9% equity interest in Yangkou Port Co did not
contribute dividend income to the segment’s operating profit
for the year (2016: Nil).

Yangkou Port is an offshore type deep-sea harbour along the
South East Coast of Jiangsu Province, which declared soft open
in October 2008. Strategically located near the mouth of the
Yangtze River, Yangkou Port is ideally situated to become one
of China’s largest trans-shipment hubs for dry and liquid bulk
cargoes.

PYI continues to enjoy the future growth of Yangkou Port
through the 9.9% equity interest, which is intended to be held
for long-term investment purpose and is classified as an
investment in equity instrument. As at 31 March 2017, the
investment in Yangkou Port Co was stated at fair value of about
HK$359 million (2016: HK$422 million).

Engineering Business

Paul Y. Engineering (48.2% owned)

Paul Y. Engineering contributed about HK$29 million (2016:
HK$27 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year
ended 31 March 2017. Despite the drop in revenue from
contract work, it maintained stable profitability through effective
control of its operating costs.
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Business Review

ERER

During the year, Paul Y. Engineering recorded a revenue of
about HK$6,954 million (2016: HK$9,960 million) and secured
new contracts of about HK$9,657 million (2016: HK$4,891
million) in aggregate value. As at 31 March 2017, the total value
of contracts on hand of Paul Y. Engineering was about
HK$27,227 million (2016: HK$23,521 million) and the value of
work remaining was about HK$11,424 million (2016: HK$7,589
million). Paul Y. Engineering will persist in strengthening its
business by exploring partnerships with clients and actively
introducing new technologies and techniques.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, Paul Y. Engineering is dedicated
to providing full-fledged engineering and property services, with
operations in Hong Kong, the Mainland, Macau, Singapore and
Malaysia. For 70 years, Paul Y. Engineering has been at the
heart of some of the most challenging and impactful
construction projects that have shaped the iconic skylines of
Hong Kong and many other cities. Its projects include
commercial and residential buildings, institutional facilities,
highways, railways, tunnels, port works, water and sewage
treatment facilities etc.

Property

The property business recorded an operating loss of about
HK$10 million (2016: HK$409 million) for the year. The
operating loss was mainly attributable to the net development
expenses for resort projects at Xiao Yangkou of about HK$8
million (2016: HK$14 million) incurred and the drop in sale of
properties during the year. The significant drop in operating loss
during the year was attributable to (a) the absence of a provision
made for certain stock of properties situated at Xiao Yangkou in
view of postponement in their property development and sale
plan of about HK$214 million made in last year; and (b) the net
gain on fair value changes of investment properties of about
HK$2 million (2016: net loss of about HK$170 million) was
recorded.
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The Group has 11.5 sg km land bank situated at Xiao Yangkou,
which is under development as a regional tourism site of
national standard with hotspring and recreational facilities. As
at 31 March 2017, about 6.88 sq km (2016: 6.88 sg km) out of
the 11.5 sq km land bank had reached the developing stage or
the developed and serviced stage. The development status of
the 11.5 sq km land bank was summarised as follows:

Area (sq km) Stage of development
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Classification

HE(EFAFLAE) BHERR 28

0.88 Developed land Investment properties
[EACEE: b KEME

2.00 Land under development Investment properties
[k st KEME

2.1 Developed land Stock of properties
[EACEE: gt MEEE

1.89 Land under development Stock of properties
[k st MEEE

4.62 Pending development Project under development
Sk ZRPIER

11.50

The investment properties of about 2.88 sq km are measured at
fair value of about HK$844 million (2016: HK$890 million). A
net loss on revaluation of about HK$3 million (2016: HK$154
million) was recognised in the consolidated income statement
for the year.

As at 31 March 2017, certain stock of properties amounting to
about HK$559 million (2016: HK$600 million) was stated at net
realisable value. In last year, a provision for stock of properties
of about HK$214 million was recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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As at 31 March 2017, a gross floor area of about 6,000 sq m of
“Nantong International Trade Center”, a commercial and office
development in the central business district of Nantong City,
had been rented out for hotel operation and were classified as
investment properties. The investment properties did not record
fair value change for the year (2016: loss of about HK$19
million). The Group also holds a gross floor area of about
14,000 sq m of “Nantong International Trade Center” for sale.
The building contributed rental income of about HK$7 million
(2016: HK$8 million) to the Group during the year.

In the main urban district of Yichang City along Yangtze River,
the Group holds certain commercial, residential and industrial
properties with gross floor area of about 119,000 sq m (inclusive
of commercial shops of about 5,000 sq m) through Yichang
Port Group for rental and were classified as investment
properties as at 31 March 2017. The investment properties
recorded a gain on revaluation of about HK$5 million (2016:
HK$3 million) and contributed rental income of about HK$7
million (2016: HK$7 million) to the Group during the year.

In the Hangzhou Hi-Tech Industry Development Zone of
Bingjiang, Hangzhou City, the Group holds jointly with Paul Y.
Engineering through joint ventures for an office building known
as "Pioneer Technology Building”, which has a gross floor area
of about 20,000 sg m. The building generated rental income of
about HK$12 million (2016: HK$12 million) during the year and
its occupancy reached about 96% as at 31 March 2017.

Treasury

The treasury investments contributed about HK$20 million (2016:
HK$24 million) to the Group’s operating profit for the year.
During the year, listed securities held for trading recorded a fair
value gain of about HK$6 million (2016: loss of about HK$5
million) and generated dividend income of about HK$2 million
(2016: HK$3 million). The high-yield loans and Renminbi bank
deposits in Hong Kong generated interest income of about
HK$12 million (2016: HK$26 million).
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As at 31 March 2017, (a) total value of the Group’s portfolio of
listed securities held for trading amounted to about HK$52
million (2016: HK$59 million), equivalent to about 0.7% (2016:
0.7%) of the Group's total assets; and (b) portfolio of high-yield
loans receivable amounted to about HK$62 million (2016:
HK$56 million), equivalent to about 0.8% (2016: 0.7%) of the
Group's total assets.

It is our intention to review and reposition the operations of this
business segment with a view to expand our treasury investment
and securities trading activities as well as exploring for
opportunities to diversify into provision of financial services in
order to enhance the overall return in this area.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group did not have material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 12 May 2017, a total of 915,470,000 new shares of the
Company have been placed by a placing agent to not less than
six independent placees at the price of HK$0.156 per share
raising a net amount of about HK$139 million.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Review of Financial Performance

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue of about HK$554 million (2016: HK$488
million), representing an increase of about 14% from last year.
The growth in consolidated revenue was mainly attributed to
higher contribution from ports and logistics business segment.
After taking into account the share of revenue of associates and
joint ventures, the revenue was about HK$4,401 million (2016:
HK$5,791 million), representing a decrease of 24% from last
year which was mainly affected by the drop in revenue from
contract work of Paul Y. Engineering.

The Group's gross profit increased by 13% from last year to
about HK$172 million (2016: HK$152 million), which
represented a gross margin of 31% (2016: 31%) of the
consolidated revenue. As benefited from the increased coal
throughput and the commencement of commercial operation of
Yichang Port Group’s Yunchi terminal phase one during the
year, the revenue of ports and logistics business segment was
escalated and resulted in an overall improvement in gross profit
of the Group.

The Group's distribution and selling expenses decreased by 44%
to about HK$50 million (2016: HK$89 million). The considerable
reduction in distribution costs was mainly attributable to (a) an
one-off write-down in value of LPG assets of about HK$37
million that was incurred solely in last year for the upgrade of
LPG distribution facilities and (b) implementation of effective
cost control measures during the year.
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During the year, the Group recorded a loss before taxation of
about HK$23 million (2016: HK$474 million), which was
composed of:

(i)  net gain of about HK$29 million (2016: HK$27 million) in
Paul Y. Engineering Group mainly engaged in
management contracting and property development
management businesses;

(i) net gain of about HK$121 million (2016: HK$96 million) in
ports and logistics business;

(i) net loss of about HK$10 million (2016: HK$409 million) in
property business;

(iv) net gain of about HK$20 million (2016: HK$24 million) in
treasury business;

(v) net corporate and other expenses of about HK$120 million
(2016: HK$137 million), which included acquisition-related
costs of about HK$21 million (2016: HK$32 million) and
net exchange loss of about HK$28 million (2016: HK$33
million); and

(vi) finance costs of about HK$63 million (2016: HK$75
million).

Net loss for the year attributable to the owners of PYl was about
HK$34 million (2016: HK$298 million) and basic loss per share
was HKOQ.7 cent (2016: HK6.5 cents). The net loss was mainly
attributable to an exchange loss arising from Renminbi
denominated monetary assets for the year of about HK$28
million (2016: HK$33 million). The decrease in net loss was
mainly due to the absence of (a) a provision made for certain
stock of properties under development and (b) net fair value loss
of certain investment properties recorded in last year.
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Review of Financial Position

When compared with the Group'’s financial position as at 31
March 2017, total assets decreased by 8% to about HK$7,782
million (2016: HK$8,426 million) as being affected by the
aforesaid Renminbi depreciation. As at 31 March 2017, net
current assets amounted to about HK$792 million (2016:
HK$1,056 million), whereas current ratio deriving from the ratio
of current assets to current liabilities decreased to 1.49 times
(2016: 1.62 times). After taking into account (a) the net loss of
about HK$34 million; (b) the decrease in carrying amount of
equity investments not held for trading of about HK$62 million
recognised in investment revaluation reserve; (c) the Renminbi
exchange deficit arising from translation of foreign operations
of about HK$197 million; and (d) the proceeds from exercise of
share options of about HK$2 million, equity attributable to
owners of PYl was decreased by 7% to about HK$4,009 million
(2016: HK$4,300 million), representing HK$0.87 (2016:
HK$0.94) per share as at 31 March 2017.

Net cash inflow from operating activities was about HK$6
million (2016: outflow of about HK$92 million) and that from
investing activities was about HK$143 million (2016: HK$256
million). Net cash outflow from financing activities was about
HK$252 million (2016: HK$183 million), resulting in a net
decrease in available cash and cash equivalents of about
HK$103 million (2016: HK$19 million) during the year.

A summary of financial key performance indicators of the Group
is set out in the section of “Financial Highlights” on pages 4 and
5 of this annual report.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had total assets of HK$7,782
million (2016: HK$8,426 million) which were financed by
shareholders’ funds and credit facilities. A variety of credit
facilities were maintained to meet its working capital
requirements and committed capital expenditure, which bore
interest at market rates and had contracted terms of repayment
ranging from on demand to ten years. The Group mainly
generated revenue and incurred costs in Hong Kong dollar and
Renminbi. During the year, no financial instruments had been
used for hedging purpose and no foreign currency net
investments are hedged by currency borrowings or other
hedging instruments. The Group adopts a prudent funding and
treasury policy and manages the fluctuation exposures of
exchange rate and interest rate on specific transactions.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group's total borrowings amounted
to about HK$ 1,866 million (2016: HK$2,110 million) with about
HK$1,325 million (2016: HK$1,363 million) repayable on
demand or within one year and about HK$541 million (2016:
HK$747 million) repayable after one year, which comprised (a)
bank and other borrowings; and (b) amounts due to non-
controlling interests and associates that were interest bearing.
Borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollar of about HK$702
million (2016: HK$935 million) bore interest at floating rate and
about HK$1 million (2016: Nil) bore interest at fixed rate.
Borrowings denominated in Renminbi of about HK$597 million
(2016: HK$705 million) bore interest at floating rate and about
HK$566 million (2016: HK$470 million) bore interest at fixed
rate. The Group's gearing ratio was 0.47 (2016: 0.49), which
was calculated based on the total borrowings of about
HK$1,866 million (2016: HK$2,110 million) and the Group's
shareholders’ funds of about HK$4,009 million (2016:
HK$4,300 million).
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Cash, bank balances and deposits of the Group as at 31 March
2017 amounted to about HK$500 million (2016: HK$761
million), of which about HK$311 million (2016: HK$468 million)
was denominated in Renminbi, about HK$186 million (2016:
HK$293 million) was denominated in Hong Kong dollar and
about HK$3 million (2016: HK$0.2 million) was denominated in
other currencies. The balance of about HK$0.1 million had been
pledged to banks to secure general credit facilities granted to
the Group (2016: HK$152 million, which included about RMB89
million (equivalent to about HK$107 million) deposited in Hong
Kong to secure banking facilities denominated in Hong Kong
dollar and available in Hong Kong). As at 31 March 2017, the
Group had a net debt position (being bank borrowings net of
cash, bank balances and deposits) of about HK$1,193 million
(2016: HK$ 1,241 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had no contingent liability (2016:
Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2017, certain property interests, property, plant
and equipment and bank balances of the Group with an
aggregate value of about HK$924 million (2016: HK$988
million), as well as the Company'’s investments in certain
subsidiaries of about HK$445 million (2016: HK$445 million)
were pledged to banks and financial institutions to secure
general credit facilities granted to the Group.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had expenditure contracted
for but not provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of acquisition of certain property, plant and
equipment and properties interests in a total amount of about
HK$11 million (2016: HK$9 million).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND COMPLIANCE
MATTERS

Environmental Policies and Performance

We aim to operate our business with good environmental
protection practices which comply with applicable laws,
regulations and standards and we endeavour to:

v Apply practices which minimise, lessen or remediate the
impact of our activities on the environment including
potential air and greenhouse gas emissions, wastewater
discharges, land contamination as well as generation of
wastes;

v' Use raw materials, energy and natural resources as
efficiently as possible and strive to improve that efficiency;
and

v' Adopt measures to mitigate the negative effects of
environmental incidents.

The aforesaid principles are enshrined in our Environmental,
Social and Governance Policy adopted in June 2014. PYl is
committed to managing all business operations with sensitivity
to environmental protection. We will review our environmental
protection practices from time to time and will continue to apply
eco-friendly measures and practices in our operation.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers and Other Stakeholders

PYI has committed to responsible practices by adopting three
guiding core values: Genuine; Exceptional; and Involved as
expressed in our Code of Conduct. Operating with integrity,
being ethical and treating others with respect; creating
exceptional experiences that delight our stakeholders; and
inclusive, open and actively engaging our stakeholders and
serving communities. In essence, we adhere to integrity, respect,
responsibility, competence and safety in carrying out our
business. The following principles, which are enshrined in our
Environmental, Social and Governance Policy and Code of
Conduct, are being adopted:
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Employees

v' Providing a healthy and safe working environment;

v' Adopting and maintaining a positive safety culture and
behaviour;

v" Instituting occupational and community health/hygiene
programmes with an aim to eliminate or mitigate safety,
occupational and community health and hygiene hazards;

v' Offering suitable training and development opportunities;

v" Providing equal opportunity throughout the Group and
treating employees fairly; and

v" Providing fair remuneration.

Customers and Suppliers

v

Providing efficient and courteous services with good value

of money to customers;

Offering products and services with high standard of
safety, quality and reliability and accepting the social
responsibility for improvement;

Promoting fair and open competition for procurement
procedures through providing an environment of mutual
trust and impartiality to suppliers and contractors; and

Prohibiting bribery and corrupt practices and promoting
responsible and ethical business practices.

Information about the major customers, the credit terms of

customers and the Group’s management on new customers and

credit monitoring are set out in notes 7, 29 and 42(b) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively in this annual
report.
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Business Review

EHRER

Community Involvement and Other Stakeholders

v" Building and maintaining good relationships with the
communities and other stakeholders associated with our
operations;

v' Working with local authorities, governments, inter-
governmental and non-governmental bodies and other
relevant stakeholders to develop projects that benefit the
communities connected to our operations in a sustainable
manner;

v' Minimising the negative impacts of our operations on the
communities where we operate;

v" Investing in charitable and educational contribution;

v' Supporting the community as a whole, especially those
communities in which our offices are based; and

v' Supporting and encouraging our employees for their
charitable and community involvements.

Further discussion on PYI’s environmental policies and
performance and the account of key relationships of PYI with its
stakeholders are contained in a separate report “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report”(“ESG Report”), which can be
found in PYI's official website.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

The responsibilities of the Corporate Governance and
Compliance Committee (a board committee of PYI) include
general oversight of PYI's compliance with the legal and
regulatory requirements of its business operations. Significant
non-compliance with laws and regulations, if any, will be
investigated by the Corporate Governance and Compliance
Committee and escalated to the board as necessary. During the
year under review, no material non-compliance of the laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group was
noted.
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ERER

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is affected by a number of risk factors, some of
which are likely to affect the performance of businesses
generally. Some risks are particular to the Group's operations.

As stated in the Risk Management Framework of the Corporate
Governance Report, key risks facing the Group have been
identified, assessed and prioritised according to the likelihood of
their occurrence and the significance of their impact on the
business of the Group. Moreover, risk management measures
are in place to manage the risks to an acceptable level. This
section sets out a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, based on our risks assessment
outcome. They are categorised under “Strategic Risks”,
“Qperational Risks” and “Financial Risks” and are not set out in
priority order.

Risk categories Risk description

[ B2 38 5l 8| B 4 3k

TERBRFAHBARE

AEEZIFZRBREAZRNOTZE  Hh — L/
LRFETELENRE - BLRR RS
AEENEBERE -

MEEEERREAZARERERELME
A AEEEHANEFEEENETERR I
ERHNENBREREUAKREXTONZEDN
BREMEL SR AT SIE R R E 2N
BEREABRERFENRINBENRN - KD MH
ZAGEEEHNEERR N TARREZZ il
DREHRMACETHORRTERSERMNH
BezFRRNMTHARREEA D ARERR -
BERBEVBRAR WERFREZD

Risk change

during the

reporting
period*

[ B R 3R &
iR -

Key mitigating measures

TEEBER

Strategic Risks
KR

Concentrated investment
in Mainland China
KREGEEF KA ER M

PYI's key operation and assets are
conducted and located in China.
Accordingly, the investment,
business performance, financial
position and future prospects of
PYl may be adversely affected by
unfavourable changes in the
political, social, economic or tax
policies of the Chinese
government.
RENFLEBRFEZEEDR
PRl Hut REMNKRE L&
KR - B ARR A R 2R AT = 0] A2
SERFEMBOR TE - KB
T 75 SR 1) U T =2 B A ) &2
o .

»  Establish mechanism to
closely monitor any changes
in the political, social,
economic or tax policies of
the Chinese government.

> BT ) B Rl R B
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Risk categories

[ B 28 5l

Risk description
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Risk change
during the
reporting
period*

[ B R 3R
B

Key mitigating measures

TERBER

Operational Risks
EER R

Environmental, health
and safety laws and
regulations

RE RBERT2ZEEER

As a substantial part of PYI's
operations are in China and are
related to ports development and
logistics businesses, we are subject
to various inspections,
examinations, inquiries and audits
by relevant PRC regulatory
authorities in accordance with
applicable PRC environmental,
health and safety (“EHS") laws and
regulations, in which the outcomes
form part of the conditions for
obtaining, maintaining or renewing
various licenses, certificates and
permits required for conducting
our businesses. As the PRC EHS
laws and regulations continue to
evolve, such changes may bring
additional compliance challenges
and costs to PYI's businesses.
REXRIFONEBHERBEM
BREOZEREMRER B M
AERBERANERE BENMZ2
(TERSI)E @ EREX TR A K
B Al ERNER ERE
T OREIETRERMOES
IR ERER BEMFIH
BB DRI - BEE R BEHS)A
BERNTEER ZEEET
e RREEBENEBLTREIN
ORI = - 1 5 N

4

©

>  Group legal team has been
working closely with
operation units to assess the
impact of those promulgated
environmental, health and
safety laws and regulations.

> EENZEERELEAR
RIEEEE  FIEDB|MER
R BEEREEEREERD
TE -

> Policies to minimise the
impacts from operations
have been formulated and
updated regularly by
reference to the aforesaid
laws and regulations.

> HIEARREE LR A R
ERR BN RE LA E
EIRETEHER -

For more discussion, please see the PYI's
“2017 ESG Report” available on PYI's
website at www.pyicorp.com.
EEZNRBFL2RARREZCERH
(www.pyicorp.com) AR ZE #) [ 2017 3R 3% ~
HERERRE] -
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Risk change

during the

reporting
Risk categories Risk description period* Key mitigating measures

[ B R 3R
2 B 38 B R B 8 3t AN TEEMBE
Environmental/safety Environmental or other accidents »  Appropriate operational
incidents happen at or around the operating (—) procedures and controls are
RBig Z2EHY site may cause losses on corporate put in place and all relevant

assets, employees’ morale,
customers’ confidence and
goodwill and may incur extra costs
to the Group.
RENAEMELHESHNMONSE
WA ENEEENEE - BT
TR -BFPELNEEMNEL-
NRSAREBBHREINIKA -

employees are provided with
relevant information, training
and supervision to reduce
and manage those incidents.

> HlETEEMBRERRERE
HERAEE RFAEMEBE T
RETHEBEN  FIME
EABERADMERELEIR
THEo

»  Reporting systems have been
developed and all our
operating units are required
to report promptly of any
significant incidents.

> BRUERBER AELED
BB E 7 BN B |AE A B KIR
B/ RR2E -

For more discussion, please see the PYI's “2017
ESG Report” available on PYI's website at
WWW.pyicorp.com.

BT RBELERREZLERY
(www.pyicorp.com) A R 2E 89 [ 2017 38 3% ~
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Risk categories

[ B 28 5l

Risk description

2| B 4 3k
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Risk change
during the
reporting
period*

[ B R 3R

Key mitigating measures

HRAanR#: TEEREBKE

Pricing of goods

E i E#%

PYlis exposed to the risks
associated with pricing of goods
resulting from factors beyond PYI's
control, such as market fluctuation
and price control prescribed by
governing authorities. For example,
PYI's LPG and CNG retail
businesses are subject to a certain
degree of price control and
competition which limits PYI's
pricing flexibility.
RESE Y FEE T EH8
EMESEEmEBEMRENR
B MR RZREE R
EHMER flmn: RENKRL
AHRARBEERARTEEBH
RET-ERENEBRES KR
FMERE TREETEHENE
EME o

>
©

Set up pricing system to
analyze product/service prices
and their costs.
BUTERR DWMERS
PRGBS R E AR ©

To explore the advantages of
our products/services and
target customers, optimize
their own resource allocation.
RRER/RENEZEMA
BxFP BEtBHEREK
=,
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Risk change
during the
reporting
Risk categories Risk description period* Key mitigating measures
[ B A 3R 5
2 B 3 B [ B 4 MR Res TEEMER
Financial Risks
B 7% 2 B
Change of foreign As a substantial part of PYI's assets > Establish mechanism for
exchange rates and businesses are located and (—) regularly reviews of the
EEEZ{E conducted in China, the balances of assets and

fluctuation in the exchange rates
of RMB may adversely affect (i) the
value of PYI's investments and
monetary assets denominated in
RMB when they are converted into
Hong Kong dollar, and (ii) the
repayment of RMB loans with
funds denominated in currencies
other than RMB.
RENAKBHEEHEPEH - X
BORBLIMRFEET AR
HHE X )R B AT B & HARE()IA
ARBHAEBENRAEAMREBEAEHE
BAETHRINAFARBEESE
MTAREFTENERKEETAH

By 488
mE e

* e where risk remained broadly the same.

liabilities and the currencies
in which the transactions are
denominated so as to
minimise exposure to foreign
currency risk.

> BEUTHRSBEERAES
MM ZEREE R -
BREBERDAEY 2 IMNE
[ Bz o

For more discussion, please see note 42b(a)(ii)
to the consolidated financial statements” on
page 215 of this annual report.
EZAmAELERNFERERENE2158
Z 7 A W R R I R 42b(a)i) ©

* e R 15 A BUR R o

ETUBRRMTPEARZ IR AFEREF
Certain financial risks and uncertainties are also set out in notes 4, GREBHRERNM T4 SF428R ©

5 and 42 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.
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EER

MR LAU TOM KO YUEN
gEREE

Chairman and Managing Director

FEFEH

Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen, aged 66, is the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company. He is also a member
of the Company’s Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Share Repurchase Committee, and a
director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr Lau has
over 40 years of international corporate development
and management experience in infrastructure
developments as well as construction and engineering
services involving road, rail, port, power,
telecommunications, mining and resources sectors in the
Asia Pacific Region. He joined the Company as an
executive director in 1993 and was appointed as the
Deputy Chairman in 1995. Mr Lau was also appointed as
the Managing Director of the Company in 2005 and has
been responsible for the Group’s corporate development
strategy, and overall performance. He had been
re-designated from Deputy Chairman to Chairman since
26 September 2011. Mr Lau is also the deputy chairman
and an executive director of The 13 Holdings Limited
(0577.HK) and the deputy chairman and a non-executive
director of Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited
(0310.HK).
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Board of Directors

EER

MR SUE KA LOK
BRELE

Executive Director
HITEE

Mr Sue Ka Lok, aged 52, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in April 2017. He is also a
member of the Company’s Nomination Committee. Mr
Sue has extensive experience in corporate management,
finance, accounting and company secretarial practice. He
holds a Bachelor of Economics Degree from The
University of Sydney in Australia and a Master of Science
in Finance Degree from the City University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Sue is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a certified practising
accountant of the CPA Australia and a fellow of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and
the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.

Mr Sue is an executive director of PT International
Development Corporation Limited (formerly known as
ITC Corporation Limited) (0372.HK) (a substantial
shareholder of the Company as disclosed in the section
headed “Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders/Other Persons” in the Directors’ Report).
Mr. Sue is also an executive director and the chairman of
Courage Marine Group Limited (“Courage Marine”)
(1145.HK), an executive director and the chief executive
officer of EPI (Holdings) Limited (0689.HK), an executive
director of China Strategic Holdings Limited (0235.HK)
and a non-executive director of Birmingham Sports
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Birmingham
International Holdings Limited) (“Birmingham Sports”)
(2309.HK) and Tianli Holdings Group Limited (“Tianli
Holdings”) (0117.HK). The shares of Courage Marine are
also listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited.

BRYEAEGRFS2R) N2017F4AEZ T AEAR A
HITES MNARAFIRBEEERKE -HEER
TEETE UK @ RARNEELS T BAGEE
KR -MmBARMNERERABLBEZ2EL BN REBW
MAESHEEEBELIEN -HREEABTBSHAR
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BERAR(BAMEDMSHOZ A ITESERTRF
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MR SUE KA LOK (CONTINUED)
R X 8¢ 08 £ ()

Executive Director
HITEE

Mr. Sue was an executive director of Birmingham Sports
and Tianli Holdings until 1 May 2017 and 8 November
2016 when he was redesignated as a non-executive
director. He was an executive director and the chief
executive officer of Enviro Energy International Holdings
Limited (1102.HK) until 7 October 2015; and an
executive director of BEP International Holdings Limited
(2326.HK) until 13 July 2015. Mr. Sue was also the
chairman and a non-executive director of Winshine
Science Company Limited (formerly known as China
Tycoon Beverage Holdings Limited) (0209.HK) until 4
November 2014 and 27 November 2014 respectively; an
executive director and the chairman of Hailiang
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Sunlink International Holdings Limited) (2336.HK) until 3
June 2014 and an executive director and the chief
executive officer of CMBC Capital Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Poly Capital Holdings Limited)
(1141.HK) until 31 October 2014.

nnt) REEEAHRARF 2017 Fif

HRELEETHABEERRAMNERZATES EE
201795818 K206 11 A8H A 1t W AT & Ik
BITEF - MY TEREBHBEERERAF(1102.HK) 2
RITESHRITHREH  HEE2015F10A78 81L&
BEFEERBERATQEHNZHITESE & E
2015F7A 13 AL - BHRALEEERERNEZFR QT
(AP EXTFHRMIERERAQT)(0209.HK) 2 £ F &
EHITEE HHEZE2014F11 A48 K2014%E11 A
7R AL BREBRER AR A A (51 8RR B 2
BERAR)2336H) ZHITEEREF - HEE2014
FeA3R AL UEKRIBEXRZRER A A (FIER
BEAREBFRAER AR (MMM H)ZHITE S RITHA
HEZE2014F10A318 AL -

35



36

I'-YI:) PYI Corporation Limited 2017 Annual Report
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EER

MS WU YAN YEE
Ll ke

Executive Director

HITEE

Ms Wu Yan Yee, aged 26, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company in May 2017. She
holds a Bachelor of Business Administration in
Accounting and Finance Degree from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Ms. Wu is a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and holds the Chartered Financial Analyst
designation. She had worked for an international
accounting firm and a reputable asset management
company and has experience in auditing, accounting,
direct investment and asset management.

Rz (GRF265%) R2017F5 R EZEAARF
HITESE W EFBEIABZEHRERIEE
BELEN - PLLTAEASHMASEMEMK
BAERBTVBOMAM 2 ER - g R — MBS
EHEME—HABENEEEEARMCR TAEBRE
Fhoe@F EREREREETEITEMNKLR-

MR CHAN SHU KIN
BRASER St

Independent Non-Executive Director

BUIFNTEF

Mr Chan Shu Kin, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2004. He is also the Chairman of the
Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance and
Compliance Committee and Share Repurchase
Committee. Mr Chan has over 40 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management services.
He graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is a fellow member of both the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, as
well as an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. Mr Chan is a partner
of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public
Accountants. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited

(formerly known as PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited)
(0850.HK) and Addchance Holdings Limited (3344.HK).

BRATER S 4 (3R F625%) H2004FO R EZ T AAR A
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EER

MS WONG LAI KIN, ELSA
EEBLZT

Independent Non-Executive Director
HIIFHNITEF

Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa, aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
November 2012. She is also a member of the Company’s
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate
Governance and Compliance Committee. Ms Wong
holds a Bachelor’s Degree and a Master’s Degree in Law
from The University of Hong Kong, as well as a Master’s
Degree in Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is a solicitor of the Supreme
Court of Hong Kong and the Supreme Court of England
and Wales and holds the Chartered Financial Analyst
designation. Ms Wong has over 27 years of experience
in the legal profession, with majority years working as
corporate counsel and company secretary of Hong Kong
listed companies (including the Company during the
periods from February 1995 to January 2000 and from
May 2003 to December 2007). Ms Wong is currently
employed as Vice President — Legal of Henderson (China)
Investment Company Limited. She is also an independent
non-executive director of Prosperity Investment Holdings
Limited (0310.HK).

EBBLZT(HEFS5150) R0NRFIAEZEAEEAR
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MR MOK YAT FAN, EDMOND
R—kE

Independent Non-Executive Director
HIIFHNITEF

Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond, aged 67, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company
in September 2014. He is also a member of the
Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance and
Compliance Committee. Mr Mok has over 41 years of
experience in corporate management, project
management, property development, construction
management, hotel and hospitality management and
architectural practice in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Canada. He graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with Bachelor Degrees in Arts (Architectural
Studies) and Architecture and is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Architects, a Registered Architect
and an Authorised Person (Architects List) under the
Buildings Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Mr Mok was an executive director and chief
executive officer of Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited
(formerly a subsidiary of the Company listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) under stock code 0577.HK) from
June 2006 to August 2008 and also a director of Paul Y.
Properties Group Limited (formerly listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange under stock code 0276.HK)
from September 1998 to August 1999.
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Senior Management
SREEE

MS YANG YAN

BEZE

Chief Representative — China
EIEEIESFREEAR —F

Ms Yang Yan, aged 49, joined the Group in 2003. She
is the Chief Representative of the Company in China and
is responsible for originating and monitoring the
performance of the Group's investments in the
Mainland, and holds directorship in a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms Yang has many years of
experience in corporate development and general
administration and holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration.

Bt GEF495%) R2003F MARER - BARQA
ZEBERERRRTEZERAR HEBZAEMAA
FEEASEETBEZEEREERR  UELAQF
SZEMBRAZEFTRU -BRINPERLEHR -
TREETAABZERLR IBREIRERELE
fi o

MR WONG YIU HUNG
HRIERE

Chief Financial Officer
BHEAHE

Mr Wong Yiu Hung, aged 52, joined the Group in
2004. He is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company
and is responsible for all financial management and
accounting matters of the Group. Mr Wong holds
directorship in a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
He has over 29 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management in both
international accounting firms and listed companies. Mr
Wong holds a Bachelor’s degree in Chinese Law from
Peking University. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, and a practising certified public accountant
in Hong Kong.

ERELAE(RFS2M) N2004FMAXREE  BEARQ
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Corporate Support Team

152 AR 75 8 B

LEGAL & COMPANY SECRETARIAL EZERATBME

MR SHING ON WAI
Group Legal Counsel and Company Secretary

MS MEI HONG
Legal Counsel, China

B & B £
EEFEOEFRDANE

wRLt
ERAEE— T E

FINANCE & ACCOUNTS Bt R Est
MR CHAN DIK KEUNG, WILLIAM BRINR &
Financial Controller BT 48 EL

MS LI YEE PING, SARAH /L
Treasurer Al E

MR LEUNG HO MAN REXRE
Group Chief Accountant EE @R
INVESTMENT BE

MR ZHU YONG MING KKBEXE

Investment Director, China

RERE —FH

INTERNAL CONTROL A EB BE 4
MR CHEUNG KIN CHUEN RERELE

Group Senior Manager — Internal Control &
Risk Management & Corporate Compliance

23 5 AT — N AP B R R i R R
PEAEH

INTERNAL AUDIT i
MR CHU WAI YEUNG KEBEBXE
Group Internal Audit Senior Manager £ BN B A RACE
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Operation Team

EEEX

MR WANG WEI GUO
Director and General Manager
Nantong Port Group Limited

MR CHEN FA YI
Chairman
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR WANG HONG
Director and General Manager
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR CHEN BAO XI
General Manager
Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited

MR ZHOU XIAO JUN
Director and General Manager
Jiangyin Sunan International Container Terminal Co., Ltd.

MR WANG JIN JUN
Director and General Manager
Hubei Minsheng Liquefied Petroleum Gas Limited

MR WEI WEN KUI
Director and General Manager
Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd.

MR LIU DONG
Financial Controller
Nantong Port Group Limited

MS TSANG SAU YING
Financial Controller
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR CHEN KAI
Deputy Financial Controller
Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited

MR LIYONG
Financial Controller
Hubei Minsheng Liquefied Petroleum Gas Limited

MR HUANG JIN HUA
Financial Controller
Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd.
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TERERHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

PY| Corporation Limited (“PYI"” or the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) strives to attain and uphold
high standard of corporate governance and maintain
well-established corporate governance practices for the benefit
of shareholders of PYI and other stakeholders.

In the corporate governance report published in PYI's 2016
annual report which can be viewed on PYI's website
(www.pyicorp.com), we reported that, save for the deviation
disclosed therein, PYI has applied the principles and complied
with all applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code") set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31
March 2016.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2017, PYI continued to
comply with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code
except for the following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
the chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be
separated and performed by different individuals. Following the
retirement of Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph on 16 September
2011, Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen, the Manaqging Director (equivalent
to CEQ) of PYI, has been appointed as chairman of PY]
(“Chairman”) and has performed the roles of Chairman and CEO
with effect from 26 September 2011.

The board of directors of PYI (the “Board” or the “Board of
Directors”) believes that it is appropriate and in the interests of
PYI for Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen to take up both roles at the
present stage as it helps to ensure consistent leadership within
the Group and enable more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning for the Group. The Board also believes that
the balance of power and authority for the present arrangement
will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by the current
Board which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals
with not less than half the number thereof being independent
non-executive directors.
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In addition, to demonstrate PYI's continued commitment to
high standards of corporate governance, the Board adopted a
Board Diversity Policy, a summary of which is set out at page 50
of this report, in June 2013.

PYI has also adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules applicable to PYI directors as
well as relevant employees of PYI. After having made specific
enquiries, all directors and relevant employees of PYI have
confirmed their compliance with the required standard set out
in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2017.

Since the launch of the Code of Conduct of PYI (the “Conduct
Code") in October 2009, all PYI directors, senior management
and staff have been under specific obligations to comply with
the ethics and principles under which our business is conducted
and have been allowed to report actual or potential violations of
the Conduct Code through stated procedure. Non-compliance
with the Conduct Code will result in disciplinary action. During
the year, we are not aware of any non-compliance with the
Conduct Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE TEERLEE

The structure below shows the key parties involved in our UTRBERAEE ZCEEARERLIBER
corporate governance practices and policies within the Group: SNy EEAE

SHAREHOLDERS OF PYI

RERR

Approval of key Reporting Reporting
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OTHER
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SHAREHOLDERS

Communication with Shareholders

As part of corporate governance, PYI is committed to
safeguarding shareholders’ interests. To achieve this, PYI has
established a Shareholders’” Communication Policy (which can
be viewed on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com)) setting out
various channels of communication with shareholders and
investor community for ensuring effective disclosure of the
Company'’s performance and business activities.

PYI regards its shareholders’ meetings as valuable forum for PYI
shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with the
Board face to face. All our directors and senior management
and representative from external auditor will make effort to
attend shareholders’ meetings and address queries from
shareholders. Also, simultaneous translations in English and
Cantonese are arranged during the meetings to ensure that the
shareholders understand the content of the issues discussed
during the conduct of the meetings.
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During the year ended 31 March 2017, PYI held one general REE2017F3A3NBLEFEAN REETT
meeting. Voting on resolutions put forward at the general —RBREAREG - MRAEHRBERHUREKN
meeting has been taken by way of poll and the poll results have FRRR - FIARENEREERENETER
been published and posted on the websites of PYl and Hong SGREEFMERABDIEAR S 28k
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEx"). All resolutions TH -FIERZBRRERAGLREZERHES
put to shareholders were passed at the said general meeting. BR - FIRECERENEXNBEEZERZZHL
The resolutions and the percentage of votes cast in favour of = HEWT

the resolutions are set out below:

PYI'S GENERAL MEETING HELD DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
RBE2017F3A3MBLFERTHRERRAE

Annual General Meeting on 2 September 2016 % of Votes Cast For
R2016 F9R2HBTHWRRBEFASE BEREHNE=E
vy~ Approval of the 2016 audited accounts 100%

BB2016FEMREZIRE

v Re-election of Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen as director 99.81%
ERIAEREERES

v Re-election of Mr Chan Shu Kin as director 99.88%

v’ Approval of directors’ fees in aggregate amount of not exceeding HK$4,000,000 per
annum for all directors 100%
BB TERESHEEIBBE 40000008 THEEZBEE

vy’ Re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor and authorisation to the
Board to fix their remuneration 99.93%

BEZEIRY  -HERSTEAMTALEMAERETRECENS

¥’ Grant of general and unconditional mandate to directors to issue shares 94.43%

RMTEFHTERON —RREGRFEE

¥’ Grant of general and unconditional mandate to directors to repurchase shares 99.99%

RMTEFTOBEERON —RREGRFEE

¥ Extension of the share issue mandate to directors 94.43%

BARTESFHITRND ZED
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Apart from holding shareholders’ meetings, PYI also endeavours
to maintain effective communication with all shareholders
through other channels such as the publication of annual and
interim reports, announcements, circulars as well as news
releases (all in bilingual ) so as to provide extensive information
on the Group's activities, financial position, business strategies
and developments to enable them to make informed decision
on matters relating to their investment and the exercise of their
rights as shareholders of PYI. Such information is also available
on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com) and HKEx's website.

Our website is an effective means of communication with
shareholders. Any shareholders who have questions or
comments on what we are doing are most welcome to contact
us at any time through our website. We will try our best to
answer the questions in a short time.

At pages 69 to 72 of this annual report, we have designated a
section called “PYl and Shareholders” which serves to provide
shareholders with more information such as the shareholding of
PYI and details of top shareholders as at the year end.

Shareholders’ Rights

PYI recognises the importance of ensuring that shareholders’
rights are protected. In accordance with PYI's bye-laws and the
applicable laws of Bermuda, all PYI's shareholders are entitled to
attend or be represented by proxy and vote at general meetings.
PYI's shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of PYI carrying the right of voting at general meetings
have the right to require a special general meeting to be
convened and propose transaction of business.

All PYI's shareholders have the right to propose person for
election as director of PYI. The relevant procedure for proposing
a person for election as director of PYl is set out in the Letter
from the Board in the circular for re-election of directors and in
our Shareholders Communication Policy.
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES EERREERZES

Board’s Role and Delegation EERNACREIER

The primary role of the Board is to maximize long-term EERMNITEACGEAREFNEAZEERT]
shareholder value. It assumes the responsibility for providing m BALATHBERXBEETRNEERELEAR
effective and responsible leadership and control of the RAIZEE RABTEREEARARG 2 EHH

Company, and directing and supervising the Company's affairs EREENFEEEEEZERRE -
in pursuit of the Group's strategic objectives.

EXFENEET EXREHNEREEAEER
The Board, led by the Chairman, approves and monitors REBMNEE TEAEENERE  UREER
group-wide strategies and policies, evaluates the performance EIRE o
of the Group and supervises the management.

REARE EZREBLAEEEFEERE
To enhance efficiency, the Board has delegated to the Managing HHNENDTHTEZASE -3 —FTHE &

Director the day-to-day leadership and management of the ERT  AEESHREEERATEMITHE
Group. The senior management of the Group, on the other RENEE URBETASEREEENRSE -
hand, is responsible for the management and administrative HRAREERENRECEEALEREE

functions and the day-to-day operations of the Group under the ER-BH SREEEULREMBOHENF
supervision of the Managing Director. The corporate governance AR -

structure of PYI as disclosed in this report at page 43 shows the

detailed relationship between the Board, the Managing Director LWTEEEREEEBARE -

and the senior management as well as other stakeholders.

Below is a summary of specific matters which are reserved for
the Board:

SUMMARY OF SPECIFIC MATTERS RESERVED FOR THE BOARD

EERERERNRE

¥~ Financial reporting and control
MRS RE R B

v Equity fund raising
BAREE

¥ Recommendation/declaration of dividend or other distributions
BESEMDIROER IR

v~ Notifiable and connected transactions under the Listing Rules and inside information under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance
CEMRANDPAMA AT RMMAER S R(EF RBE GO A EER

y Capital reorganisation or other significant changes in the capital structure of the Group

.....
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Board’s Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and for ensuring
that the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group is in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable standards.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company
concerning its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 91 to 99 of this annual report.

Board Composition

As at the date of the Directors’ report, there are 6 directors in
our Board consisting of 3 executive directors and 3 independent
non-executive directors. Independent non-executive directors
represented not less than half of the Board members, thus
exhibiting a strong independent element which enhanced
independent judgement. Mr Chan Shu Kin, an independent
non-executive director of the Company, has the appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EER

(as at the date of the Directors’ Report RA&EEF %5 = HH)

Independent Non-Executive Directors +
BAFHTES

Mr Chan Shu Kin #2454
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa & pEER 7+
Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & —f 4t 4=

EERUGAMBERNER

EERBEREECREAEERAVHERE
WHEREREANEBLGRE BB REFIRBLE
ZRME B LR

ARBIMNEZBMRAAREREPBHRERRER
EREHBEENER  HINRAFRENE
VEBIUZEEMBEEN -

EERAMK

REERHKEEAH E=RANNUESTHA
K BRZMNATEFRURBLIFNTE
F-BUFNTEEHEERKNE TP RF
BoMRRBAUNBIL TR LARBFILH
B - AARBUIFRITESRE R L ERB(LE
TMRADEBKRNEEEXER L SFTHMEHEN
MBERER -

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 25 R 54
(Chairman & Managing Director 3 J& # #4 #)
Mr Sue Ka Lok &K% 4
Ms Wu Yan Yee tAfR & %+
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There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among members of the
Board and senior management.

There was no change of directors and Board committee
members during the year ended 31 March 2017 except that Mr
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan was re-designated from an executive
director to a non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 22 July 2016, following cessation of his executive role as
Director of Corporate Finance of the Company. Brief
biographical details of each director (including his/her age,
gender, term of office, professional qualification and experience)
are set out on pages 33 to 37 of this annual report and also
available on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com).

PYI has also maintained on its website and HKEx's website an
updated list of its directors identifying their roles and functions
and whether they are independent non-executive directors.
Independent non-executive directors are also identified as such
in all corporate communications that disclose the names of
directors of the Company.

Each independent non-executive director is required to inform
PYI as soon as practicable if there is any change in his or her
own personal particulars that may affect his or her
independence. No such notification was received during the
year. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules, the
Company has received a written confirmation on independence
from each independent non-executive director. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

All Board members have complied with the requirement of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance regarding disclosure of their
respective interests in PYI and its associated corporations, if any,
during the year. Interests and short positions of PYI's directors in
shares, underlying shares and debentures of PYIl and its
associated corporations are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on
pages 82 and 83 of this annual report.
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Board Diversity Policy

As mentioned above, a Board Diversity Policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board was adopted in June
2013. Under the policy:

(@) the Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board level as
an essential element in achieving a sustainable and
balanced development of the Company;

(b) the Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying and selecting suitable individuals to the
Board and making recommendations to the Board on any
proposed changes to the Board; and

(c)  selection of candidates for directorship with the Company
will be based on diversity of perspectives which can be
achieved through consideration of a number of factors
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional and
industrial experience, skills, knowledge and independence (if
applicable).

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of
the policy and review the policy, where necessary, to ensure its
continued effectiveness.

Board Meetings and Process

In order to ensure that the Board plays an effective role in
steering the Group to do businesses in the interest of
shareholders, a schedule of Board and Board committees
meetings to be conducted within the next financial year are
issued well in advance to all members, thus well-facilitating
more participation by the directors in every meeting. Within the
year, 5 Board meetings were held and the overall attendance of
Board meetings attained 96% while 100% attendance was
recorded for Board committee meetings.
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The Board meets at least 4 times a year to review financial
performance, strategy and operations. Notice of not less than
14 days (or other reasonable period) will be given for each
meeting and agenda and board papers will be given 3 days (or
other reasonable period) prior to the meeting.

Senior management and professional advisers are invited to
attend Board meetings to brief the Board on issues considered
by the Board where appropriate. In the event where
independent professional advice is required, the request for
seeking such advice was abided by pre-approved procedures.

The minutes for all of the Board meetings, which were recorded
in sufficient detail, were circulated to all directors within a
reasonable time period after meetings for their comments and
were kept in the minute book for inspection by directors.

Also, each director is required to make disclosure of his/her
interests or potential conflict of interests, if any, in any proposed
transactions or issues discussed by the directors at Board
meetings. Any director shall not vote on any resolution of the
Board approving any contract or arrangement or any other
proposal in which he/she is materially interested nor shall he/she
be counted in the quorum present at the meeting.

Board Tenure

As stipulated by PYI's bye-laws, all directors (including
non-executive directors) are required to retire by rotation at
least once every three years and seek for re-election at annual
general meeting. At each annual general meeting, one-third of
the directors for the time being shall retire from office. Any new
directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board during the year by the Board following
the recommendation of the Nomination Committee are subject
to re-election by shareholders of PYI at the next following
general meeting after their appointment.

All directors (including non-executive directors) have entered
into letters of appointment with PYI for a term of three years
subject to retirement from office by rotation and re-election at
annual general meeting.
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In the 2016 AGM, Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen and Mr Chan Shu Kin,
who retired from office in accordance with the Company’s
bye-laws, were re-elected as directors of PYI.

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s bye-laws,
Mr Sue Ka Lok and Ms Wu Yan Yee will retire from office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa and Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The retiring directors, being eligible, seek for re-election and
their respective biographies are set out in the circular for
re-election of directors.

Directors’ Commitments

All directors are committed to devoting sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group. They have disclosed to PYI
the identity of public companies or organizations in which they
have held offices, and the number and nature of the offices, as
well as other significant commitments and are required to notify
PYI of any changes of such information in a timely manner.
Directors are also required to confirm details of biographies and
their time commitments to the affairs of PYI as well as the time
committed to other public companies or organizations and
other significant commitments on an annual basis.

Training and Professional Development

For all newly appointed directors, a comprehensive and tailored
induction programme is administered to ensure full awareness
of director’s duties and responsibilities under statute and
common law, the Conduct Code, the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements and the business and governance
policies of the Group.

PYI recognises the importance of continuing professional
training for directors and management and believes that it is
effective to enhance corporate governance through regular
training within the Group. Apart from reading monthly
management updates, directors are encouraged to keep up to
date on all matters relevant to the Group and attend briefings
and seminars at the expense of PYl on an ongoing and regular
basis.
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This year, our directors and management continued to keep
abreast of any updates on the governing laws and regulations
of the jurisdictions where PY| operates businesses and applicable
guidelines and rules issued by regulatory authorities and
attended seminars organised by professional bodies and/or had
been provided with materials of such seminars. Our Hangzhou
training centre is responsible for organising regular internal
training for management of the Group. In addition to regular
attendance at Board and Board committees meetings, directors
including independent non-executive directors have participated
in field trip to Xiao Yangkou in October 2016.

All directors and senior management are required to provide PYI
with their training records on an annual basis, and such records
are maintained by the Company Secretary for regular review by
the Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee. The
training records of the directors and senior management for this
year were reviewed by the Committee in June 2017.

According to the records, PYI directors received the following
training with an emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of
a director of a listed company in compliance with Code Provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code during the year:

Directors

E=s

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES

nnt) REEEAHRARF 2017 Fif

RAFE RMANESREEEEBEZIRE
EREXxB o HBE2ERERBE  UREE
MELDANBERESI KRB ZER  HEFEH
EERBEBRBCMAEG W NEREZER
ez PO mMNEINPLEEALRE
EEEELRTHAREII - KRERLEES
BREERZESEHIIN EFBREBIIFH
TEEER2016F 108 B/ NFOEMER -

FMEBEEERGREEELHESFRRERMEM
MrEIEtE MZELDBBAANWEFE "
NECEERRENZECETHEN -Z88
ER2017F6 R EHNESTRaRBEEERNASF
ERIEIE 8 -

RELE REESRAFEDERXTLEE
LT RAEZAG BERAETZEI - AT
BCRETRDZ TRANRX EA65RZHE -

Type of Training
3 51 Bl

Attending internal
Reading and external seminars

or conferences
& A 3B R Sh SR
MaERER

materials

LEE RS

Mr Chan Shu Kin BRitE2 % 4 7 v
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa BB 4+ v v
Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & —if 4t 4 v v
Non-Executive Director

FHITES

Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan B2 5 4 Y

Executive Director
HITES
Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2|5 R4
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Board Committees EERZEEY

Constantly striving to achieve greater transparency and AR REREERFSAPRERIESME

accountability to PYI shareholders, the Board has established M EEREKVABEEERZE S -

five Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the ERZEe FMWZEC REZEE 0

Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, the XERRERZESENRNMEBEEZE g

Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee, and the HEERZECSENBEREFLER

Share Repurchase Committee; each having specific roles, ETAEC EREBE TE EHINRES LG

authority and functions as detailed in the respective written (www.pyicorp.com)° FTEEEREZEEEM A S

terms of reference which are available on PYI's website KB BB IERITES -

(www.pyicorp.com) A majority of members of all Board

committees are independent non-executive directors. EERNMACLERARTENBAT  BERKE
ARVLZES(PEBYEZREZEG)EHE

The Board may also establish committees (including independent B -

board committee) on an ad hoc basis to approve projects as it

deems necessary. FEEERZESERMNAN LHEZRER

WERA - BFMLH TERETEERNE
All Board committees have adopted, to a large extent, the same TEBE ZEFTRZECR THRESHIED
principles, procedures, and arrangements as those of the Board 23 RKRIEEERETEeT ERNESTREAM
and are provided with sufficient resources to perform their PR 1 7T RE /E H FE 3y -
duties. The Board committees will make recommendations to
the Board on a regular basis unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
REBZ2017F3AMNALFEET 2R 2 HEL R

BOARD COMMITTEES
EERZERE
Corporate
Governance Share
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination and Compliance Repurchase  Shareholders
TEEARR
BEER ER B B ER R EE R=
Number of meetings held during the year
RERBTEERE 5 3 2 1 2 0 1
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFBTES
Mr Chan Shu Kin BRisE2 55 4 5/5 3/3 2/2 m”m 2/2 0/0 7
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa EREER 21 5/5 3/3 — — 212 — 11
Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & —i 54 5/5 3/3 2/2 m”m 2/2 — m”m
Non-Executive Director
FHUTES
Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan BR2EA 5 £ 4/5 — — — — — 17
Executive Director
HITES
Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 25854 5/5 3/3 2/2 m”nm 2/2 0/0 7
Company Secretary
DNAME
Mr Shing On Wai i 2Bl 5 £ 5/5 33 212 11 212 — 1”7
# Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan was re-designated from an executive director to a non-executive director with effect from 22 July 2016.

* B2016F7A22 R  MBB EAHRTESTHERFRITES - '
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The following tables show the composition of the Board AR RBRAREE2017F3 A318 IEFE 5
committees, their respective roles and functions and a summary HEERZEEeMMENK EACHEBERAT
and/or report of the works performed by them during the year ERMER I RE

ended 31 March 2017:

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
FHESE |

Composition 2 Independent Non-Executive Directors 1 Executive Director
A BYFHTES + | g5z
Mr Chan Shu Kin R ER 4 A4 (Chairman 3 /%) Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2l R 5c4E

Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & — 1 554

Role & Function* y Reviews the remuneration policy of the Company

AEBE T RS 2N 2 B B B B BOR

¥ Makes recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the remuneration of all
directors and senior management and on the establishment of formal and transparent procedures
for developing a policy on such remuneration
MAEESHESREEENTINBREAERE URAFEZEFTMBRRY —@EEHRM
BFRAENET REERELER

vy~ Determines or makes recommendations to the Board on the specific remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment
REXMEFREAMBHNATESTLSREBENREFMETE  BREEYN R  RIK
CRAINREEH(BREANERAIRIEABEIXZEMENNOERMFBEES)

¥’ Makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors

MEERERIFNITEF A

Summary of y* Recommended the aggregate amount of directors’ fees for shareholders’ approval at 2016 AGM
work performed BRESHeAE HRRE2016FRRBERG L E
IHERE

¥ Reviewed the share incentive schemes

i & A 1 B At

vy~ Considered and approved the key performance indicators of Managing Director and Senior
Management for the year ended 31 March 2016
EENAERBE2016FIANBLEFEBAREARNSREEEN T ZEMER

y* Considered and approved the grant of additional incentive bonus
ZRRIER B FEINREIEA

v~ Reviewed the remuneration packages of Managing Director and Senior Management for the year
ended 31 March 2017
B BHEEEREEENEZ2017F3A3MBEFENFTNFE

v Approved the granting of year-end bonus for 2015 to the employees and staff participated in the
variable bonus scheme
HAEmMBERBEAASNES RBIRE2015FEFREA

* Please refer to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com) for further details.

* BRI — 15 - 55085 LB R B (www.pyicorp.com) 2 $BHZ B @ g E - J
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Performance-based Remuneration Policy

Director’s fee is determined with reference to factors including
prevailing market conditions, salary paid by comparable
companies, duties and responsibilities of a director, employment
conditions elsewhere and time committed by the director
concerned.

A performance-based element was considered instrumental in
aligning the interests of individuals with those of the Group and
has been built into top-management compensation.

PYI has adopted its own reward strategy which forms an
integral part of its remuneration policy and the basis for future
awards to employees. The key aspects of such reward strategy
include:

v/ to attract and retain talents, base pay and benefits will be
market competitive;

v to support the growth strategy of the Group, short-term
and long-term performance-based rewards will be
emphasized;

v to align employee interest with shareholders, the
performance-based rewards will either be equity-based
and/or cash-based; and

V' equity-based and/or cash reward will be considered in light
of an employee’s level of responsibility and influence on
the Group's performance and share price.

PYI effectively deploys an appropriate mix of its existing equity-
based reward vehicles, including the share option scheme and
share financing plan as well as cash bonus.

Details of remuneration of directors and senior management are
set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

R0 B

EFHNeIK2ELRAZMETE  BHERT
mEER BRABMXNZHEKF EF
BmEEL R s 2 BEREALERE
ERAZER -

G 30UR 70 TT 2 15 18 A T 5 57 48 ) ) 35 0 4
ETHEEENER MERAHEHEERS
ERERE -

RECHEKMNEBIINRERE (FREFHMIK
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REEIR KRR

Vo OBRRAREBUBROR IR RE
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
REZE®
Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors 1 Executive Director
A By TS + | sess
Mr Chan Shu Kin BRI ER %2 & (Chairman % /&) Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2SR L4

Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & —1],%c 4

Role & Function* y Reviews the structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
AR educational background, ethnicity, professional and industrial experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service) of the Board at least annually and makes recommendations to the Board on any
proposed changes
ELEBERIEZTHNEE  ABRZ T (BEETRNERN  Fik  XMEERBEER &
TR BERMTEEH LR B DEARREFESH)  IHEABREEDNEZRRLES

vy’ ldentifies individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selects, or makes
recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships

NEARAERNABARETESZRARE  IKEXRNEZRRAZZBMALLAEES

¥y’ Assesses the independence of independent non-executive directors
ARBUERMTEENB M

¥* Makes recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in particular, the Chairman and
the Managing Director
REEZERENEE URBEF(LERTIFHEAR)EITENESTRRELES

y~ Develops, reviews and recommends to the Board for adoption of measurable objectives for
achieving and improving diversity on the Board
REBRBAEZESRUEZ T HF] BRI LEBAGEEETEETREERRM

¥y~ Monitors the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy (a summary of which is set out on page
50)
EREERKEZTILBR (ERMEHINES0E) HHITIER

Summary of ¥ Nominated the retiring directors for re-election by shareholders at 2016 AGM
work performed  REZRFESE2016FRFAFAEG LEEFE

IHERE
v~ Reviewed and assessed individual independent non-executive director’s annual confirmation of
independence declared pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
ERRTIZBUFNTESRBC(ETRANDE 3G R R 2 FE B M RER X
vy~ Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
RAEZRHERE - ABRAK
v Reviewed the Board Diversity Policy
BN EZRKEZ TILEE
& Please refer to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com) for further details.

* BRE— 5 85 L BRI B (www.pyicorp.com) 2 fR B E B @ AR E J
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NOMINATION PROCEDURES, PROCESS AND BEEZREF BREUKREL
CRITERIA
Nomination Nomination Committee Nomination Committee The Board makes
Committee makes identifies individuals selects or makes formal invitation to
recommendations suitably qualified to recommendations to the selected persons for
to the Board on become directors Board on the selection of appointment to
any proposed changes persons nominated for the Board
c c directorships c c

REZBEGMEM REZEGMEAH REZEgHES EERMEKEALT
RIEZEPHREER SEEBATHE MEERREHEREKE BHEZEEESW
RHE R 55 EBEATHAES TE= 5 B

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

TEERREREES

Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors Company Secretary

LR BYFHITES =+ DNANE

Mr Chan Shu Kin FRIgIER % 4 (Chairman £ /&) Mr Shing On Wai % % B 55 4

Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa &EBE &+
Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & —ifJt 4

Role & Function* y Develops and reviews the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and makes
A ERBE recommendations to the Board
HERBIRRANECEECHRELFTR TRHEZT/RLEES
¥~ Reviews and monitors the training and continuous professional development of directors and

Senior Management
RN REREFHSRETEENSIRFESERRE

¥~ Reviews and monitors the Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and meets with the management of the Company to assess the
Company’s compliance policies, programs and procedures
BAREERRARAEETEEANREERT T EHNBRRLRER TERARANERERTE
#F UTEARBANEGRBER TRERERF

v~ Develops, reviews, monitors and approves any code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)

applicable to employees and directors of the Company
HIE e EEMERHERARALAREAEFNEFNTRENRARTFMIME)

¥’ Investigates or causes to be investigated any significant instances of non-compliance or potential
compliance violations that are reported to the Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee
AEHALHRAERCEE AR EREE SR RNEMNERERIEEERBER

¥~ Reviews the Company’s compliance with the CG Code as contained in the Listing Rules and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report
BEAABREF(ETRADAZ(EEFADKNBERREH(EEE RBRE)NHNHKE

v’ Reviews the Company’s compliance with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide as contained in the Listing Rules and disclosure in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report
RAAREEST (ETHRAD Rz GR3% - dgRkERmEESD) NEARE GRE  #gKkER
&) NREE
* Please refer to the terms of reference of the Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com) for further

details.
* ER#E—FHE BRE EH RN REB U (Wwww.pyicorp.com Z B EBAR AR ZE S HEHE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE (Continued)

CREARERESS (H)

Summary of vy’ Reviewed the Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2016
work performed  EREHZ2016F3A31BILFE2(LEEREE)
THERE

y" Reviewed updated compliance reports of the Company and its major PRC subsidiaries
EHARARRETEHFZENBRARNENERERERSE

¥ Reviewed the report on recommendation of disclosure in the Directors’ Report (Business Review)

EHNFHEREESTRREEETER)NMERE RS

y" Reviewed the form for confirmation of directors’ participation in training provided by each
director in compliance with the CG Code

EHNSEERACES2 AR CBARE  NET(RETAD

vy~ Reviewed the policy on disclosure and public relations
WA RERALZEERECR

¥~ Reviewed the Shareholders Communication Policy

o & B SR AR B

SHARE REPURCHASE COMMITTEE

ROEBEES
Composition Independent Non-Executive Director + 1 Executlve Director
AR BIUFHTES
Mr Chan Shu Kin PRIEIER 5c & (Chairman £ /&) Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen Blg R &4
Role & Function* ./ Exercises the general mandate granted by shareholders to the Board to repurchase shares of PYI
A& R in accordance with the Listing Rules, PYI's bye-laws and the applicable laws of Bermuda
BRBE(ETRAD REQFMBRAUARBREERZR  TERRRTFTEFROBRERND Z
)]
Summary of v~ During the year, no Share Repurchase Committee meeting was held.
work performed xR AMBRNOEZE RS-
TERE
* Please refer to the terms of reference of the Share Repurchase Committee on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com) for further details.

* RS HE  FRE LR RER U (www.pyicorp.com) Z R EIEZ E S BiEEHE -
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EREBRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

EREESS

Composition
) 3

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BUFHITES

Mr Chan Shu Kin* PR ER 5 4* (Chairman 3 /%)
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa &+
Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond & —if{ 54

#

#

Mr Chan Shu Kin is currently a certified public accountant with extensive experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management services.

REREER A —RAZ G ERE S RMBEEREITEEAEELR -

Role & Function* y Makes recommendations to the Board on appointment of external auditor
£ & B R R * REAIINEZBMMESRRDER
v~ Reviews the Group's financial information
EHAEENBER
vy~ Oversees the Group's financial reporting system, risk management and internal control systems
EEASEMBERE RRERERANBDET RS
y" Reviews the interim and final results of the Group prior to submission to the Board for approval
ERREERIEZH  SHAKEFAMKAXE
v~ Reviews financial reporting and internal control matters and to this end has unrestricted access to
both the Company’s external and internal auditors )
%%g%@ﬁﬂﬂ%%@%ﬁ'ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁWﬁ%@ﬂﬁ$ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%%&ﬂ%%ﬁ%ﬂ
?ﬁa‘ P
Report on v~ Reviewed unaudited interim consolidated financial statements and audited annual consolidated
work performed financial statements of the Group with a recommendation to the Board for approval
THEHE EHNAEERKCERNT RGN BBRRRLERNFREGAVBRER YREAEFRHAR

v~ Reviewed internal control and risk management framework of the Group
B B AN & B P 0 B 4% I B B o TR AE 2R

v~ Received and reviewed progress reports on internal control, risk management and internal audit
actions implemented/planned by the Group \
ERRENAEEMETRGENAMEE BREBRABEF TENERRS

v~ Approved audit fee proposal of external auditor in connection with the audit of the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

PHEIECZBMAEZAEERE2016F3AN AL FEGAVBEREMEBOXEE

v~ Approved the engagement and the review fee proposal of external auditor in connection with the
review of the Group's condensed consolidated financial statements for the six months ended 30
September 2016
BEZENECHMERERENASEEE2016F9A308 L EAZEHRLEEMBHHREAN
BEENENE

v~ Reviewed connected transactions of the Group

BHAKEZBERS

¥ Recommended the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Group's external auditor
at 2016 AGM
BENR016FRRBAFAE LEHZERY c HER T SAMITRANEREINEZEED

¥ Met with external auditor in the absence of executive directors of the Company
ERAEARRBMTESESNERT - & RINEZEED

v~ Reviewed and approved the revised Enquiry and Complaint Policy
EHNBBRER] 253 MIRFH K

v~ Reviewed report from PYI Enquiry and Complaint Centre
ERRECHRRFFORE

* Please refer to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com) for further details.

* BRE P55

B8 3 MR & 48 0 (www.pyicorp.com) 2 Bz L B @ B & E o J
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Responsibility

The Board considers that sound risk management and internal
control systems are vital to the achievement of the Group’s
strategic objectives and acknowledges its responsibility to
establish, maintain and review the effectiveness of such systems
on an ongoing basis.

Management is responsible for the design, implementation and
ongoing monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group to achieve the following business
objectives:

V' Effectiveness and efficiency of operations

v' Reliability of financial and non-financial reporting

v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

Such systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate,
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and aim to
provide a reasonable, as opposed to an absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee has ongoing responsibilities to review the

effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems and to report to the Board.

nnt) REEEAHRARF 2017 Fif
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TEERBRE
The table below shows the roles of the key parties in our risk TRERIEZABERMORAR E RN AL
management and internal control systems: EEGAMEENAE:

Board of Directors

Sets strategic objectives V" Evaluates and determines the v" Provides direction on the

il 7E B A B AR nature and extent for the Group's importance of risk management

V" Qversees management in the principal risks and risk management culture
design, implementation and LA B E R & REREESZUEMRERE R
monitoring of the risk HUEBEMEE XAbR 75 M)

management and internal
control systems

EEEREHRARERE RN
EZRGHRN  BERENER

Audit Committee
ERZEE

Managing Director & Senior Management
BENBREERE

V" Reviews the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems
T AT [ B B EE RN A B BE R R AT M9 A R

V' Assesses risks group-wide and develops mitigating
measures
= B BB ) /A AT 1 L B AN o6l E R\ B i 3R
=Rl

v" Designs, implements and monitors the risk
management and internal control systems
®Et  BEMEREBRERMAIBEZERZR

v Provides confirmation on the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems to the
Board of Directors
HEREBNABEZERFANERERESH

RHERE

Internal Audit
A B8 F 5t

V" Supports the Audit Committee in reviewing the
effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems

TEEZZESHAREENAMBEZRSL

BRMEL RS

Operation Management
EEEHEE

V" Implements and monitors the risk management and internal control procedures across business operations and
functional areas
e 2 B R 15 15 & B AN B ae PP & [ b B TR AN A HB BRI AR T
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Risk Management Framework

The diagram below shows the risk management framework
adopted by the Group:

Strategy ZKH&

Vision

Statement

REH

Process B2

Vel M

Report Risk
B R Management
Process

t B EERRE l

Elements Jt&

Human
Resource
Mechanisms

Organization
Structures

ABERE

Performance
Measure

Management
Commitment

EEE A

AN GBS EERE

Assurance

RE

nnt) REEEAHRARF 2017 Fif

B E AR
T B R A S TR A ) LB TR AR 2R ¢

Risks are considered
when setting strategy.
1t ) 7E HR S I
ZREMmEZE -

Process applies standard
procedures, assessment
tools and market practices.
BIZT R TIREMRERF -
AHE AR TISH0E o

Elements that are brought

Communications together to support, promote
and Training

and drive risk management
throughout the Group.
PER S Fr -~ REN TR EE
SERBREREMFNITLE °

63



64

FYIF) PYI Corporation Limited 2017 Annual Report

Corporate Governance Report
TERERES

Risk assessment is performed to evaluate the nature and extent
of the risks to which it is exposed. During the risk assessment
process, the Group has identified key risks facing the Group.
The risks are prioritised according to the likelihood of their
occurrence and the significance of their impact on the
businesses of the Group. Moreover, risk management measures
are in place to manage the risks to an acceptable level.

To support management in responding to risks arising from the
complex and changing business environment, regular training is
provided to our management to strengthen their awareness of
risk and capability to manage risks.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Group's systems of internal control were developed by
making reference to the Internal Control Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO) in the United States in 2013 and
the Guide on Internal Control and Risk Management issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Business units are required to perform control self-assessments
annually to assess the effectiveness of their systems of internal
control. The control self-assessment performed is in the form of
a questionnaire that sets out key factors in each of the five
components of the COSO Internal Control Integrated
Framework. These five interrelated components are Control
Environment, Risk Assessment, Control Activities, Information
and Communication, and Monitoring.

During the year, the Legal and the Finance and Accounts
Departments of the Group have carried out reviews on
operational, financial and compliance controls of all operating
subsidiaries in China to ensure their compliance with the
Group's risk management and internal control policies and
procedures and the accuracy of relevant reports submitted to
the Group.

AEBETRRGEREEEAME S AROE
BEERRE-EERRAGERY AEEENE
EASEEENEIERR ARECREBEEL
REBHBREOKEREEAREXBEOTENE
EEETHF YHBEERREEERNLER
RERERZRZNEER -

HHEMZENKELERE STHYIRMANE
BEEHHESERNIEEKSE  ARFEH
AEEEREEBNE - LEsEREREH
MEZERRIEED

REREERABEZRGHRE

REBMA I LT RHE 2 ZE X B Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO)R 20134 # & = 1N 3B BS #5243
EREERBAGMAE B2 R ELE 2 EE
R B IR 5| PTG E Y o

EEBRAAGERTNBELARTHE A
FEAYNBER RO NHERER
SR AR S TSR 1T - B IR B COSO P #
ERGAERNEETERNTENG B AE
TIEME N T ES R EEES BRI
EIED  EORER ARER-

FR AEENEENPBLREFFHFIECH
N BECEEZMBARETEE MBLK
EREEZRY UBRENSEAKERERE
BERAREENRERER  WRMEXNHE
B E A M
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Every year the Internal Audit Department carries out
independent audits to evaluate the effectiveness of the Group's
systems of risk management and internal control according to
the approved three-year internal audit plan for the Group. This
audit plan was determined using a risk-based approach and is
re-assessed annually to ensure adequate audit resources are
deployed to achieve the objectives of the internal audit plan.

Finally, management has formulated remedial action plans to
address the gaps and weaknesses identified during control
self-assessments, internal control reviews and internal audits.
The PYI head office has conducted follow-up reviews periodically
to ensure remedial actions are taken on a timely basis, and has
reported the results of the follow-up reviews to the Audit
Committee.

During the year, the Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and considered the risk management and
internal control systems effective and adequate. The scope and
quality of the Group’s ongoing monitoring of risks have been
assessed. The Board was not aware of any significant areas of
concerns that may affect the Group to achieve its strategic
goals.

Also, the Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, and their training programmes and budget, and was
satisfied with the results of the review.

Procedures and Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

Proper measures have been taken by the Group to comply with
the requirements under “Part XIVA — Disclosure of Inside
Information” of the Securities and Futures Ordinance to ensure
that inside information remains confidential until the disclosure
of such information has been properly approved, and
disseminate in an effective and consistent manner. Such
measures include establishment of the inside information
identification, reporting, and disclosure protocol and procedures.
Also, in-house training will be provided to senior management
and relevant officers at Group level and business units level and
the procedures and controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information will be reviewed by the Internal Audit
Department on a need basis.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal Audit Department of PYI set up in November 2007 is
headed by Group Internal Audit Senior Manager who reports
directly to the Audit Committee of PYI. It plays an important
role in the internal governance of the Group. With the
assistance from external internal audit consultant, the Internal
Audit Department is primarily responsible for conducting audit
on the effectiveness of the Group's systems of risk management
and internal control periodically.

The Internal Audit Department is independent from operational
management and is fully empowered to access to data required
in performing internal audit review. Moreover, the department

comprises well qualified and capable staff and is provided with

adequate resources to perform its duties.

Since 2008, internal audit assignments have been directed by an
internal audit strategic plan approved by the Audit Committee.
This strategic plan is developed by adopting risk-based approach
for every three years and reviewed annually. In addition, ad hoc
internal audit assignments are performed on request by the
management or assigned by the Audit Committee. In the past
nine years, the Internal Audit Department has executed three
three-year internal audit strategic plans.

During the process of audits, the Internal Audit Department
identified internal control weakness, made recommendations
for improvement, obtained remedial action plan of management
and followed up remedial status of the management action plan
and its timeliness. Besides, in order to ensure the continuity of
the 1ISO9001 certification for the Group’s corporate support
centre in Hangzhou that provides in-house legal, internal audit,
financial (including accounting data backup) and in-house
training services to the Group’s business units, the Internal Audit
Department has performed internal audit review for the
corporate support centre in compliance with the 1ISO9001
certification requirements.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) has been re-appointed
as the Company’s external auditor at 2016 AGM until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting. The Audit
Committee in its meeting on 22 June 2017 recommended the
re-appointment of Deloitte as the Company’s external auditor at
2017 annual general meeting and the Board has adopted the
same view as that of the Audit Committee.

In order to maintain independence, Deloitte is primarily
responsible for providing audit services in connection with the
Group's consolidated financial statements, and only provides
non-audit services that do not impair their independence or
objectivity and are approved by the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION PAID OR PAYABLE TO DELOITTE FOR AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT SERVICES

ENRENTFEANRBRFRBBREHE
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2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

Services Rendered 121430 R A% FExT FAET

Audit services ZH R 3,318 3,345

Non-audit services 1% HAR

Review of interim condensed consolidated EZEHPHERSE

financial statements B 75 TRk 1,352 1,399

Taxation advisory 158 7% 5 58 58 88

Special engagements HEZRE 12 13

Total #HEg 4,740 4,845
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s memorandum of association and bye-laws (in
both English and Chinese) are available on the websites of PYI
(www.pyicorp.com) and HKEX.

No amendments have been made to the bye-laws of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2017.

MEERXH
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PYIl and Shareholders
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The Board is committed to enhancing value for our shareholders EERNNIBRFBBEER AR EME  WWHH
through sustainable growth. This section serves to provide SAERMHEREMEEZER -
information relating to our shareholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND KBRS

The Board has resolved not to recommend payment of a final EEREBATEZRNEEZ2017F3A31H

dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017. IEFEEZRHARE -

FINANCIAL CALENDAR Bt #% B
Event Date
b} A &
2016 final results announced 17/06/2016
S2016F KA
2016 PYI AGM 02/09/2016

2016MRERFBFRE

2017 interim results announced 18/11/2016
EMH2017TEFRERELE
2017 final results announced 23/06/2017
EM2017TEREAELE
2017 PYI AGM 01/09/2017

2017TIREBIRBEFRE
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SHAREHOLDERS Bk R
Shareholdings as recorded in PYI's register of members as at R2017F3A31H L ERERREZM 2K
31 March 2017 are as follows: HEREMT

Approximate

Approximate

% of % of issued
Size of registered No. of shareholders share capital
shareholdings shareholders HRREE No. of shares HEBRITRAE
BRRRERE RREHAE 2N B ROEE 2N B
500 or below Z¢A T 341 57.50% 43,333 0.00%
501 - 1,000 34 5.73% 25,355 0.00%
1,001 - 10,000 116 19.56% 421,437 0.01%
10,001 - 100,000 66 11.13% 2,528,338 0.06%
100,001 - 1,000,000 21 3.54% 5,704,005 0.12%
1,000,001 - 10,000,000 10 1.69% 25,275,219 0.55%
10,000,001 — 100,000,000 1 0.17% 11,259,933 0.25%
Above 100,000,000 LA _E 4* 0.68% 4,542,150,952 99.01%
Total #&5t 593 100.00% 4,587,408,572 100.00%
* The four shareholders were: AR S BA
1 HKSCC Nominees Limited ERERREE (REEA) ARAR
Clearing Participants/ wrEsmE/

Custodian Participants AEmaEE 3,136,125,843 68.36%
Investor Participants REEFPARBBA 52,067,073 1.14%
Hong Kong Securities Clearing BERARLLEHE

Company Limited BRAF] 576 0.00%

3,188,193,492" 69.50%

2 Hollyfield Group Limited 995,039,069 21.69%
3 Jadeview Limited 201,210,772 4.38%
4 Rich Concept Investments Limited 157,692,718 3.44%
4,542,136,051 99.01%

" The breakdown of the shareholding in the name of HKSCC Nominees . BEARREEREBAN)ERAAIE TREME
Limited was obtained from the record shown in the CCASS Participants ERMBECCASS2EBER D LERE ([2HERDG
Shareholding Report (the “PSH Report”). The number of shares registered WERD - 2EEROGBEATABEARREZ (R

in HKSCC Nominees Limited as shown in the PSH Report is different BANERAADAEZFLIMROBE BREREA

from that shown on PYI's register of members because some shares AT REAZER  EEMCCASSEFFE R
withdrawn from or deposited into the CCASS depository had not yet been TFACCASSEARTFER OO B REHFZRL -

re-registered.
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SHARE INFORMATION iz 0 & #l

Share Listing B b

PY| shares were first listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange RERMMHRI993FIA2NIHE RN ET BB AN
on 21 September 1993. e

Stock Code B 0 K 5%

Hong Kong Stock Exchange 498 BB 498
Frankfurt Stock Exchange PYW  SEmmtaE AT PYW
Board lot 2,000 shares BEEN(EF) 2,000 %
Securities in Issue ERITHES

Shares R’ %

As at 31 March 2017 4,587,408,572 shares 201743 HA31H 4,587,408,572 &
As at 23 June 2017 5,519,580,572 shares MW2017%E6 A23H 5,519,580,572 %

*

== Share price (cum dividend)

B (GE )"
== Share price (ex dividend)
PRME (B 2)
Hks 1.0
BT
08 +
D e
0.6 +
04 +
0.2 k= o A—
0.0
© © © © © <o) © <o) © M~ N~ M~
o o o o o o o o o o o o
N N N [V} [e\} N [e\} N [V} [aV] [V} [aN)
< o} & N o o =) - Q — I o)
(@) o (@) o o o — — — (@) o (@)
* Share price (cum dividend) represents the aggregate of share price (ex dividend) and cumulative dividends paid from the date of listing of PYI

shares in Hong Kong on 21 September 1993
* RRECELIREZRER 2R BRERMIEETS Lz H(1993F9 A21 BRI 2 RETIR 22 47
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MARKET CAPITALISATION ™m{E

Total Market Capitalisation MHhE

As at 31 March 2017 HK$757 million 7201743 H31H 75718 T

As at 23 June 2017 HK$922 million 7201746 A 23H 9.22{878 T

Public float capitalisation* NBEKRTE*

As at 31 March 2017 HK$539 million HR2017%3A31H 5.39187%8 T

As at 23 June 2017 HK$701 million M20175%E6 A23H 701188 T

* The information disclosed under this section reflects the market value of * A HE R R REREFISA Z(RER
PYI shares held by PYI shareholders with the shareholdings held by the BrmE HRETSBRHEGE FTHAZTEE)
substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the directors REEVEBRESFRFEEENRN -

of PYI being excluded.



Directors’ Report

ESRBREE

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of PYI
Corporation Limited (“PYI” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures as at 31 March 2017 are set out in Note 50 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review is set out on pages 10 to 32 of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 100 of this annual report and in the

accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

No interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017 was
declared during the year (2016: Nil).

The directors have resolved not to recommend for shareholders’
approval the payment of any final dividend for the year ended
31 March 2017 (2016: Nil).

Details of the distribution are set out in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the five largest customers of
the Group accounted for less than 30% of the revenue of the
Group. The five largest suppliers and the single largest supplier
of the Group accounted for approximately 34% and 12% of
the total purchases of the Group respectively.

As far as the directors are aware, none of the directors and their
close associates within the meaning of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), or those shareholders who to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s share capital, has an interest in any of the five
largest customers and/or five largest suppliers of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group currently maintains a variety of credit facilities to
meet its working capital requirements. As at 31 March 2017,
the Group’s total borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$1,866,279,000 with approximately HK$1,325,249,000
repayable on demand or within one year, approximately
HK$541,030,000 repayable after one year. Cash, bank balances
and deposits as at 31 March 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$499,763,000. The Group's current ratio (calculated as total
current assets divided by total current liabilities) was 1.49 and
the debt to equity ratio (calculated as total borrowings divided
by equity attributable to owners of the Company) was 0.47 as
at 31 March 2017.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$26,092,000
in respect of the construction of ports and approximately
HK$14,889,000 on the other property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in Note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$7,910,000
on investment properties. All investment properties were
revalued at the end of the reporting period.

Details of these and other movements in the investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in Note 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in Note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES

1. Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme of the Company (the “2012 Share
Option Scheme”) was approved and adopted by the
shareholders of the Company at its annual general
meeting held on 10 September 2012. A summary of the
2012 Share Option Scheme is set out below:

(1) Purpose
To provide incentive or reward to the participants (as
defined in paragraph (2) below) for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests
of, the Group.

(2) Participants
Any employee (whether full time or part time),
executives or officers, directors (including executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the Group or any entity
in which the Group holds an equity interest (“Invested
Entity”) and any celebrity, consultant, adviser or
agent of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity, who, in the sole discretion of the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”), have
contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group or any Invested Entity.

mt) REEBEBRAE 2017 F3R

BREWME

RER > REBEKZEMEE M H7,910,000/8
T FAREMEANRENTHEBERN(GE-

Pl EAEERFAZRENEZEAME

FH TR

[N

REMBHRRME 18-

RER ARAEHBETRAZEDFBHRIRN
RAMB|RME3 -

i 13 2 Bt &

1. BREE

AARREAE2012FIAI0BETZHRRE
BERG EEMERFEARQ B ERERT
ZI([2012F AR EET EI]) - 2012 F BB IR
FEIlZHEHINMAT

(1)

2)

I=): 1)
EERZEAL(EEZERTXEQ
BOUASEMREL ZER M RETT
AEBEMNEMHBELS NG TH
B sk 22 -

BHEATL

ARBIcESRIEEFRDEZEBR
BRAEHAKEHATEAAE
ERERAERZEMNER(KRE
ERDZERRBERELHEMZA
SEEMKRERRAKEMKEER
ZEFMEE(TwREZBAFRR) -
TRABXSEABE ZER(EEH
TEE FRTEERBIUIFNT
ER)REMABAL AEEEM
&E"‘T‘JZTET"J&%E%%ZE@EE

CRBRRARRIEA -

75



76 end>»

PYI Corporation Limited 2017 Annual Report

Directors’ Report

EERHREE

(3)

(4)

Total number of shares available for issue

(@) Mandate Limit — Subject to paragraph (b)
below, the total number of shares in the
Company, which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2012
Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Company's
issued shares as of 4 September 2015, being
457,736,057 shares.

(b)  Overriding Limit — The Company may by
ordinary resolutions of its shareholders refresh
the Mandate Limit as referred to in the above
paragraph (a) provided that the Company shall
issue a circular to its shareholders before such
approval is sought. The overriding limit on the
number of shares in the Company, which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must
not exceed 30% of the Company’s issued
shares from time to time.

(©)  As of the date of this annual report, the total
number of shares in the Company available for
issue under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
was 457,736,057 shares, which represented
approximately 8.29% of the issued share
capital of the Company (that is, 5,519,580,572
shares) on that date.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
The total number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options (whether
exercised or outstanding) in any 12-month period
granted to each participant must not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue. However,
subject to separate approval by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting with the relevant
participant and his close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) (or his associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) if the participant is a connected person (as
defined in the Listing Rules)) abstaining from voting
and provided that the Company shall issue a circular
to its shareholders before such approval is sought,
the Company may grant a participant options which
would exceed the aforesaid limit.
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(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

9)

Option period

The period during which an option may be exercised
as determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
at the time of grant, save that such period must not
exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it is vested

The minimum period, if any, for which an option
must be held before it is vested, shall be determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion. The 2012
Share Option Scheme itself does not specify any
minimum holding period.

Payment on acceptance of the option and
period for acceptance

HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company
on acceptance of the option offer. An offer must be
accepted on or before a date as specified in writing,
being a date not later than 30 days after (i) the date
on which the offer was issued; or (ii) the date on
which the conditions for the offer are satisfied.

Basis of determining the subscription price
The subscription price shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion at the time of grant
of the relevant option but shall not be less than the
higher of: (i) such subscription price as is permissible
under the Listing Rules from time to time; and (i) the
nominal value of the share of the Company.

Remaining life

The life span of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is 10
years commencing from 10 September 2012 and will
expire on 9 September 2022.
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Details of the movements in the share options, which were R & ZE2017F3 8318 It FE - R IE2012F 5
granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, during the BETESRD2ERECESHFBOT
year ended 31 March 2017 are as follows:

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of the
share options

REREETEREFRITZROEAE

Exercised
Exercise during the
price As at year ended As at
Grantee Date of grant per share 01.04.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2017 Exercise period
REBZE
(=34 S 31.03.2017 »
ARA RIEAH fTEE 01.04.2016 IEFETE 31.03.2017 Cogi:d
(Noteff i 2)
(dd.mm.yyyy) HK$ (dd.mm.yyyy)
(B.A.%) B (B.A.%)
Directors
B
Lau Tom Ko Yuen 27.06.2014 0.1624 15,000,000 — 15,000,000 27.06.2014-26.06.2017
=y 27.06.2014 0.1624 15,000,000 — 15,000,000 27.06.2015-26.06.2017
27.06.2014 0.1624 15,000,000 — 15,000,000 27.06.2016-26.06.2017
29.06.2015 0.2504 15,000,000 — 15,000,000 29.06.2015-28.06.2018
29.06.2015 0.2504 15,000,000 — 15,000,000 29.06.2016-28.06.2018
29.06.2015 0.2504 15,000,000 — 15,000,000 29.06.2017-28.06.2018
Chan Shu Kin 29.09.2014 0.1720 4,500,000 — 4,500,000 29.09.2014-28.09.2017
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa 29.09.2014 0.1720 4,500,000 — 4,500,000 29.09.2014-28.09.2017
BER
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond 29.09.2014 0.1720 4,500,000 — 4,500,000 29.09.2014-28.09.2017
E—
Sub-total /N5t 103,500,000 — 103,500,000
Employees 27.06.2014 0.1624 24,502,400 (10,048,000) 14,454,400 27.06.2014-26.06.2017
&8 27.06.2014 0.1624 24,502,400 — 24,502,400 27.06.2015-26.06.2017
27.06.2014 0.1624 24,502,400 — 24,502,400 27.06.2016-26.06.2017
29.06.2015 0.2504 15,165,600 — 15,165,600 29.06.2015-28.06.2018
29.06.2015 0.2504 15,165,600 —_ 15,165,600 29.06.2016-28.06.2018
29.06.2015 0.2504 15,165,600 — 15,165,600 29.06.2017-28.06.2018
Sub-total /N5t 119,004,000 (10,048,000) 108,956,000

Grand total &5t 222,504,000 (10,048,000) 212,456,000
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Notes:

1. All share options granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
were/will be vested on the commencement date of each respective
exercise period.

2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or capitalisation issues or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital.

3. In respect of the 10,048,000 share options exercised during the
year, the weighted average closing price of shares immediately
before the date of exercise was HK$0.179.

4. No share options were granted, cancelled or lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme during the year
ended 31 March 2017.

Share Financing Plan

This share financing plan, adopted by the Company on 14
February 2006, allows eligible persons (including
employees, directors, consultants, advisers and agents of
the Group) to borrow funds from the Company or from a
company within the Group to acquire new or old shares of
the Company on a non-recourse basis with the subject
shares pledged to the Company as security, subject always
to connected transaction and other relevant provisions
under the Listing Rules.

During the year, no financing to eligible persons was
provided by the Group under this plan.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Incentive
Schemes”, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share incentive schemes disclosed above, at no
time during the year or at the end of the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

The Company'’s reserve available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 March 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$1,510,156,000 (2016: HK$2,026,859,000).
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors

Lau Tom Ko Yuen (Chairman & Managing Director)
Sue Ka Lok (appointed with effect from 25 April 2017)
Wu Yan Yee (appointed with effect from 15 May 2017)

Non-executive director

Chan Yiu Lun, Alan (resigned with effect from 25 April 2017)

Independent non-executive directors

Chan Shu Kin
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s bye-laws,
Mr Sue Ka Lok and Ms Wu Yan Yee will retire from office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election as directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s

bye-laws, Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa and Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond

retire by rotation and, being eligible, will stand for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation
requirements under the Company’s bye-laws, and they are
appointed for a specific term of approximately three years.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of each
of the directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company, as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, are set
out below:

EERBSTBRAERKD - HE
BROOREF2EBERKXE

R2017F3A318  ARAISEEREBITH
ABRARFB ZBRH RHEBAROPIFELERN
BIB(EHF KRB EGO)EI2GEATUNETZ
&0 A AR R BT AR B M 8% 1+ A9 BT B
TANEZETEFRSHHNEETAD (R £
A MASTAE AR REEREXSHAAE
AT (B 2w AR EHINWT :

Number of shares/underlying shares held

BERG HEROBE

(Note ffz£1)

Approximate

Name of director/ Personal Family Corporate Other % of issued

chief executive Capacity interests interests interests interests Total  share capital

BExBR HEBRITRE

THAEER g4 AR ZXKEEz AREZE HtEz By ZHYEI L
(Note fff#12)

Lau Tom Ko Yuen Beneficial owner 104,672,605 — — — 104,672,605 2.28%

2=R EmEaA (Note fif#%3)

Chan Shu Kin Beneficial owner 4,500,000 — — — 4,500,000 0.10%

B 1S EX EnEAA (Note f134)

Wong Lai Kin, Elsa Beneficial owner 4,500,000 — — — 4,500,000 0.10%

=B EmEaA (Note fifz14)

Mok Yat Fan, Edmond Beneficial owner 5,625,102 — — — 5,625,102 0.12%

- EnEAA (Note f13%5)

Notes: B et -

1. All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the 1. FPRRRATDROREBRO 2R RBEFRE - R

Company were long positions. None of the directors and the chief
executive of the Company held any short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as at 31 March 2017.

2. Based on the Company'’s issued share capital of 4,587,408,572 shares as

at 31 March 2017.

2017F3A31H  ARAEEFRERITBRABEE
RARBRD RBEBRORZEAR -

2. LARA2017 43 A 31 B 2 4,587,408,572 % A X &) B 3

TR DAL -
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3. Such interests held by Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen comprised:
(i) 14,672,605 shares; and

(i) a total of 90,000,000 underlying shares in respect of share options
granted to him on 27 June 2014 and 29 June 2015 respectively
pursuant to the 2012 Share Option Scheme, further details of
which are set out in the section headed “Share Incentive Schemes”
above.

4. All these interests held by such directors were underlying shares in respect
of share options granted to them on 29 September 2014 pursuant to the
2012 Share Option Scheme, further details of which are set out in the
section headed “Share Incentive Schemes” above.

5. Such interests held by Mr Mok Yat Fan, Edmond comprised:
(i) 1,125,102 shares; and

(ii) 4,500,000 underlying shares in respect of share options granted to
him on 29 September 2014 pursuant to the 2012 Share Option
Scheme, further details of which are set out in the section headed
“Share Incentive Scheme” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2017, none of the directors of the Company is
interested in any business (apart from the Group’s businesses)
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly and
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed in the consolidated financial statements,
no contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

mt) REEBEBRAE 2017 F3R
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER
PERSONS

TERR HtALTZHBRAR

R2017F3A318 AR AEERERITH
ABFTA TERE HMATRHRERARRNG
MEBROTPHELERBRIB(ESF KBEK
BIYEIBCIFRETHEF ELMACERZ AR

As at 31 March 2017, so far as is known to the directors and
the chief executive of the Company, the interests and short

positions of the substantial shareholders/other persons in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

LN

register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO are as 1) EERRK
follows:
(1) Substantial shareholders
Number  Approximate
of shares/ % of
underlying the issued
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held share capital
BERG HEBRTRE
BREE g% HERGOEHE Z#BAEIH
(Note ffzE1) (Note ff7£2)
Suen Cho Hung, Paul Interest of controlled corporation 1,305,311,695 28.45%
FHAEH S EE R
(Note H3#3)
Ace Way Global Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,305,311,695 28.45%
S AERE R
(Note [f5£3)
Ace Pride Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,305,311,695 28.45%
LB R
PT International Development Interest of controlled corporation 1,305,311,695 28.45%
Corporation Limited (formerly ITC YR LB R
Corporation Limited) (Note ftz%3)
REHBZERGEZEFR QA
(AIBEFECXEBEBRARF)
Treasure Investment Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,305,311,695 28.45%
(formerly Bl 7 ITC Investment Holdings R AR
Limited) (Note ffit3)
Hollyfield Group Limited Beneficial owner 1,305,311,695 28.45%

EmEB A
(Note [ffz+3)
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(2)

Notes:

mt) REEBEBRAE 2017 F3R

Other Persons 2) HAL
Number Approximate
of shares/ % of
underlying the issued
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held share capital
BER®M HEBRITRE
BRARE 5@ HEROEHEE 28BS
(Note fffz£1)  (Note ff7E2)
FIL Limited Interest of controlled corporation 383,036,000 8.35%
XA E R
(Note 171 4)
Fidelity China Special Situations Plc Beneficial owner 383,036,000 8.35%

BEDlEAA

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company were long positions.

Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 4,587,408,572 shares as
at 31 March 2017.

Hollyfield Group Limited (“Hollyfield”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Treasure Investment Holdings Limited (“Treasure Investment”) (which was,
in turn, a wholly-owned subsidiary of PT International Development
Corporation Limited (“PTIDC")), owned 1,305,311,695 shares in the
Company. Accordingly, Treasure Investment and PTIDC were deemed to
be interested in the said 1,305,311,695 shares held by Hollyfield. Ace
Pride Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ace Way Global
Limited (which was, in turn, wholly owned by Mr Suen Cho Hung, Paul (“Mr
Suen”)), owned approximately 67.96% of the issued share capital of
PTIDC. By virtue of his deemed interest of approximately 67.96% in
PTIDC, Mr Suen was deemed to be interested in these shares held by
Hollyfield.

Widt -

ERARRBORBERG 2 BEHRITRE -

LARA 201743 A 31 H 24,587,408,572 8 A X &) B 5
TRABELE-

Treasure Investment Holdings Limited ([ Treasure
Investment D ( B R EE R E#ERBR X B R A A
(REEBRERGED ZZ2ENBRARI Z2A
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H1,305,311,695 % A~ 2 & fX 9 o & it - Treasure
Investment K 4R 12 B BR % & 1 % 4% 1R /& M Hollyfield
5B 2 Fiii1,305,311,695 8% AR 17 ¥ B 1 25  Ace
Way Global Limited (R S E([HEED 2 E
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4. According to the disclosure form filed by FIL Limited on 3 March 2017, the
shares were held by FIL Limited through its controlled corporations, the
details of which are as follows:

Name of controlling

4. TR IEFIL Limited A2017 63 A3BIER 2 5B R 1§
FILLimited BB E X EBFTE B 2 RODFBHT ¢

Direct interest Number of shares held

Name of controlled corporation shareholder % control (Y/N) (Long position)

HEEs BHEROHE
SFEEBER ERBRRERE ERBEOL (B/&) (FR&)
FIL Holdings (UK) Limited FIL Limited 100.00 NE 383,036,000
FIL INVESTMENTS INTERNATIONAL FIL Holdings (UK) Limited 100.00 NE& 383,036,000
FIL Investment Services (UK) Limited FIL Holdings (UK) Limited 100.00 NE 383,036,000
FIL Asia Holding Pte Limited FIL Limited 100.00 NE& 383,036,000
FIL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT FIL Asia Holding Pte Limited 100.00 Y2 383,036,000

(HONG KONG) LIMITED

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, the Company
had not been notified of any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

Including the directors of the Group, as at 31 March 2017, the
Group employed a total of 1,486 (2016: 1,581) full time
employees. Remuneration packages consisted of salary as well
as performance-based bonus. In appreciation of continuing
support of the Group’s employees, a bonus payment to
employees was made during the year.

Under the Group's existing emolument policy, pay rate of
employees are maintained at competitive level with reference to
the merits, qualification and competence of the employees
while promotion and increments are based on performance of
the respective employees.

The emolument of the directors of the Company is decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to various factors
including the prevailing market conditions, salary paid by
comparable companies, the duties and responsibilities of a
director, employment conditions elsewhere and the time
committed by the director concerned.

Further, the Company has implemented various share-related
incentive schemes to provide alternative means to motivate
employees and promote their loyalty in line with the Group's
strategy. Such schemes benefited the Group’s staff in both
Hong Kong and the Mainland.

Details of remuneration policy of the Company are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on page 56 of this annual
report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the Group’s retirement benefit schemes is set
out in Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company'’s corporate governance principles and practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 41 to
68 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Company’s performance in various environmental and social
aspects during the year is set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report, which is available on the websites of
the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, at least 25% (that is, the prescribed public float
applicable to the Company under the Listing Rules) of the issued
shares in the Company were held by the public as at the date of
this report.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the year, the Group did not have material acquisition
and disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.
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DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS' INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Mr Sue Ka Lok was re-designated from an executive director to
a non-executive director of Birmingham Sports Holdings Limited
(formerly Birmingham International Holdings Limited) with effect
from 1 May 2017.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

(1) Advances to entities

As at 31 March 2017, advances to entities did not
individually exceed 8% under the assets ratio as defined
under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

(2) Financial assistance and guarantees given to
affiliated companies

As at 31 March 2017, the aggregate amount of the
financial assistance provided by the Group to its affiliated
companies (as defined under Chapter 13 of the Listing
Rules) did not exceed 8% under the assets ratio as defined
under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. As at 31 March
2017, there was no guarantee given by the Group for
facilities granted to its affiliated companies.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s bye-laws provides that the directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which may incur or sustain by or
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their offices,
provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of any wilful negligence, wilful default, fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any directors. A directors’
liability insurance is in place to protect the directors against
potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought against
the directors.

mt) REEBEBRAE 2017 F3R
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
of approximately HK$500,000 (2016: HK$500,000).

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for development and/or
sale and for investment purposes are set out on page 248 of the
annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 12 May 2017, a total of 915,470,000 new shares of the
Company have been placed by a placing agent to not less than
six independent placees at the price of HK$0.156 per share.
Details of the share placement are set out in Note 51 to the

consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor
of the Company and to authorise the directors of the Company
to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Tom Ko Yuen
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZRBERE S

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF PYI CORPORATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PYI
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 100 to
246, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Hﬂ:) REEEAHRARF 2017 Fif
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

FAREFLER

REBRMANEXZHE BREZZESEMET
BRAMGEMBBRERTREZNFTE - HMAE
EREEBGAMBHRRMAM UK E R EE
HEFER MAERBEFTEEEFERRER -

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matters
HRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
BN ELRNNEERREEREE

Valuation of land being formed and formed land
classified as investment properties (the “Land
Under Development and Developed Land”)
DERREYEFEN L HREFELH ( [P L
WREMHZLH | ) BEE

We identified the valuation of Land Under Development
and Developed Land as a key audit matter due to its
significance and the significant degrees of management
estimations involved in the valuation.
BMEBRER T HREAE L MO GERTE AER
EZFE RARZHEBREARMEIRERERE
BB IR EAET o

As described in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 March 2017, the Land Under
Development and Developed Land aggregately
amounted to approximately HK$844,244,000 with a net
decrease in fair value of HK$3,313,000 recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
March 2017, aggregately representing 10.8% of total
assets of the Group and 14.6% of loss before taxation
of the Group.

AR S ISR M 18P - X 2017F3A31H - F
B+ i & B R A £ 4) /844,244,000 7T -
3,313,000/ TH A FEERDFEENEE2017F3
ANMBLEFENGERERPER 61 H5E

=N
MEEMI08% N EBEXRBEBRHAIEIEN146% -

We performed the following procedures in relation to
valuation of Land Under Development and Developed
Land:

BMEsMER L REME LN EERITUTIE
F -

o Evaluated the independent qualified professional
valuer's competence, capabilities and objectivity;

e HEBUAERIEEMEMMER RIALEE
1

o Discussed with the management and the valuer for
the latest updates in relevant property market, status
of investment properties and methodologies and
assumptions adopted in valuations;

o Assessed the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on
our knowledge and research on the property market
performance in relevant locations;

. BREBEMOMNBREABEOROYET S RIRIE
HHREE A EERBRIMANTEREE L
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Key audit matters
HRERER

Hﬂ:) REEBEBRAE 2017 F3R

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
BN ELKNNEEREERSE

In order to support their estimation, the management
took reference to independent qualified professional
valuations in respect of all Land Under Development and
Developed Land situated in Jiangsu Province, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The
management is required to make estimates in certain
inputs in valuations. For determining fair values of Land
Under Development and Developed Land, it involves
significant judgment and estimations including valuation
methodology, saleable land discount on comparable
lands, certain costs to be expended for completion of
land development, etc.

AEFHELNGBS EEEC2ZBEARPEA
RAMBE((HEDIHEN2 MRS LM REHE
THHBIEEREXGLE EREBRACETHER
HETHABBELGG REERER LM RERM
B ATEE HESREEGRERE ATLER
ZETHHEEEENE TR IHEEREENE T
PR FE N &K H T R Ak 5 o

o Checked reasonableness of further costs to be
expended for completion of development by
reference to formed land;

J KR2EE TR RETH TR EME £/ #E
— AN EEMN

o Checked the validity and relevance of the comparable
samples used; and
. REMAALREARNERERB@EN &

o Tested the integrity and arithmetic accuracy of the
valuations.

o RAFEMGENTEUEREMEREE -
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Key audit matters
HRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
BN ELKNNEEREERSE

Assessment of net realisable value of stock of
properties

TFEYRFEN TS FE

We identified the assessment of net realisable value of
stock of properties situated in Jiangsu Province, the PRC
as a key audit matter due to its significance and the
significant degrees of management estimates involved in
the assessment.
BMESURFEIHEAMEFENRAIZRFAET G
BERBAREZEE RAZSZIHBEERRIGY
RERIEENEREME -

As described in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 March 2017, properties under
development for sale and completed properties held for
sale amounted to approximately HK$1,056,262,000 and
HK$407,808,000 respectively, aggregately representing
18.8% of total assets of the Group.

AR S BT R MY sE26 Pt - PA2017F3 A31H -
HHEERYERE T IFELEYESNOAR
1,056,262,0007% 7t % 407,808,000/ 7t * & H 1§ E%
EEEEN188% °

We performed the following procedures in relation to
management’s assessment of the net realisable value of
stock of properties:
BMERDEFEENFERFENEERBIEHITAT
R

o Evaluated the independent qualified professional
valuer’s competence, capabilities and objectivity;

. THBUCEREXEGEBRMNEL EOIREH
M

o Discussed with the management and the valuer for
the latest updates in relevant property market and
methodologies and assumptions used to calculate
net realisable value of stock of properties;

. H1E IR FE K 4 (B AP 57 3R A B8 W) 3 T 5 ) iR B BE
RABEYMEGENAI SR FEMBN T EREBR

o Assessed the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on
our knowledge and research on the property market
performance in relevant locations; and

. BERMODHEREAEMBEOMET S RRIE
EHAE FEERBESMANSEAREEN &

e  Tested the integrity and arithmetic accuracy of the
assessment made by management.

o HFEEEEMMFFENTEERBMERE-
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Key audit matters
HRERER

mt) REEEAHRARF 2017 Fif

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
BN ELKNNEEREERSE

As described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, in order to estimate the net realisable value
of stock of properties, the management took reference
to the information on fair value of market comparable
samples and adjustment factors on comparable samples
from an independent qualified professional valuer. The
assessment is dependent on certain key assumptions that
require subjective assumptions and significant
management estimates, including adjustment factors on
comparable samples used in valuation of properties
under development for sale and completed properties
held for sale, further costs to be expended for the
development of properties under development for sale
and discount rate used in net present value calculation
of stock of properties.

WANER G MM AR - RETEYERFEN A E
REE BEEBCD2EBYIAEBRIEEMEMEAD
TSR ELBERAN R FEBEEHN RATE L BEERD
HERZ - THEABRERTBBRINEREREMN
FTHE THEESR BRETHEEEEDERE T
IHELEMEHEMAAELBRERANFARREE
FMEBEHRLEERMEMELENE - THKARAEDE
FERBEFEMANBIRE-

We further performed the following procedures in relation
to management’s assessment of the net realisable value of
stock of properties that are under development for sale:
BMEE—SRELEERYEFENAERFENE
BEMEHITATRERF:

o Checked reasonableness of further costs to be
expended by reference to completed properties;

. KBZETIMEZSFEANE - TR EANEE
1

o Checked the validity and relevance of the market
comparable samples used in valuation; and

J REETHERMATSAIALRERNERIE
KABREE &

o Checked market data to assess the appropriateness
of discount rate.
. REMSBBEANGERENEE I -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

mt) REEBEBRAE 2017 F3R
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Woo King Wa.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 June 2017
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

HZE2017F3R831HILFE
2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5E FERT FET
Revenue A
The Company and its subsidiaries KABRENEB A B 6 553,977 488,052
Share of associates and joint ventures HihBmE N NTI R EDE 3,846,593 5,303,231
4,400,570 5,791,283
Group revenue EE KA 6 553,977 488,052
Cost of sales =R Wi (381,816) (336,312)
Gross profit E A 172,161 151,740
Other income H b g A 8 11,586 24,731
Administrative expenses TEHER (143,122) (146,876)
Distribution and selling expenses DERIEEER (49,623) (89,170)
Other gains and losses B Yoz K g5 18 9 (29,408) (44,252)
Other expenses HiEH 10 (29,135) (45,765)
Finance costs Bh & AR 7R 11 (63,288) (74,880)
Provision for stock of properties MEFERBEEE — (214,315)
Net gain (loss) on fair value changes of WEYMENTFER
investment properties Wz (B18) 558 18 1,697 (169,532)
Share of results of associates b g N 101,140 134,527
Share of results of joint ventures BiEeSebEFEE 5,291 (436)
Loss before taxation % % BT &5 18 13 (22,701) (474,228)
Taxation i 14 (1,318) 112,695
Loss for the year FEEE (24,019) (361,533)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: AR AL EIEFEE (EE)
A
Owners of the Company INVNECTEF SN (34,143) (297,902)
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR SR 10,124 (63,631)
(24,019) (361,533)
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Basic loss per share FIREKRER 16 (0.007) (0.065)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEHEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2017

HZE2017F3A31BILEFE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Loss for the year FEERE (24,019) (361,533)
Other comprehensive expense Hih2HEBEX
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss T & &E#H H 451872 EH
Change in carrying amount of investments in HmTAKEZEREAEEE
equity instruments (62,352) (91,529)
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to AIREEBEFH D RRERR
profit or loss ZIHEH
Exchange differences arising from translation of BMEBIINEBMEEZ
foreign operations [E & =% (164,136) (125,604)
Share of exchange differences of associates and #{HEtZE N Al NEEREY
joint ventures fE X =R (79,129) (64,520)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEHEMEEMAX (305,617) (281,653)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FE>HEMAZBE (329,636) (643,186)
Total comprehensive expense for the year UTATELEFEZEMAS
attributable to: HaEE
Owners of the Company ZN/NSIEZ RSN (292,780) (547,034)
Non-controlling interests JEIE RS RE S (36,856) (96,152)
(329,636) (643,186)

101



102

I'-YIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2017 Annual Report

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M BARRR

At 31 March 2017
201743 HA31H

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 3 FET FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LERE Y& L] 17 1,414,065 1,522,323
Investment properties "HEME 18 1,089,605 1,137,733
Project under development KRB IEE 19 171,200 180,269
Prepaid lease payments JE T & A 20 281,110 303,903
Other intangible assets E{mﬂﬂﬁ/ﬁé 21 43,146 51,935
Interests in associates B N B HE 5 22 1,747,635 1,787,506
Interests in joint ventures ERETEER 23 85,304 84,900
Investments in equity instruments MEZTAKRE 24 451,816 514,222
Other non-current assets HUIEReEE 25 83,097 89,202
5,366,978 5,671,993
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepaid lease payments T HEE IR 20 4,510 4,834
Stock of properties WMERFE 26 1,464,070 1,528,231
Inventories of finished goods BHaEE 23,399 45,795
Loans receivable FEWE K 27 62,100 56,000
Dividend receivable from an associate JE W — B = A ﬂ s 16,061 —
Amounts due from associates JE U BSE & B 3R 28 32,648 30,511
Amount due from a joint venture FElR—E &% ﬁ%m 34 161 —
Trade and other debtors, deposits and 25 &ﬁéﬁﬂ}g”&ﬂgﬁ S-S
prepayments SEENE ! 29 260,166 268,560
Investments in equity instruments held for HIEE gﬁgﬁ—; TAEEE
trading 30 51,700 58,562
Pledged bank deposits EHEMRITER 31 113 152,176
Short term bank deposits WHRITIER 31 184,079 311,988
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRE® 31 315,571 297,163
2,414,578 2,753,820
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE BRI R

At 31 March 2017
201743 HA31H

REEEAHRARF 2017 F3f

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FERT FET
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other creditors and accrued B hEMEMNBRR RES
expenses S 32 263,721 299,387
Amounts due to associates JET B &N BV IE 33 36,666 100,924
Amount due to a joint venture FEN—Bae2h¥EzmE 34 254 125
Amounts due to non-controlling interests TET IEHE R RS TR 1B 35 2,257 2,392
Taxation payable T F 1A 8,306 5,505
Bank and other borrowings — due within —FREBZIRITR
one year HEx 36 1,311,705 1,289,156
1,622,909 1,697,489
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 791,669 1,056,331
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITES & ER % B & & 6,158,647 6,728,324
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEME
Bank and other borrowings — due after —FRINPZRITR
one year H &R 36 446,222 739,954
Amounts due to non-controlling interests JE 1< I ¥ P %5 008 35 94,808 7,177
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEE & 37 726,330 782,773
Deferred income PR AE U A 38 58,617 49,024
Other payables H b AR 32 24,064 26,241
1,350,041 1,605,169
4,808,606 5,123,155
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At 31 March 2017
201743 HA31H

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTERT FHET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRHE
Share capital R& A 39 458,741 457,736
Reserves = 3,550,433 3,841,840
Equity attributable to owners RAGHEE AN EBIhER
of the Company 4,009,174 4,299,576
Non-controlling interests JE 42 A A 25 50(b) 799,432 823,579
TOTAL EQUITY R 4,808,606 5,123,155
The consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 246 N EI100E 246 B 2 i3 & MK E M20175F
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of CHBAEEERZAERKERNZE  LLH T
Directors on 23 June 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: EFERREZHREE:
Lau Tom Ko Yuen Sue Ka Lok
gsR BRR g
Chairman and Managing Director Executive Director

FERABL HITEF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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7 2017 3R

HZE2017F3A31BILEFE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
ARREAAZELER
Share-
Investment based Non-

Share Share  Capital revaluation Other  payment Translation Retained controlling Total

capital premium  reserve reserve  reserves reserve reserve  profits Sub-total  interests  equity

%73 X RE BB XM Ei RE FER L $:

TN HE e EfifRE REREE HEARE & b e 353 BE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

TExT TET TiEx TExT TARL TR FET TET TAX FELT TET

At 1 April 2015 R201564 818 457,736 494,694  (95,368) (53,685) 82,623 2,068 416,638 3,539,328 4,844,034 708,539 5,552,573

Exchange differences arising from &3 & /&40 £ 74 M

translation of foreign EEZEREE

operations — — — — — — (93,083) — (93,083)
Share of exchange differences of 5B 4 AR R A %

associates and joint ventures rEIZERES — - — — — — (64,520) — (64,520
Change in carrying amountof ~— EZ T EREZ KA

investments in equity B2

instruments — — — (91,529) — — — — (91,529)
Loss for the year EFEER — — — — — — — (297,902)  (297,902)

(32,521) (125,604)

— (64,520

— (91,529
(63,631) (361,533)

Total comprehensive expense for 4 € 2 I 1 5 4%

the year — — — (91,529 — — (157,603) (297,902) (547,034) (96,152) (643,186)
Distribution (Note 15) DIk (B 15) - - - — — — —  (22,887)  (22,887) —  (22.887)
Share of other reserves of BIEBENEZEM

associates & — — — — 2,544 — — — 2,544 — 2,544
Recognition of equity-settled TR iR B 4 B AR

share-based payment expense AN HIBH X — — — - — 2,902 — - 2,902 — 2902
Transfer of reserves of subsidiaries 8 % & 2 7] 2 K & — — — — 533 — — (533) - - —
Disposal of partial interest in HERBERRBH

subsidiaries (Note 41) = (Mita1) — — — - — — — 177 177 187,760 187,937
Dividend distributed to MIEERER DR Z

non-controlling interests & — — — — — — — — — (122) (122)
Cash contribution from FEREGZZ RS

non-controlling interests H& — — - - — — — - - 4323 4323
Other contribution from SEERER 2t

non-controlling interests HE - - - - - - — 19840 19840 19231 39,0m

At 31 March 2016 201653 A31H 457,736 494,694  (95368)  (145214) 85,700 4,970 259,035 3,238,023 4,299,576

823,579 5,123,155
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BZE2017F3A318IEFE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
ARRREAZELES
Share-
Investment based Non-

Share Share  Capital revaluation Other  payment Translation Retained controlling Total

capital premium reserve reserve reserves reserve reserve  profits Sub-total  interests  equity

& 1 &8 RE BUR 43 3% 4% EX RE FER £

R e wE EfHE HtREE NERE e b Nt 33 BE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

TEL ThEr TEx THL TER THT TET TArT T TErT TAR

At 1 April 2016 #®2016F4 718 457,736 494,694  (95368)  (145214) 85,700 4,970 259,035 3,238,023 4,299,576 823,579 5,123,155

Exchange differences arising from & ¥ & & 4] % % i &

translation of foreign EZERES

operations — — — — — — (117,377) — (17377 (46,759) (164,136)
Share of exchange differences of #{EB L AT KA

associates and joint ventures rEZERER — — — — - - (79.129) - (9129 — (19129
Change in carrying amountof ~ E&# TAKE KA

investments in equity (ER-d

instruments — — — (62,131) — — — - (62131) (221)  (62,352)
(Loss) profit for the year FEUBR)EMN - - - - - - — (34143 (34143 10724 (24,019

Total comprehensive expense for & & 2 B 37 4%

the year — — — (62,131) — — (196,506)  (34,143)  (292,780) (36,856) (329,636)
Share of other reserves of BUuBENRAZEMD

associates G — — — — (142) — — — (142) — (142)
Issue of shares under share option 18 1% 8 fi% 1 51 2] % 17

scheme i 1n 1,005 846 — — — (220) — — 1,631 — 1,631
Recognition of equity-settled RIRREEE R

share-based payment expense {7 7 (F F B R & — — — — — 889 — — 889 — 889
Transfer of reserves of subsidiaries %[ B2 8] 7 G {5 — — — — 1,398 — — (1,399 — — —
Dividend distributed to MFERER DR Z

non-controlling interests 8] — — — — — — — — — (145) (145)
Cash contribution from FrREG RS

non-controlling interests HE — — — — — — — — — 12,854 12,854
At 31 March 2017 R2017463A318 458,741 495540  (95,368)  (207,345) 86,956 5,639 62,529 3,202,482 4,009,174 799,432 4,808,606
The capital reserve represents the difference between the fair BAEEBEREANEERWENEB AT 2 I EZS
value and the carrying amount of the underlying assets and s A EREE Y AT (B 1E5EEER

liabilities that are attributable to the additional interests in N . = e
subsidiaries acquired by the Group. The amount would be ZEB - ABEBHRNLENE R ZEEX

charged to retained profits upon disposal of interests in the HEAEE(UREEARE)RERE BN A -
subsidiary or the relevant assets, whichever is earlier.

T > = = y: J.': ) == 0\ N7 (B
The investment revaluation reserve represents the changes in RASRERES NS RRBRETERROTE

carrying amount of investments in equity instruments designated BREAHMEERENER TAREZREE
as fair value through other comprehensive income since its initial gE) o
recognition.

HitFEEEERBETFEARKMBE(HED

Other reserves mainly represent statutory reserve which is the

appropriation of certain percentages of profit after taxation of ERBEP BRI ZMER B ZBRBR RN Z
subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China (the BT EiEETEE REEBEATIES
“PRC") as pursuant to the PRC regulations and share of other BB S

reserves of associates and joint ventures.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017

REEEAHRARF 2017 F3f

BZE2017F3A318IEFE
2017 2016
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M 3 FER FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KESE
Loss before taxation & 75 B B5 18 (22,701) (474,228)
Adjustments for: FTFIIE B ETHE
Finance costs & A 63,288 74,880
Loss on disposal of property, plant and FREWE B RE
equipment 2 1 4,478 6,672
Share of results of associates BB ERNRIERE (101,140) (134,527)
Share of results of joint ventures BEEaEhEES (5,291) 436
Release of prepaid lease payments AR TR HE A 5,486 6,031
Amortisation of other intangible assets H b 8 1,481 1,855
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — #7 % - #48 & & 1
ZIE 54,964 89,448
Share-based payment expense AR 7 S~ 5/ 38 2 F X 889 2,902
Provision for stock of properties YT SR E B — 214,315
(Gain) loss on changes in fair value of FIEFEERETIARE
investments in equity instruments held for ZRFEEES
trading (Wez) E1a (5,724) 5177
Net (gain) loss on fair value changes of KEMEANFEBEE
investment properties < (Wz) BEIFRE 18 (1,697) 169,532
Bank and other interest income RIT R E A0 F B YA (7,191) (19,560)
Dividend income from investments in equity FIFEEEZTARE
instruments held for trading Z R B A (2,542) (2,607)
Impairment loss recognised on other H th & W 08 2 RUE &S
receivables 18R 3,163 307
Operating cash flows before movements in A2 EBEESEHH 2 &
working capital HEBRERE (12,537) (59,367)
Increase in stock of properties I EXER gDl (13,516) (14,864)
Decrease in loans receivable FEUE Tk — 18,000
Decrease (increase) in inventories of finished BoEER L G
goods 19,812 (7,771)
Increase in trade and other debtors, deposits B 5 N H A E W BR R
and prepayments HEDSENE Rl (4,091) (11,727)
Increase in amounts due from associates JFE U Bk 22 N m) FRIE B2 N (2,137) (17)
Increase in amount due from a joint venture B —REeEtEREA
E (161) —
Decrease in investments in equity instruments  #H{EE SRR T AKE
held for trading VTR 12,197 37,453
Increase (decrease) in trade and other creditors & 5 % H b FE {~ BR 38 & FE
and accrued expenses &1 7 3238 n O ) 17,544 (35,983)
Increase in amount due to a joint venture B —HEE gD ERIAE
yilt! 136 —
Decrease in amounts due to associates JRE B 42 A B FRIE R A — (14,424)
Cash from (used in) operations TEAEARN KL 7RSS 17,247 (88,700)
The PRC tax paid, net ERHEBIE FE (10,921) (3,107)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING XE(AR)BETE 2
ACTIVITIES ReRE 6,326 (91,807)
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BZE2017F3A318IEFE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FAET

INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEH
Release of pledged bank deposits ABEBEARITER 152,176 408,448
Dividend received from associates B R ER S 50,566 81,735
Bank and other interest income received B UERTT R E A R B U A 7,684 19,854
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and & &%) % - #W 2 &1

equipment FTi8 ;18 4,277 3,772
Dividend received from investments in equity Pl EEERETA

instruments held for trading BEZRE 2,542 2,607
Payment in relation to property, plant and B HEHEREZ

equipment E (64,104) (87,565)
Payment for project under development FERAEE ZMNR (5,202) —
Additions to investment properties AW EIL M (4,660) (4,965)
Additions to pledged bank deposits 2\ IR 1T BKIE N (113) (152,176)
Additions to equity instruments M T BN — (17,581)
Additions to prepaid lease payments TE 44 & FIEE — (3,747)
Additions to other intangible assets Hah R & EENn — (826)
Prepayment for acquisition of properties U B 4 2 7B 1 F00E — 4)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties & & & & %) % Fr 18 218 — 131
Repayment from an associate — R B R ER R — 7,000
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REREEDH2REFR 143,166 256,683
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HZE2017F3A31BILEFE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mESES
New bank and other borrowings raised IR IT R EMmE R 2,588,119 3,133,624
Advance from (repayment of) amounts due to  #ft &5 (1B &) fE 1 IF1ZE IR
non-controlling interests W25 2 FRIE 88,036 (2,497)
Contribution from non-controlling interests IR EREE 12,854 4,323
Proceeds from issue of shares BT 2 P58 1,631 —
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERITREMERK (2,799,977) (3,172,311)
Interest paid BAFE (83,336) (123,548)
Repayment of advance from an associate BE A E D AER (59,808) —
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of 2 <t it B A R JEE IR #E 25
subsidiaries Z BB (145) (122)
Dividends paid EATRE — (22,887)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES ARBEIB 2R FE (252,626) (183,418)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReREBESZEHEER
EQUIVALENTS WA FE (103,134) (18,542)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE IEERRETE
CHANGES (6,367) (8,602)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT HENHEBRSLEEIER
FORWARD A& Al 609,151 636,295
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED HEREBESEEEH
FORWARD #E 499,650 609,151
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND BHeNHEBESEEEBEELE
CASH EQUIVALENTS ks
Short term bank deposits WHRITIER 184,079 311,988
Bank balances and cash WITEFENRRS 315,571 297,163
499,650 609,151
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HZE2017F3A318ILFE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability. Its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the “Corporate Information” section to the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in Note 50.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first
time in the current year:

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 16  Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27  Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements
Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

At

ARREBAREZMALAZHRER
DA EBRONEREBARIAERDA
(TBE = pr]) BT o AR B Z 5 M 3 55 55 DA
REFTZEXMHCRAFRIARER]
—EE R -

RAaMBBRERABT(ETD 2% BT
NBERRBZINEER -

ARG A—MEEERAF - EXTEHWE
NAEBERNRREAELEZERFEH
B HA B 5E 50 o

FERAMIREEITEEMBER
EEA(TEEMBEREER ]

RAFEERN NEBEREROELEES
fag((EEEFEAE])HEMZ T
I REIERT E BB RS &R

EEVERELED HEERLEERE
FE1458
EXRVHRERED WESEEBEER

ERIEACTSD gitme
EEEHENE IR BB
(48 1557)

BB G EAF 165 MBERENZITE
REAGFER S X DB
253858 (K& 1B 5T)

EFGEAFI6H B¥  AEHEED
REAGFER
F 4158 (BB ET)

BB ERE275 BRI BEHRE 28
(#1458 3T) =k

BEEVBRELRNE RETE - ERASH
105 - BEMB®R #BE
EEAFNRHELE
et ERI 285

(#&453])
EBMEREED 2012 204FREFH
(&1&E8]) B ISR F

JZ o s



mt) REEBEBRAAE 2017 F3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A31BILEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs in

the current year has had no material impact on the

Group's financial performance and positions for the

current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:
HKFRS 9 (2014)
HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 22

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments'

Leases?

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Classification and
Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Disclosure Initiative®

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses*

Transfers of Investment
Property'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle®

FERAFEREETEEYHER
%Z*%EU(FE%Mﬁﬁ%EEUJ)
&

RAFERERBEEVBREEN ZHAT R
ETHASERAFERBEFEZMB
RARRAR, LZEFEMBRERME
ZHREEREIBEEATE -

ERMERERZHTREZET
BRMBREER

AEBAYEBEFRATINEB/MERER
ZHEI RRERIBERM GRS ER

EREMBHREEL @I A
F95% (2014 4F)
ERMBHREEL RKERFEHZ
1557 WA RAERERT
EREMBHREELN HE?
F1658

B (BRYBRE MERXZRBN

ZEZE®)-#%E RE
F2258
EEVIEREELER URMDINAHREZ
258 (1B ET) THZAER
e
BAUBRELR RATEVBRS
F45% (KB ET) EAIFE4HR R E

N —HERER
51 75 &5 2 B
FoRERTA

BRMBHREREL REFEEBZRQ
FI0ORRBEGT FRHBEREZ
#E B 55 28 5% Bz EEHER
(B1E37]) T E?

K
BERTERIETHR WSS

B
(AERT)

et ERIE 125 AR EIRER
(BAERT EETRIREE
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i3
o

Al 405 EERIKEME'
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o =x of
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
or 1 January 2018, as appropriate

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets and
is early adopted by the Group with a date of initial
application on 1 April 2014. HKFRS 9 was subsequently
amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014
mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI")
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

FERAFEREBTEEYHER
%Z*%EU(FE%Mﬁﬁ%EEUJ)
&

EEMERERZHTREBT
B B % R 2 A ()

! R2018F 1 ATHS ARz 2F A4

2 H2019F 1 AMB SN EHB 2 2FHM4E
£y

© RARBEAMRZERBZEMNE
"

4 H2017F1AVB S ERB 2 2FHM4E
£y

s 2017118 520181 A18 (B AH)
AR R IR 2 2 F B £ X

BEBMBHRE
[£@T A

F2009 4 78 5 2 B 76 B 75 3R 5 X BI E 95%
SlEEHeRmEES ERAEZHBETE
EAEBREBERMIN2014F4H1HE
RIER - BAV B HmEERFIFHEZER
2010FF ER BT - MMA S BB ED B R
EARKIEERITEZHTE - R2013F#
*/H RMABE—RE RIS
cR2014F M2 BB B MELERSE
97)i73f1l,%&{|§ﬂﬁ&7?'<£xﬂu/\a)ﬁ%@@
BEEZBRERERDZEAE THEGR
TEASAZAFEBEFAEME2AKE]
(BRAFEBEFAEMEZAYNE]D A2
Al -\ BERFEREELEBRE -

%2 A 595K (2014 )
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments
(Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014), other than those
relating to classification and measurement of financial
assets covered in HKFRS 9 (2009) which has been early
adopted by the Group and has chosen 1 April 2014 as its
date of initial application (i.e. the date on which the Group
has reassessed the classification of its financial assets in
accordance with requirements of HKFRS 9 (2009)), are
described below:

o In addition to the requirements of HKFRS 9 (2009),
debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount of outstanding, are measured at
FVTOCL.

e With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or
loss, HKFRS 9 (2014) requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of
financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

FERAFEREETEEYHER
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments
(Continued)

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 (2014) requires an expected credit loss
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. In other words, it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness
test has been overhauled and replaced with the
principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an
entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 (2014)
in the future (excluding the scope of HKFRS 9 (2009) that
has been early adopted by the Group with a date of initial
application on 1 April 2014) may have impact on the
amounts reported in respect of the Group's financial assets
and financial liabilities. Regarding the Group's financial
assets, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

2.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when "control’
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15
to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material
impact on the amounts reported and disclosures made in
the Group's consolidated financial statements. However, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of HKFRS 15 until a detailed review has been
completed.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid
lease payments as investing cash flows in relation to
leasehold lands for owned use and those classified as
investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Under
the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing cash flows.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold
lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of
HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification
of these assets depending on whether the Group presents
right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16. As at 31 March 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$26,495,000 as
disclosed in Note 45(a).

Except as described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new or revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“the Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("Cco").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments and investment properties which are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

J Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's relevant
components of equity including reserves and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted after re-attribution of the relevant
equity component, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 (2009) or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
values, with certain exemptions.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liguidation may be initially measured either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in
progress as described below) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group'’s
accounting policy. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties include land held for undetermined
future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose, and land under development for
future use as investment property.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment property are included in profit
or loss for the period in which they arise.

When an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end
of owner-occupation, the carrying amount of the property
at the date of transfer is at fair value.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

An investment property carried at fair value is transferred
to properties for sales when there is a change in use
evidenced by commencement of development with a view
to sale of the relevant properties. The fair value of the
property at the date of transfer is the deemed cost of the
property for its subsequent accounting in accordance with
HKAS 2 Inventories.

Land under development for rentals and/or capital
appreciation as investment properties are recognised and
classified as investment properties upon the
commencement of land leveling process after the intended
purpose of the land development can be determined and
transferred from project under development. Construction
costs incurred for development are capitalised as part of
the carrying amount of the land under development. Land
under development is measured at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. Any difference between the fair
value of the land under development and its carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Project under development

Project under development are carried in the consolidated
financial statements at cost less any identified impairment
loss. Cost of project under development includes, where
appropriate, relevant development costs and borrowing
cost capitalised. No depreciation is provided for project
under development.

Project under development are transferred at the carrying
value to stock of properties under development for sale or
property, plant and equipment or investment properties,
as appropriate, when the intended purpose of the land
development can be determined upon commencement of
land leveling process.

Stock of properties

Stock of completed properties is stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and stock of properties under
development for sale is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value less applicable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to complete. Cost of stock of properties
is calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to sale proceeds
received after the end of the reporting period, or, if not
yet sold after the end of the reporting period, by
management estimates based on prevailing market
condition. The relevant costs include acquisition costs,
development expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised and
other direct costs attributable to such properties.

Stock of properties is transferred at fair value to investment
properties upon the commencement of a lease as evidence
for a change in use.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
When the Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in
the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group's investment in an associate or
a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained interest
is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9 (2009). The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at
the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required if
that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement
to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

TESBEE)

RBELAARGELEECZRE (H)

MAEETBEHBME AR BEBEEATEN
FREELXEBEERREE REE
REERETZ22MERAR MELZ
WaEERERER MAKERER
R ENRAERE e AL IREE
BREREE AAXAKEENZARAYF
BEFEFREERZ MRATFEERER
RIEE B M 5 & 2RI F 95 (2009F ) i
NEERBEZAFEE - BERARXRAE
CERKIERAEDAER ZEmELRT
MREEEMHERERRHEELEZ
HEAREMEREAATEERZER &
RETHEZBMEARRAELEZ HE
AEEFAR -BE AKESKBEHR
HitzEB ST oBE RARHE & DER
RZBESBEAR EREZBENA
EECXERLWERMCEERAGEMR
EZEEMER Al BEAEMEZEK
APERZBEARXEELEZRES
REFHDBEIHEEHREELABZIRA
oERIERAREER  AEEIERE
AERHERENFEINBENEESH

B o
=

N
Q

s
A

BARZRERARAELEINE
SEOCETRERARBERTZR
B AR IR B OK - R 1R
WA RE BT REN AT EE-

35"

>

M

i

L

e
B



C) RELEMER AT 2017 1R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A31BILEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Other intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effective of any changes in estimate being accounted for
on a prospective basis. intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost
less any subsequently accumulated impairment losses (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period
when the asset is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories, including liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG") and
compressed natural gas (“CNG") for sales, are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of
inventories are determined using the weighted average
cost method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

On initial recognition, the Group classifies its financial
assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost
or fair value, depending on its business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method and net of any
impairment loss, if:

. the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise,
on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets other than those classified as financial
assets measured at amortised cost are classified as
measured at fair value, with all changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss, except as stated below.

For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, the Group may elect at initial recognition, on an
instrument by instrument basis, to present gains and losses
in other comprehensive income (“OCI"). For such
investments measured at FVTOCI, gains and losses are
never reclassified to profit or loss, and no impairment is
recognised in profit or loss. Dividends earned from such
investments are recognised in profit or loss, unless the
dividend clearly represents a repayment of part of the cost
of the investment.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL") and FVTOCI, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

J breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

J it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
debtors, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade debtors, loans receivable and amounts
due from associates, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other creditors,
amount(s) due to associates/a joint venture/non-controlling
interests, other payables and bank and other borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset. Other than investment
properties measured under fair value model, such cost are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In the
event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Revenue from distribution of LPG and CNG is recognised
when the goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from sale of completed properties is recognised
upon the execution of binding sales agreements and
delivery of the properties. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to this stage are included in
the current liabilities.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group's right to receive payment has been established.

Income from port, port logistics and supporting services is
recognised when the respective services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised
as an expense or capitalised in contracts in progress,
where appropriate, when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated income statement because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

FTESHEE(E)
R SR )2 S
T2 4 6t FOR B 5 8 (62 5 % 4 A

TEE) RERERRKBRGE 2 KE
EETREREMAERZEZHAER

B MRARY B EERANER ZE
K(GER) °
BiiE

HIBFE IR B BIA RIEERIE

WEFENBIB T IR A FE ERB G F
Ho ERBUEMELRE WK P FT®RIR
BAaEMI TR TERETEREER
tEERRBBRAXAMBALZIEES - I
BRBEXTHERRIMBR2EE - A&
B ABBEEENERREHTEND
BHERELERM 2R ETHE -

ELERBEDIRGEMBREEEREBER
EE Rt E R R A AR E 2 R =
BHHER - ECHEAGRE SR A ER
HENEZEER MECHEEERATIR

AR AT F AR ERENE 2 BRBA
P HAMEUNRBEREZEER - B8R
—HEHR % AEBXEEBE AR

AP HEREMEE R BB B 2B
ZEEMIAZEBERN N T IAXEES
wE AT eRAREEERARE -



140

I'-YIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2017 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A318ILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
interests in associates and joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and retranslated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period/
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when
the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share-based payment reserve. When the share options are
exercised, the amount previously recognised in share-
based payment reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

(a) Deferred tax liability recognised in respect of
fair value adjustments on investment
properties
As described in Note 3, for the purpose of measuring
deferred tax for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(a) Deferred tax liability recognised in respect of
fair value adjustments on investment
properties (Continued)

Based on the above basis, the directors have
reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios
and concluded that the deferred tax consequences in
respect of investment properties are assessed based
on the best estimate of the tax consequence upon
sale of the properties directly or sale through entities
holding these properties or consume substantially
over time.

For the leasehold land and buildings which were
classified as investment properties, these properties
are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on the leasehold land
and buildings, the directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of the
leasehold land and buildings measured using the fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted.

Deferred tax consequences in respect of the
developed land and land under development are
assessed based on the best estimate of the tax
consequence upon sale of the properties directly or
sale through entities holding these properties. For
those properties which would be subject to the PRC
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT"”) upon disposal,
deferred tax on the temporary difference between
the tax base and their carrying amounts would
include PRC LAT in addition to enterprise income tax.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(a) Deferred tax liability recognised in respect of
fair value adjustments on investment
properties (Continued)

The relevant amount of potential PRC LAT had been
recognised as a deferred tax liability based on the
above judgment. The amount of PRC LAT of
developed land and land under development as at
31 March 2017 is approximately HK$203,203,000
(2016: HK$218,119,000).

(b) Project under development
Development costs of project under development
include, where appropriate, relevant development
costs and borrowing cost capitalised. Upon
commencement of land leveling process, the
intended purpose of the land development can be
determined and relevant project development costs
will be transferred at the carrying value to (1)
properties under development for sale if the
properties are for sales purpose during the ordinary
course of business; (2) property, plant and equipment
if the properties are for own use; or (3) investment
properties if the properties are held for rentals and/
or capital appreciation.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND 4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(c) Judgments on the cost and completion date
of construction-in-progress
The construction of port facilities involves various
points in time and different parts of the construction
projects to complete and reach to its intended use.
The Group transfers the construction-in-progress to
relevant categories of property, plant and equipment
upon the completion of respective parts of the port
facilities and obtains approval from the authorities
for the rights to operate. Management considers the
approval by authorities for the rights to operate is an
activity necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for
its intended use.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

(a) Fair value measurements and valuation
processes
Some of the Group's assets are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating
the fair value of an asset, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
an independent qualified professional valuer to
perform the valuation. The management of the
Company works closely with the valuer to establish
the appropriate valuation methodology, valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(a) Fair value measurements and valuation
processes (Continued)
The Group uses valuation techniques that include
inputs which are not based on observable market
data to estimate the fair value of certain types of
financial instruments. Notes 18, 24 and 42(c) provide
detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets.

(b) Provision for stock of properties
In assessing the net realisable value of stock of
properties, the Groups engages qualified professional
valuer to provide information on market comparable
samples used in the assessment. The management of
the Company applies adjustment factors on market
comparable samples used in valuation of completed
properties held for sale and properties under
development for sale; estimates further costs to be
expended for the development of properties under
development for sale by reference of development
costs expended for formed land, and determines
discount rate used in net present value calculation of
stock of properties.

The Group recognises provision for stock of
properties according to net realisable value of the
stock of properties. Provision for stock of properties
is required to be recognised when there is sign
showing that the net realisable value is lower than
the carrying value. Recognition of net realisable value
involves judgment and estimation.

If the result of new estimation differs from current
estimation, such difference will impact the carrying
value of stock of properties for the corresponding
period.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(c) PRCLAT
The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC which has
been included in income tax expense of the Group.
However, the Group has not finalised its LAT returns
with the tax authorities for certain of its property
development projects. Accordingly, significant
judgment is required in determining the amount of
land appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover the
carrying amount of its assets.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
expense and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made. As at 31 March
2017, the carrying amount of LAT provision (included
in deferred tax liabilities) was approximately
HK$392,094,000 (2016: HK$421,147,000).

(d) Deferred tax asset
At 31 March 2017, no deferred tax asset in relation
to unused tax losses of HK$879 million (2016:
HK$814 million) has been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position due to
unpredictability of future profit streams of those
subsidiaries. In cases where the actual future profits
generated by those subsidiaries are more than
expected, a material deferred tax credit would be
recognised in the consolidated income statement in
the period in which the tax losses are utilised.
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5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. EXEREE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be AREEEHEERN UEERBABEELE
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the 2% RBEABEBLEELMERAESE 5
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the fRERFEER AL R - ANE B 2 BEE KA S
debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy EEHME -
remains unchanged from prior year.
rEEZERARBRREHNKReREES
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, BEHEBERZZFEHE(BENE3335K36
which comprises the borrowings disclosed in Notes 33, 35 WEZEFR)RARNTERE A ZEHER
and 36, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity (BEDEITRA N Z A -
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and various reserves. RAABERTTEHBMAERERE - ERIER
Z—HD ERFERELRAKNEARBEHEEGHE
The directors of the Company review the capital structure BARAZER AEEB@BBIRMAKRE %
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider TEHERORETHERELREEE  F
the cost of capital and their associated risks thereto. The BT EREREERIEE-
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.
REVENUE 6. WA
Revenue is analysed as follows: WAZDTIT -
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Sale of properties HEME 867 13,417
Sale of LPG and CNG products HEBRELABARBEHERAR
E dh 167,325 227,257
Income from port related services 7B O M3 RS WA 365,306 223,203
Property rental and related income M e RABBIKA 9,952 11,196
Interest income from loans receivable EWE R 2 F 2 HA 7,985 10,372
Dividend income from investments in equity #FFEEREZ T EKREZKRE
instruments held for trading WA 2,542 2,607
553,977 488,052
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The operating segments of the Group are determined
based on information reported to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker (the Managing Director of the
Company) for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

The information focuses more specifically on the strategic
operation and development of each business unit and its
performance is evaluated through organising business
units with similar economic characteristics into an
operating segment.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

Paul Y. Engineering — Building construction, civil
Group engineering, development
management, project
management, facilities and asset
management services and
investment in properties

Ports development — Development of ports facilities
and ports related properties

Ports and logistics ~ — Operation of ports, LPG and CNG
products and logistics businesses

Property — Development, investment, sale
and leasing of real estate
properties, developed land, land
under development and projects
under development

Treasury — Provision of credit services and
securities trading
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Both ports and logistics segment and property segment
include a number of different operations in various cities
within the PRC, each of which is considered as a separate
business unit by the Managing Director of the Company.
For segment reporting purpose, these individual business
units have been aggregated into reportable segments
according to the nature and similarity of their products
and services, the customer type or class, the method of
products distribution or providing services, and the
regulatory environment, which give rise to a more
meaningful presentation.

The Managing Director of the Company assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on a
measure of earnings or loss before interest expense and
tax (“EBIT or LBIT”) and earnings or loss before interest
expense, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA or
LBITDA").

7 BE R (&)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by operating segment:

For the year ended 31 March 2017

7. 7HEH (&)

DR AR &

ATRASERAREEREEDHE D
Z

HZE2017F3 831 B ILFE

Paul Y. Ports Segment

Engineering Ports and total and

Group  development  logistics Property Treasury consolidated

RE BOR ABE

EBX5H BORR iR mE E#% RizE

HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

FTER FTER FTER TExT TER TER

REVENUE ['ON — — 532,631 10,819 10,527 553,977
EBITDA (LBITDA) EBITDA (LBITDA) 29,015 - 171,035 (2,919) 20,513 217,644
Depreciation and amortisation* 7 & J% # i * — —  (49,636) (6,741) (68) (56,445)
Segment results — EBIT (LBIT) 43 D £ &5 —EBIT (LBIT) 29,015 — 121,399 (9,660) 20,445 161,199
Corporate and other expenses** 7> % K H fth f 5% ** (120,612)
Finance costs B & AN (63,288)
Loss before taxation B AT EE (22,701)
Taxation f1E (1,318)
Loss for the year FEBE (24,019)
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

7.

o EE R (E)
DERAREE (E)
HZE2016F3 831 HILFE

Paul Y. Ports Segment

Engineering Ports and total and

Group development logistics Property ~ Treasury  consolidated

®% BOR HEa

e 3] BOEE iR mE &% Kiza

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET TET TER FET

REVENUE ['ON — — 450,460 24,613 12,979 488,052
EBITDA (LBITDA) EBITDA (LBITDA) 27,241 — 179,117 (401,480) 23,826 (171,296)
Depreciation and amortisation* 47 & I # $* — — (83,337) (7,963) 3) (91,303)
Segment results — EBIT (LBIT) 43 ZD X 45 —EBIT(LBIT) 27,241 — 95,780  (409,443) 23,823 (262,599)
Corporate and other expenses** 1% J H ) f 57 ** (136,749)
Finance costs B & AN (74,880)
Loss before taxation M5 A0 B 18 (474,228)
Taxation | 112,695
Loss for the year FEBE (361,533)
* Including depreciation of property, plant and equipment and * BEDEX - BERRRETERAMEEEE

amortisation of other intangible assets.

*x Including acquisition-related costs for potential projects of
approximately HK$21,354,000 (2016: HK$32,058,000) and net
exchange loss of HK$28,139,000 (2016: HK$33,041,000).

> BEHIREBEEBEEBZRAEY
21,354,000 7T (2016 : 32,058,000 7T )
N FE X &5 18 JF $128,139,000/8 T (2016 :
33,041,000/ 7T) °
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by operating segment:

At 31 March 2017

7. TDERPER (F)
THEERAEE

WTRAKEEERBBERE

Z

R2017F3A31H

R E )

Paul Y. Ports Segment
Engineering Ports and total and
Group development logistics Property Treasury consolidated
RE B0 DEEETR
EXEH BOBRE RYUR LES E#% wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THExT FTHExT TFERT TFTER FERT
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 554,369 358,916 3,374,608 3,100,606 378,654 7,767,153
Unallocated assets RKOWEE 14,403
Consolidated total assets HABEE 7,781,556
LIABILITIES 8f&
Segment liabilities NHBE — — 1,157,660 1,131,743 671,058 2,960,461
Unallocated liabilities SicBE 12,489
Consolidated total liabilities LAEaE

2,972,950
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. 7EER(E)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) TEENEE(E)
At 31 March 2016 201653 A31H
Paul Y. Ports Segment
Engineering Ports and total and
Group development  logistics ~ Property Treasury consolidated
REE &0 DEEF R
BEEHE EOZER kYR ES & 75 )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FTExT TFTET FTERX FET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 529,752 421,677 3,580,709 3,212,137 667,445 8,411,720
Unallocated assets RKOLEE 14,093
Consolidated total assets LABEE 8,425,813
LIABILITIES &aE
Segment liabilities DEEE — — 1,251,665 1,173,550 863,654 3,288,869
Unallocated liabilities KOBLEE 13,789
Consolidated total liabilities %R & 4@ & &

Segment assets and liabilities comprise assets and liabilities
of the operating subsidiaries, as well as interests in
associates, joint ventures and investments in equity
instruments that are engaged in relevant segmental
businesses. Accordingly, segment assets exclude corporate
assets which are mainly bank balances and cash and other
receivables, and segment liabilities exclude corporate
liabilities which are mainly other payables.

For the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance, deferred tax liabilities are allocated
to segment liabilities but the related deferred tax credit/
charge are not reported to the Managing Director of the
Company as part of segment results.

3,302,658

7

REMBRARAZEENRAE
RELENERTARE ZE
CHHBEETERRIERRITAEFLR
i&ﬁi\ﬂﬂr‘i%ﬂﬁ AZEEE Moaa
EAITEREIZREMENER 2EEEA

& o

DHEERBBEERREMRBY IALEH
A K é‘%%

>”$D)N

E‘I
U>

REBERIERDFREFGEZBEH

BEEBRBRBERAIEESMAE B8
BRI IBE A X TMERD B XE
BV R ER D AR R R ARE 2 ]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR
For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A31BILEFE

7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Other information

The following is an analysis of the Group’s other
information by operating segment:

For the year ended 31 March 2017

C) RELEMER AT 2017 1R

7. 7HEH (&)
Hitt &R

T& AL
P

fou =)

—(U\A/ ~\ 37

IR AN EEEMBERZ

HZE2017F3 831 B ILFE

Paul Y. Ports
Engineering Ports and
Group development logistics Property Treasury Consolidated
RE B0
BEKE BOBRRE RUR mE E% TE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THER TEx FEx TFTExT FER TR
Amounts included in the measure of 3t AL BLEHHHE
segment results or segment EfEzRE:
assets:
Additions to non-current assets other ~ EEIFREEE (L /@
than financial instruments T AR - — 37,725 12,290 - 50,015
Release of prepaid lease payments HEENEETE — — 5,486 — — 5,486
Impairment loss recognised on other B FIE 2 REEB
receivables BER — — 3,163 — — 3,163
Reversal of bad debt written off O B MiE 2 SR - — 648 — — 648
Loss on disposal of property, plantand 2 B ¥ % « ##) & R &
equipment ZER - — 218 2292 - 4,478
Bank and other interest income f R1TRE M A S HA — — 1,346 728 5,106 7,180
Unallocated interest income DR R B A 1
7,191
Interests in associates R NETE 461,900 — 1,285,735 — — 1,747,635
Interests in joint ventures AEEER - — — 85304 - 85,304
Share of results of associates BRBENREE 29,015 — 72,125 — — 101,140
Share of results of joint ventures BRAEEEE — — — 5,291 — 5,291
Gain on changes in fair value of FIEEERRTARE
investments in equity instruments ZATEAEZHNE
held for trading — — — — 5,724 5,724
Amounts regularly provided tothe THETIELERFE
chief operating decision maker BEERTADHE
but not included in the measure BItB2FE:
of segment results:
Finance costs g N — — 41,571 3,281 18,436 63,288
Taxation charge (credit) BMEXH(EA) — - 7,045  (5919) 192 1,318
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. DEER(E)
Other information (Continued) Ha &R (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2016 BHZE2016F3A31HIEFE
Paul Y. Ports
Engineering Ports and
Group  development logistics ~ Property ~ Treasury  Consolidated
R B0
BEEE BOER  RYR ES B mAa
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT  FExT TFTET  FER TET
Amounts included in the measure of 3t A D MEEHH BE
segment results or segment EfE&zHE
assets:
Additions to non-current assets other ~ EEIERBEE (S8
than financial instruments TEBRIIN — — 100,640 10,296 — 110,936
Release of prepaid lease payments HEENEETE — — 6,031 — — 6,031
Impairment loss recognised on other B FIE 2 REEB
receivables BER — — 307 — — 307
Reversal of bad debt written off O B MiE 2 SR — — 945 — — 945
Loss on disposal of property, plantand 2 B ¥ % « ## & R &
equipment ZEE — — 6,655 17 - 6,672
Provision for stock of properties MEFERERE — — — 214315 — 214,315
Bank and other interest income f R1TRE M A S HA — — 1,716 975 16,856 19,547
Unallocated interest income DR RS WA 13
19,560
Interests in associates BeE N AR 438,144 — 1,349,362 — — 1,787,506
Interests in joint ventures RELERER — — — 84,900 — 84,900
Share of results of associates BRBENREE 27,241 — 107,286 — — 134,527
Share of results of joint ventures BEALOYEES — — . (436) - (436)
Loss on changes in fair value of BEEERETARE
investments in equity instruments ZATEEEHER
held for trading — — — — 5177 5,177
Amounts regularly provided tothe THETIELERFE
chief operating decision maker BEERTADHE
but not included in the measure BItB2FE:
of segment results:
Finance costs Bh& R — — 45,521 10,646 18,713 74,880
Taxation charge (credit) BB L (BN — — 7,930 (120,382) (243) (112,695)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong
and the PRC other than Hong Kong.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue by
geographical market based on location of customers,
irrespective of the origin of the goods/services:

7 BE R (&)

i & & B

AEBZEBITBZUREERTE(TE
BEE) -

TERA/AEEBRARME TS E H (RIE
EPHMAEME - T Edm/ R RIR M)
Z o

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHER FAT

Hong Kong & 7,135 8,574
The PRC other than Hong Kong FE(TBRERE) 543,760 475,400
Others Hib 3,082 4,078
553,977 488,052

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets excluding financial instruments, analysed by
the geographical location of assets:

NI RERBDEERMEREEZAEN
B3O (TEBEZRIR) 20 :

Non-current
assets excluding financial

instruments
(RBEE(FTEBESMIA)
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Hong Kong a5 466,368 444,120
The PRC other than Hong Kong FE(TBRERE) 4,448,794 4,713,651
4,915,162 5,157,771




162

I'-YIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2017 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A318ILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about major customers

For the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, there is no
customer who individually contributed more than 10% of

7 BE R (&)

ITREFZEHR

NEE2017E K2016E3A31H IFEE -
MEBANEPEAEBE ZEZRABRBA

total revenue of the Group. 10% °
8. OTHER INCOME 8. HfwA
Other income includes: Hbg A B 4%
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Bank and other interest income AT R EAMF 2 U A 7,191 19,560
Rental income from short term leasing of RHMEEMEFE Z2HRA
stock of properties 3,283 4,082
9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HMWEREE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of BEEERGTAREZAT
investments in equity instruments held BEZEH K= (FHE)
for trading 5,724 (5,177)
Impairment loss recognised on other H th [l W 3R IE 2 BB B 1R R R
receivables (3,163) (307)
Reversal of bad debt written off B2 MsE v =R 648 945
Net exchange loss bE B BT (28,139) (33,041)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and BREME BMERE2EE
equipment (4,478) (6,672)
(29,408) (44,252)
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REEEAHRARF 2017 F3f

BZE2017F3A318IEFE
10. OTHER EXPENSES 10. HitE A
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FAT
Acquisition-related costs for potential £ U BE S T 18 B MBRE 2 Ak AN
projects 21,354 32,058
Net development expenses for resort project B EHRIEE 2 A% & B35
in the PRC 7,781 13,707
29,135 45,765
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. MERE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FET
Borrowing costs on: BERA :
Bank borrowings RITIER 77,437 89,054
Amounts due to associates JE °H BSk & A R FRIE 1,474 7,775
Amounts due to non-controlling interests B~ FE 4 H 25 A 1,001 115
Imputed interest expense on other payables Hth fEBE R 2 #HE | 25 1,079 1,303
Other borrowings HiER 2,475 3,237
83,466 101,484
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BEBRERME - IR
construction in progress BEANZERIREER
(included in property, plant and s
equipment) (8,601) (17,598)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIERERMERE 2 H#
properties under development for HEEEYWEERZEE
sale (included in stock of properties) (8,375) (7,147)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIEMERREMEER
investment properties under ¢
development (3,202) (1,859)
63,288 74,880
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11. FINANCE COSTS (CONTINUED)

The capitalised borrowing costs represent the borrowing
costs incurred by the entities on borrowings whose funds
were specifically invested in the project and properties

during the year.

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the five

(2016: six) directors are as follows:

1. BEKX (&)

BABAZEBEERAEEER
ZIEERA MERNBREIEE
RIBEE k-

BEREL
AR EHRE

12. %? "BETHRAEREESM

(@) EERREITRAENE

ENKEMNARQ06: NB)ES
BEAZBEOT

FAMBEMNETRAETMME

None of the directors has waived any emoluments (2016 : £&) o
during the year (2016: Nil).
Salaries Retirement Share-
and benefit based
other Discretionary scheme payment
Name of directors EEnE Fees benefits bonus contribution  expense Total
BUR 5
MR BHREN XZARE
e Higw (SRR HE L3 ZHX Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT THET THERT TFHER
2017
Executive director BITES
Lau Tom Ko Yuen** Bl R ** 437 5,281 629 528 430 7,305
Non-executive director FHTES
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan* PR 2 ik * 364 419 — 6 — 789
Independent non-executive BYEHITES
directors
Chan Shu Kin PR 1 B2 788 — — — — 788
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa EER 536 — — — — 536
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond i) 599 — — — — 599
2,724 5,700 629 534 430 10,017
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

12.

EE BRETHRAEREEM
% (&)

() EERBESTHRAEME (&)

Salaries Retirement Share-
and benefit based
other  Discretionary scheme  payment
Name of directors EEHg Fees benefits bonus  contribution  expense Total
LA P& 17
H R BAREHN  ZfRE
we HthEw By 54T BRI 2R CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THET FHET FAT FAT FATL THERT
2016
Executive directors BITES
Lau Tom Ko Yuen** = 437 5,088 168 509 1,368 7,570
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan* BRI 364 1,200 — 18 — 1,582
Independent non-executive BYEHITES
directors
Chan Shu Kin R 151 B2 788 — — — — 788
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa EHER 536 — — — — 536
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond RE—m 599 — — — — 599
Li Chang An* TELR* 202 — — — — 202
2,926 6,288 168 527 1,368 11,277

The executive director(s)’ emoluments shown above
are mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The non-executive and independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above are mainly for
their services as directors of the Company.

EXFRERITEZIE  TERKE
ERERARARAEEEHREM
B AR i -

EXRRBFERITRBLIFNITE
S TER/RNFER/RARAES
R A AR A o
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen is also the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company (which is
equivalent to Chief Executive) and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chairman and Managing Director.

Redesignated as non-executive director with effect from 22
July 2016 and resigned with effect from 25 April 2017.

* Retired during the year ended 31 March 2016.

* The discretionary bonus is an incentive based on individual
performance. For the year ended 31 March 2017, a
discretionary bonus amounting to HK$629,000 has been
determined, of which HK$440,000 had been paid in cash
and HK$189,000 had been accrued (not yet paid) as at 31
March 2017. For the year ended 31 March 2016, a
discretionary bonus amounting to HK$168,000 had been

determined and accrued (not yet paid) as at 31 March 2016.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the
year included one director (2016: two directors) of
the Company, details of whose emoluments are set
out in Note 12(a) above.

The aggregate emoluments of the remaining four
(2016: three) highest paid individuals, who are
employees of the Group, are as follows:

12.EF BRTRAEREEMH
% (&)

(a)

(b)

ESRESITHRAEMS (F)

FERELEMA/ARB IR RAH
(HERZSTHRAER)  EXAHKE
MHMEeBRAEERTRREHIE
HRBZHE

# AERIERITES  H20165F7H22
H#EAEd - BB EE R2017F 4825
B4 -

* REBE201653A31HIEFERE -

= EIE LT TH R R A B R R M E K
B - DB EHE2017E3A318 14
& 2 By 15 7 41629,0008 7T - B R
201743 A31H - 440,000/ L 2 LA
© X % 189,0007 7T B B 17 M 4 K
Xfte BEFHE2016%F3A318 IF
FEZBISIEL168,0008 T W E R
2016 F 331 HERME M AT »

BEMWE

REBAREELMNSESHAESD
BARNAR —BEEQ06: MEBE
) HB e B0 E XM iE12) kT
%zo

ERBEAEBEREE 2W% (2016 =
B HFABEZBMeNT

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THETT

Salaries and other benefits FekEMER 13,304 11,309
Discretionary bonus (note) BB TELL (MY 7) 1,533 660
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R 4K 1@ F| 5+ 21 4 2 280 254
Share-based payment expense LARE 1 ST 318 2 B X 585 1,534
15,702 13,757
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

% (&)

C) RELEMER AT 2017 1R

12.E BETHRAEREEM

(b) BEM= (&)

e

MeRAmT

Number of employees

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 (note)

HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 (note)

1,500,001 7% 7T % 2,000,000
BT

5,500,001 %8 7T % 6,000,000
A& TL (Hf aE)

6,000,001 & 7T £ 6,500,000
A7 (M at)

BEAR

2017 2016
2 1
1* 1
1* 1
4 3

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals and
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

note: For the year ended 31 March 2017, an aggregate amount

of discretionary bonus of HK$1,196,000 has been

determined, of which HK$755,000 had been paid in cash
and HK$441,000 had been accrued (not yet paid) to
members of senior management as at 31 March 2017. For
the year ended 31 March 2016, an aggregate amount of
discretionary bonus of HK$392,000 had been determined
and accrued (not yet paid) to members of senior
management as at 31 March 2016.

The above emoluments represent the remuneration paid/
payable to members of senior management (excluding
directors) classified by band of emoluments.

FR AEBEYERAAUEEHAS
REEXNMEAERMARSEE
ERIMARNEE R 2 52E) - RE QB
Biw(E -

Btat B E2017%43831BILFE - BEF

— % 48 %8 /51,196,000 7T 2 B 15 TE
41 - % 201743 A31 8 + 755,000
BB IR & X %441,0008 T B
ERENAINTTERERBAS -
HE216F3A31BILFE BEET
— 5 5392,0008 0 2 BIBIEAL -
I ER2016E3 A31BFEREMEH A X
RHFa@EEA-

LBl EEMERE S 2B
ENESREREAETREBEER)Z
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BZE2017F3A318IEFE
13. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 13. BRBLATE B
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FAT
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after & %4 7 &5 8 2 H1 5 -
charging:
Amortisation of other intangible assets H b & = 5
(note (a) below) (FX Kt at(a) 1,481 1,855
Auditor’s remuneration ZELRT B &
— Audit services — ZE R 3,318 3,345
— Non-audit services — R 1,422 1,500
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense R AE R 2 FERK A
(including provision for stock of properties) (8 &Y% 7 &R B & #) 137,436 381,187
Depreciation of property, plant and M- B RREZITE
equipment (note (b) below) (FX Bt aEb) 54,964 89,448
Operating lease rentals in respect of: wEHERS
Land and premises T R TF 10,828 11,965
Plant and machinery A K2 B8 A 2,089 2,237
Release of prepaid lease payments AN EERE 5,486 6,031
Staff costs (note (c) below) BIRA(FXH L) 180,819 171,871
and after crediting: RIAREN
Dividend income from investments in equity F{FEEHEFZ T ALK E
instruments held for trading B 8 A 2,542 2,607
Rental income under operating leases in REMERLEREZH I
respect of investment properties, net of A - BBk % $52,780,000
outgoings of HK$2,780,000 7571 (2016 : 2,902,000/ 7T)
(2016: HK$2,902,000) 7,172 8,294
Total interest income (included in revenue £ F S WA (B85 R A K
and other income) HaW AA) 15,176 29,932
Government grants recognised £ W SR BT # 8L (8 X B At (d)

(note (d) below) 21,440 20,231
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13.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED)

notes:

(a) Amortisation of other intangible assets

13. BR®L A& 1R (&)
i

(@) HuEPEEH#IH

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Amount provided for the year FEEHS 1,526 1,867
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of properties W BIEBERYEFEIHEE
under development for sale (included in stock EEMEERNZHE
of properties) (45) (12)
1,481 1,855
(b)  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (b) MF BHMERREINE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Amount provided for the year FERER 55,224 89,850
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of properties B BIEBRERYEFEZMH
under development for sale (included in stock HEEEMEERNZ BEE
of properties) (146) (265)
Amount capitalised in respect of construction in BIERERME - HW &
progress (included in property, plant and BREBEBANZERIREER
equipment) 2 ER (66) (88)
Amount capitalised in respect of investment BUERBRREMEER
properties under development ¢l (48) (49)
54,964 89,448
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13. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 13. RV ATE 18 (8])

notes: (continued)

(@

Kiat - (%)

Staff costs (0 BIKXK
2017 2016
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FET
Directors’ emoluments (Note 12(a)) BERME (Hat12() 10,017 11,277
Other staff costs: Hith 8 TR -
Salaries and other benefits R EH AR 171,713 169,575
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRAE B & S 4K 6,024 6,606
Share-based payment expense AR B2 A X 459 1,534
188,213 188,992
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of properties B BIEBERMEFEZHLE
under development for sale (included in stock EEWMEERZHE
of properties) (3,521) (3,430)
Amount capitalised in respect of construction in BIEB SR E - W R E
progress (included in property, plant and NZEREIRERZHE
equipment) (2,067) (11,932)
Amount capitalised in respect of investment BRIERBEPREMEELRZ
properties under development 7 (1,806) (1,759)
180,819 171,871
The government grants mainly represent the cash government (d) BB TIFEEERNRsHELEEER

subsidies on operation cost of ports and property businesses of
approximately HK$21,440,000 (2016: HK$20,231,000) recognised
in distribution and selling expenses, administrative expenses and
other expenses during the year. There are no unfulfilled conditions

THREAREMEBRAPERBRFRED
EMEXEBRKERARBENR S FHLD
21,440,000 7T (2016 : 20,231,000 7T) ° fr
W BR 2z BT 2 B N ORI AR 16 1 Sk B A

or other contingencies attached to the receipt of the government sk REIE o

subsidies.
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HE2017F3A31HILFE
14. TAXATION 14. Bi1E
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Taxation charge (credit) comprises: R (BA) B :
Taxation arising in the PRC excluding FE(TBEEE)EE 2 THIE
Hong Kong:
Current year NEE 13,899 6,592
Under (over) provision in prior years BEFEBRETL
(FBEEREE) 171 (2,286)
14,070 4,306
Deferred taxation (Note 37) IR IR (M aE37)
LAT T IE(E T (5.384) (98,667)
Others Hith (7,368) (18,334)
(12,752) (117,001)
Taxation attributable to the Company and 72 &) &z E Bf & A & FE 15 7 18
its subsidiaries 1,318 (112,695)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years. No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group’s estimated
assessable profits has been absorbed by tax losses brought
forward for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate for the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC is 25%
from 1 January 2008 onwards.

According to the requirements of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT (Fr 2 A R FNE 1+ it 18 {E
T 7T 1601) effective from 1 January 1994, and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT (Fr 3 A R FNE 1+ it ig{E
BE1TIEDEiE4mE)) effective from 27 January 1995 as
well, all income from the sale or transfer of land use rights,
buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is subject
to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of
the appreciation value as calculated according to the
Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT and its Detailed
Implementation Rules.

M E B 2 BB M IR IR 5 51 R B0 F
B E165% 8 - AAKEMEFE 2 b5
J& SRR M B R AR TS B R AT A AR
BHRERPUAESARTENSHER -

BEFECEMSHRETCEMSESHRED R
XFEBEEBEME - A2008F1 1B &
EERNTEZMBARIZHE A25% °

RIEAR1994F1A1HRBER 2R E AR KR
B b 8B 1T ) - LA R 199541 A 27
BREERZ(PEARLMBE + 2 EH LT
BOIERMAD  FTEREEEEERR LM
FRE ZEYRMEEE 2 RAYEREE
BOBB(PEARL ﬁlim?ﬁmaﬁhﬂ>
LEAEBWMBAUGE) LLA30%E60% %5 2 &
EREREMN T IBER -

171



172

I'-YIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2017 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A318ILFE

14. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

14. FiIE (&)

The taxation charge (credit) for the year can be reconciled REFBZHEL B (BA) Bigskzs kT
to the loss before taxation per the consolidated income G ATEER Z YENT -
statement as follows:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Loss before taxation BR i A1 &5 18 (22,701) (474,228)
Tax calculated at domestic rates applicable 1B AE R @B & MR
in the respective jurisdictions KRB A (975) (109,591)
Tax effect of share of results of associates/  H(HEE& N T, GE ¥ EE
joint ventures R E (24,141) (31,207)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax £ & # 77 m & Al R A 2 2
purpose Hxge 30,415 53,572
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax ERBHEBERBRKAZ
purpose R e (5,621) (5,205)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REBRBMEEE 2 NBTE 10,921 5,841
Tax effect of other deductible temporary R VEHE IR E b AT 0 Rk G By = 58
difference not recognised ZHBRE 141 53,170
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses AL ABRZUEEBERZ
previously not recognised Ry (5,493) (3,133)
Tax effect of utilisation of other deductible ) F 5 Aif & #£ 52 2 E b 7] 30
temporary difference previously not BEREE BB E
recognised (75) (108)
Effect of reversal of LAT in respect of the fair #E % &YW N P EEE
value changes in investment properties R LI ER 2 2 (2,655) (47,612)
Effect of reversal of LAT in respect of BBy %7{5—& SRR T
provision for stock of properties HEMZTE — (51,055)
Effect of reversal of LAT in respect of stock ®Ep¥WEFERR T HIEE
of properties M2 (2,729) —
Effect of recognising LAT for stock of MYEFERR T HIBER 2
properties TE 17 336
Tax effect of LAT iiﬂz BEVH o MBETE 1,342 24,583
Under (over) provision in prior years BEFERBT R (BERE®) 171 (2,286)
Taxation charge (credit) for the year REEFEHRELH (BA) 1,318 (112,695)
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BZE2017F3A318IEFE
15. DISTRIBUTION 15. ik
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Dividends recognised as distribution during RARFERER B D K 2 KB
the year:
Final cash dividend declared for the year HE2016F3A3MBIEFEZ
ended 31 March 2016 EERAMARERKRE
— Nil (2016: HKOQ.5 cent for the year —# (2016 : E{ £ 20154F
ended 31 March 2015) per share 3A3IBLEFER
FR%0.5810) — 22,887

The board of directors of the Company has resolved not to
recommend for shareholders’ approval the payment of any
final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016:
Nil).

16. BASIC LOSS PER SHARE 16.

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company for the year is based on the
following data:

KRB EEREBATEZRFE AR
HE2017F3A3MBEFE Z M AR
B(2016 : ) o

BREXNEE

ARRFEAEANRIEFEERERERTIR
NTE#EAESD

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Loss for the year attributable to owners of ~ LGt EGREREE 2
the Company for the purpose of basic loss A& RQ T %A A FEE FE EE
per share (34,143) (297,902)
2017 2016
Number of Number of
shares shares
RGO EE KR4 EE
Weighted average number of ordinary AUGTESRERAEBEEZEB
shares for the purpose of basic loss 8 n e < 39 Bk 2K
per share 4,577,663,388 4,577,360,572

The computation of diluted loss per share for both years
does not assume the exercise of the Company’s share
options which will result in decrease in loss per share.

MEFE2ZREFEBNTETEKRE
TEARFRZERE REBEHERE
‘R -
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HZE2017F3A318ILFE

17. W% BB RERE

LPG and
CNG Furniture,
Port logistics fixtures
infrastructure and Motor and
Plant and Port  andrelated distribution vehicles  computer Construction
Buildings machinery equipment facilities facilities and vessels equipment in progress Total
BLERR
RBEXA
BOEER SYRK RER KA %E
BF BERRE BORE HHRE SHRIE i REMRE EEIR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FTERT FTER TERT FTET FTET FTERT TET FTERT
CosT %N
At 1 April 2015 R2015F4 711 177,284 9,114 97,873 379,321 558,849 154,129 55,215 571,037 2,002,822
Exchange realignment AR (4,902) (377) (4,081) (15,875) (25,529) (6,089) (1,981) (25,141) (83,975)
Additions NE 131 — 750 4,608 846 3,924 2,146 87,081 99,486
Transfers B — — 1,048 981 - 3,262 6 (5,297) —
Transfer to investment properties 21 Z 1% & )% (1,201) — — — — — — — (1,201)
Disposal BE (8,918) (285) (2,872) 91) (15,391) (13,651) (1,337) (2,449) (44,994)
At 31 March 2016 #2016F3A31H 162,394 8,452 92,718 368,944 518,775 141,575 54,049 625,231 1,972,138
Exchange realignment EHAE (9,926) (477) (6,409) (24,791)  (29,257) (7,725) (2,538) (29,510 (110,633)
Additions WNE 1,018 — 1,983 6,373 1,944 2,657 914 26,092 40,981
Transfers B 42,305 — 66,072 223,147 — 8,586 5,693 (345,803) —
Transfer to investment properties & 1 % 1% & ¥ % (131) — — — — — — — (131)
Disposal RE (742) — (2,914) (3,410) (3,004) (3,970) (13,119 — (27,159
At 31 March 2017 R201743A31H 194,918 7,975 151,450 570,263 488,458 141,123 44,999 276,010 1,875,196
DEPRECIATION RE
At 1 April 2015 20154818 39,764 8,144 17,493 10,989 232,369 72,787 30,976 — 412,522
Exchange realignment AR (1,631) (338) (794) (597) (10,363) (2,863) (1,061) - (17,647)
Provided for the year REEFRR 6,001 57 6,142 9,006 52,268 9,838 6,538 — 89,850
Eliminated on transfer to BRERERANER
investment properties 35 (360) — — — — — — — (360)
Eliminated on disposal BER L (7,619) (257) (2,158) (84) (11,365) (11,840) (1,227) — (34,550)
At 31 March 2016 R201663A31H 36,155 7,606 20,683 19,314 262,909 67,922 35,226 — 449,815
Exchange realignment EHAE (2,135) (428) (1,289) (1,299) (15,044) (3,692) (1,544) —  (25431)
Provided for the year AFEEFHR 5779 — 8,782 11,970 13,254 9,132 6,307 — 55224
Eliminated on transfer to BREREANER
investment properties g (73) — — — — — — — (73)
Eliminated on disposal RERLHH (318) — (2,087) (197) (1,710 (3,510) (10,582) —  (18,404)
At 31 March 2017 #H2017F3 78311 39,408 7,178 26,089 29,788 259,409 69,852 29,407 — 461131
CARRYING VALUES BHEE
At 31 March 2017 ®2017F3A831H 155,510 797 125,361 540,475 229,049 71,271 15,592 276,010 1,414,065
At 31 March 2016 #H2016F3 8311 126,239 846 72,035 349,630 255,866 73,653 18,823 625231 1,522,323
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other

than construction in progress, are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Port equipment

Port infrastructure and
related facilities

LPG and CNG logistics and
distribution facilities

Motor vehicles and vessels

Furniture and fixtures

Computer equipment

Over the period of the
relevant leases or fifty
years, whichever is
shorter

10%

6%

2%-20%

4%-10%
2.6%-20%

8%—-20%
20%-33";%

17. M35 - W R=EE)

bt - R m (R TRREIN A
BABESENE X0

EF HEREEER
S0F (AERE &
)

WA % 5% 10%

ORI 6%

BOERENEBSRE 2%-20%
BIEAHARNEBEE 4%-10%

KRBT R D H
TE R A A 2.6%—-20%
REREKE 8%-20%
BB 20%-33"%
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

18. REWME

Leasehold
properties Developed Land under
in the PRC land development Total
RHEZ
HEME CHELi# BRI CEl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET TAET TAET FAET
(note fffia)  (note Hfith)
FAIR VALUE NFEE
At 1 April 2015 R2015F4 K11 260,116 360,799 719,101 1,340,016
Exchange realignment b 5 A& (10,867) (14,407) (28,518) (53,792)
Transfer from property, plant and L ERE LS R
equipment, other intangible assets ~ MEFEERENHAE
and prepaid lease payments FIEE A 14,299 — — 14,299
Additions NE — — 6,873 6,873
Disposal RE (131) — — (131)
Net decrease in fair value recognised R4 WRTNERZ D
in the consolidated income TEERDFR
statement (15,636) (44,957) (108,939) (169,532)
At 31 March 2016 R2016E3 A31H 247,781 301,435 588,517 1,137,733
Exchange realignment FE 5, % (14,196) (17,031) (33,274) (64,501)
Transfer from property, plant and MY MREERE H
equipment, other intangible assets ~ MEFEERBNHEE
and prepaid lease payments RIEEA 6,766 — — 6,766
Additions NE — — 7,910 7,910
Net increase (decrease) in fair value NIFAERHERABRZ A
recognised in the consolidated FEEEMORD) FE
income statement 5,010 1,149 (4,462) 1,697
At 31 March 2017 201743 /318 245361 285,553 558,691 1,089,605
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HZE2017F3831HILFE
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 18. REW X (&)
notes: Kt at -

(a) In prior years, the Group completed the reclamation of certain land
area and obtained the certificate of completion of land reclamation
(the “Certificate”) issued by qualified project engineering and
construction manager in respect of certain land area (the “Formed

Land”) in Jiangsu Province, the PRC. Upon obtaining the Certificate,

such Formed Land held for capital appreciation had been
recognised as land held under operating lease and classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

(b) In connection with the reclamation of certain land area in Jiangsu
Province, the PRC, the Group commenced, but not yet completed,
the land leveling process (mainly representing the sand filling work
to achieve leveling of the area) (the “Land Being Formed”). Upon
the commencement of land leveling process, the Land Being
Formed which are held for rentals and/or capital appreciation as
investment properties had been recognised as land under
development and classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31
March 2017 and 31 March 2016 have been arrived at on
the basis of valuations carried out as at those dates by
Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group.

In determining the fair value of leasehold properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.
The comparison method is adopted under which
comparison based on information of recent transacted
prices of comparable properties is made. Comparable
properties of similar size, characteristic and location are
analysed in order to arrive at a fair comparison of capital
values.

(@ MNBEFEN AKETKRNPEIHES
TR ZARTRE UFET LR
(EFBL))REHAAERBERIRZRE
BRPEHZ KRRz BE(ZE
ED - RREZBERN ZFFEEFEEZ
EFRITHEERSREBELLEHEREZ
i AN BRARBREME -

b)) BRPEIHEETIHRHEZAETR
mME AEEERALIHFREIR(EE
BHERADETUFERERRR) ((FEH L
1) B R TERK  RFIE L E TR
B SBEREMEHRBER REFEEZ
FREAIHOHERBAB R L1 U DM
RABRIIFREDE -

N %= B 201793 8318 &201643 A 31
BZ2REMEZATFEERKEAHRER
SEVEBECBUAEREEGHEMTP
WELETEBERNERARBEIT ZMES

= o
Eas

RETHEMEZATEER WENK
ShREREAEABAE RAZLR
FERAI B BEMEZ ROIRRERER R
AEE -HEHE MHERBHBEEZTEL
BMERETON UREXEBEEERAF
FE#
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

In determining the fair value of Formed Land, the highest
and best use of the Formed Land is for tourist and resort
use, which correlates to the zoning of the area for tourist
resort by the government. The comparison method is
adopted under which comparison based on information of
recent transacted prices of comparable lands is made.
Comparable lands of similar size, characteristic and
location are analysed in order to arrive at a fair comparison
of capital values. Certain costs, including government
levies and all necessary fees and expenses associated with
the change of the Formed Land for tourist and resort use
to be charged by the government, which are the best
estimate based on the latest information available to the
management of the Company, have been considered in
arriving at the fair value of the Formed Land.

In determining the fair value of Land Being Formed, the
same highest and best use and the same comparison
method are adopted and valuation has been considered
for further costs to be expended for the development of
the Land Being Formed into Formed Land. Further costs
for completing the land leveling process and other
development works as at 31 March 2017 are estimated to
be approximately HK$90 million (2016: HK$96 million).

One of the key inputs used in valuing the leasehold
properties is the market price per square meter of
comparable properties which ranged from RMB411 to
RMB13,939 (2016: RMB419 to RMB13,559), using direct
comparison approach and taking into account of the
difference in the nature, location and condition. The
increase in the market price per square meter of
comparable properties would result in an increase in the
fair value of the investment properties, and vice versa.

One of the key unobservable inputs is the 20% of saleable
land discount on the comparable lands applied by the
valuer in valuing the Formed Land and Land Being Formed.
A slight change in the saleable land discount used would
result in a significant change in fair value measurement of
the Formed Land and Land Being Formed, while a slight
change in the unobservable inputs in valuing the leasehold
properties would have no significant effect to their fair
value.

18. WEWXE (&)

RETEFELM 2 AFEERR BFE
TwnsskREAERKERERA
B ERBIBARZREREBIREE
BRE - FKABZHEBOENAIE LR T 2 &
MRREEMSEE - HEE  £E kit
HEEZAELBREMETON Ut E
AEEEZERRAFLE - FTRAREBA
BELABRFWRAC FRELWEEER
RELEBREBEBZABLEERRHA
X(RERBEEARREEENRIES
EH 2 REMRBG)  BHEEZRBUBED
FEL N FER

REFEFEP I AFEER - KAMHE
A&mkiERERERLEE  R#ETT
HENTEREFEP I MERAD FEL
MFTE R — PR AR T T FET
e RAEM IR TR 28— F R ARRKR2017
F3HA31BHE 4 49,0008 % L (2016 :
9,6008 &) °

HEYEHEFRRACHEF—BIEHAH
BEAUELEBMERARBIANTEAR
#13,9397C (2016 : ARB419TLE AR
13559TL) N E 2 BFHARMHER T
TREELEERZEZ UEERIHEE VER
MR Z TR - AJELBYEZGFH KT
BERLEA HEBREWERAFEEL
T RZIA -

RREFEL MR FEALHMEERAZ
HEp AT EFAEREABERMGER
RAEAIE LB L 2 20% 7] 35 & L 37
EoAHELHITREMNEIKSEHD
FEL MR FEA L AT EESED
REXEY MEEMEGEESTZETE
ERABBENES K TEHEATER
BRERTE -
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18.

19.

20.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

There has been no change from the valuation technique
and methodology used in the prior year. The fair value
hierarchy of the measurement of the investment properties
as at 31 March 2017 is Level 3. There are no transfers into
or out of Level 3 during the year.

For the Formed Land, the Group may have to obtain
certain appropriate certificates for the disposal. Based on
past experience, the directors of the Company consider
that there is no material impediment to obtain these
certificates for the Group.

PROJECT UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The balances as at 31 March 2017 and 2016 mainly relate
to a development project located in Jiangsu Province, the
PRC. The Group is undergoing the land reclamation and
the construction of public facilities. Upon commencement
of land leveling process, the intended purpose of the land
development can be determined and relevant project
development costs will be transferred at the carrying value
to properties under development for sale, property, plant
and equipment or investment properties, as appropriate.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group's prepaid lease payments are analysed for
reporting purposes as follows:

18.

19.

20.

REW* (H)

FTEAR 2 EERNRGEEE T &
B EWMEFEN2017F3A3NAZA
FEESESLAFE-H - TN RE=HI
£:32 NI S i

HEFELIHWNES  AEEXFTREET
BEEENELE RENELR A2
AEERRAEEANDGZEEERLE
BEREH -

BRRETIEHE

R2017F K2016F3A3 B 2 EH T B2 H
URHPEIHECERIBEERR A& E
T T TERERZAARRE R
FERIREMAR  IET THEE 2 EH
g UEEBREERRNANIRERES
BESERBRYE W EWHERRE
s EME(WER) -

R HEERIE

AEBZENEERBESNERSE ARG
mr

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHBT FETT

Non-current assets IERBEE 281,110 303,903
Current assets mENEE 4,510 4,834
285,620 308,737
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21. HtwEFREEE

Motor vehicles Club and
registration golfclub ~ Premiumon  Rightsof Customer
marks ~ memberships leasehold land  operation base Know-how Total
gk
AE BRXR HELH
BRHRE it ZnE KeRk ZFFER RWERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TRT FTAT TET TAT FET AT
(note fiizta) (note #fzkb)  (note fifzFc) (note fifsEd) (note fifite) (note fifzEe)
COST BA
At 1 April 2015 R2015F4 718 1,168 62 32,256 45,520 2,575 2,664 84,245
Exchange realignment BiEE - (12) (1,269  (1,905) (108) (112 (3,406)
Additions NE — 826 — — — — 826
Transfer to investment BEBRENE
properties — — (5,276) — — — (5,276)
At 31 March 2016 R2016F3A31H 1,168 876 25,711 43,615 2,467 2,552 76,389
Exchange realignment EXRAE — (46) (1,356) (2,461) (139) (144) (4,146)
Transfer to investment BERZREME
properties — — (5,251) — — — (5,251)
At 31 March 2017 R2017%F3A31H 1,168 830 19,104 41,154 2,328 2,408 66,992
AMORTISATION B
At 1 April 2015 R2015F4A 18 — — 12,499 7,738 2,189 1,887 24,313
Exchange realignment BERAR — — (520) (337) (96) 83) (1,036)
Provided for the year AEERE - 12 459 836 251 259 1,867
Eliminated on transfer to BRELENERS
investment properties i — — (690) — — — (690)
At 31 March 2016 M201663A31H — 12 11,748 8,287 2,344 2,063 24,454
Exchange realignment fEHAE - ©) (655) (482) (135) (121) (1,394)
Provided for the year AEEHIR — 45 279 838 119 245 1,526
Eliminated on transfer to BREREANER
investment properties Eag] — — (740) — — — (740)
At 31 March 2017 R2017F3A31H — 56 10,632 8,643 2,328 2,187 23,846
CARRYING VALUES BHE
At 31 March 2017 #2017%3A31H 1,168 774 8,472 32,511 — 221 43,146
At 31 March 2016 R2016F3A31H 1,168 864 13,963 35,328 123 489 51,935
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21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

mt) REEEAHRARF 2017 F3f

21. HEREE (&)

notes: Hiat -
(@)  The assets have indefinite useful lives. The directors are of the (@) ZESEAEARETRAEAFH EFTRANA
opinion that the motor vehicles registration marks are worth at BEDRBEEEEESENHKREE -
least their carrying values.
(b) HEETRACAFHNEAGHGEMS
(b) For the club membership in Hong Kong which has indefinite useful SERAEHBERLVAEEERMEE-
life, the directors are of the opinion that it is worth at least its
carrying value. HFBESRRNEMEEMmS - DUREKRE
TEHAERAFEHI7F#E-
For the golf club membership in the PRC, the amortisation is
provided on a straight-line basis over its useful life of 17 years. (0 HEeHEARRAEEEKRBEHESTEH
URAFBERZEZTREEMZHAE L2 E
(e} The amount represents the premium on leasehold land in Wuhan B NiHEABEENEEREBRR ZEER
and Yichang, the PRC, upon acquisition by the Group through the 33ET70F B -
acquisition of the relevant business and the amount is to be
amortised on the same basis as the related prepaid lease payments (d) RERERREPERETL&LERIELARRA
over 33 to 70 years. EB N ATEE KERDUNERE
TR BS0F A -
(d) Rights of operation represent the fair value of rights to operate LPG
business in Wuhan, the PRC. The rights of operation are amortised (e) EEEMAREBUBEXMKEBRILA
on a straight-line basis over the operation licence period of 50 HREBEFPHBEEZAFEE  IHUAEEZE
years. E10FN# -
(e) Customer base represents the fair value of customers relationship ) FiiA&ERERUBREABRARE 278

acquired for LPG business through acquisition of business. The
amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over 10 years.

Know-how represents fair value of technology know-how for
motor vehicles to use LPG as fuel. The amortisation is provided on
a straight-line basis over 10 years.

RitREZAFEE DHAEREEI0FA

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. BE AT ER
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHB T FET
Cost of unlisted investments in associates, & & 3E B & AT Z BN
less impairment M RE 845,423 845,423
Share of post-acquisition profits, other R ERERN EM2mE
comprehensive income and other reserves,  Ugzs & E M fEE - 0%
net of dividends received B U B 902,212 942,083
1,747,635 1,787,506
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, the unlisted
investments include:

(i)  48.23% equity interest in Paul Y. Engineering Group
Limited (“Paul Y. Engineering”), a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of The 13 Holdings Limited (“The 13"),
which is engaged in building construction, civil
engineering, development management, project
management, facilities and asset management
services and investment in properties.

(i) 45% equity interest in Nantong Port Group Limited
("Nantong Port Group”), which is a sino-foreign joint
venture enterprise registered in the PRC. Nantong
Port Group is principally engaged in providing cargo
loading and off loading, storage, shipping agent,
cargo agent, ship anchoring, ship repairing, port
machinery, shipping logistics and ship piloting
services in Nantong Port, Jiangsu Province, the PRC;
and

(i) 40% equity interest in Jiangyin Sunan International
Container Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Jiangyin Sunan”),
which is a sino-foreign joint venture enterprise
registered in the PRC and operates the container
terminal in Jiangyin Port, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

The financial year end date of Nantong Port Group and
Jiangyin Sunan is 31 December and their latest financial
information that is available to the Group is in respect of
their financial year ended 31 December 2016. Accordingly,
the Group's share of results and interests in these principal
associates at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are determined
based on the financial information of the associates for
the year ended and as at 31 December 2016 and 2015
respectively. No significant transaction or event is noted
between the year end dates of the associates and of the
Group.

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31 March
2017 and 2016 are set out in Note 50(c).

22. BrE N AR (&)

M2017%3A31H &20165E3A318 3
tHREaE:

i) HNREFESEEBRAD(RER
¥ 248 23% A ER LR A A
t=%@BR2AT+=5E) 2
EE2EMBAR HEEFEE . £
ARIR BREE BHEETHE- Rt
REEELERBRMERE -

(i) MEBEEREEERAR(TEAEE
O&E ) 245% AN - FEE O
SRR —RXRFEEMzFINGE
TCE-MBEOEBEEIEZRHEITEH
ERABENERTEEDERD 5 -
EERE BEEXK BOMMAR
% MAmE BB RMEE MM
R L3I R &

(i) RMIEHPDBEREEEREBTARAARA
AT ) B A 240% M A #
2 AR RRREEMRZFINEE
X EPEIHEIRERLESRR
FEH5EE -

HBEAEERIRHGE CMRFELE
HRI12A31A MASERA B 2 &t
AR ABREE E2016F12 8318 LB
BFEEZER - A - XEBER2017F &
20163 A3MBEERFEEHENFZ
¥ERERTDONERZHERAFANER
20164 M2015F 12 A318 IEFE R R #%
SR BERHE EZSHE QT
LERBBEAREER 2 FHEBARTESBE
FRHEAXSHHEHE -

AKEESEEH 2 QN FR20174F 2016
F3A31H ZFBEANR M 5E50() °
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 22. B A TRER (E)

Summarised financial information in respect of Nantong EEAasnDERREMBARRER
Port Group and its subsidiaries based on financial 20164 K2015F 12 A31H L F E 2 #
information prepared by the management in accordance FHER(EREEERBASE SR
with accounting policies of the Group for the years ended FRBE B ER)EH T -

31 December 2016 and 2015 is set out below:

31.12.2016 31.12.2015

2016 F R 20154
12A31H 12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Financial position: BRSO
Non-current assets ETRBEE 2,683,527 2,963,105
Current assets mENEE 717,113 856,837
Current liabilities VBN (720,514) (844,837)
Non-current liabilities ey N=Kr (276,788) (436,672)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR (64,365) (65,971)
Net assets attributable to the owners BERNREEABGEEFE
of the associate 2,338,973 2,472,462
Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying E & &= /S & 818 & A B #E
amount of the interest in the associate: FEHEECHE:
Net assets attributable to the owners of BERNREEABLEEFE
the associate 2,338,973 2,472,462
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7 £ [ {f 5 4 N 517 5 R 2
in the associate sl 45% 45%

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in A& B 2 B & QN Al m 2
the associate R B 1,052,538 1,112,608
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

22. BrE N AR (&)

Year ended Year ended
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
HZ2016F HE=2015%F
12A31H 12H331H
LtFEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Results of the associate: RN
Revenue WA 1,001,032 1,128,940
Profit for the year FE G A 138,090 220,321
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEHEM2MEMAX (138,712) (102,061)
Total comprehensive (expense) income FE2E(RAX)WHEE
for the year (622) 118,260
Dividend received from the associate FAEHEEE QR E
during the year 50,566 47,280
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information in respect of Jiangyin
Sunan based on financial information prepared by the
management in accordance to accounting policies of the
Group for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 is
set out below:

ke
=]

22. BE QTR (E

BB IE#Hm R E 2201645 K2015F12
A3BLEFE MBS ER (ERE R
BERAEESABRRBEZHEER)
ggomr

31.12.2016 31.12.2015
72016 F 20154
12A31H 12H318
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET

Financial position: BT AR5
Non-current assets ERBEE 224,836 250,836
Current assets mENEE 407,756 391,274
Current liabilities MBAE (21,477) (20,225)
Non-current liabilities ERBAR (19,997) (21,457)
Net assets attributable to the owners of B R ARLEEEE

the associate 591,118 600,428
Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying =& &= /F{E B & N Al x5 8

amount of the interest in the associate: HEZ 8k :
Net assets attributable to the owners of BERNREEARBGEEFE

the associate 591,118 600,428
Less: Fair value adjustments upon acquisition & : AW BE R 2 A F (B EFHE (51,636) (54,725)
Adjusted net assets before fair value AVEBEAERMZKCHEREE

adjustments SF(E 539,482 545,703
Carrying amount of the Group’s ownership — 7< & B pA B & A 5] G i 25

interest in the associate: ZEEmEE
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7 £ [ {f 5 & N 719 5 R 25

in the associate sl 40% 40%
Share of net assets before fair value AT EBEARA CBEEETF

adjustments B 215,793 218,281
Additional share of fair value adjustments AV (B{E R 2 ZEINE(H D 17,404 18,446

233,197 236,727




186

I'-YIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2017 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A318ILFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

22. BrE N AR (&)

Year ended Year ended
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
BZE2016F HZE20154
12H31H 12H31H
LtFEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Results of the associate: kNS ¥

Revenue e A 90,572 98,723
Profit for the year FERF 25,025 20,356
Other comprehensive expense for the year £ [E E 2 XX (34,336) (25,677)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEXEMZESE (9.311) (5,321)

Dividend received from the associate FADEE R EIRE
during the year — 19,975
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A31BILEFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 22. BE QTR ()

The financial information in respect of Paul Y. Engineering ERARERZEZENENBAAREZR2017F
and its subsidiaries based on the financial information %2016 5F3A3MBIEFE 2 BER(E
prepared by the management in accordance with REBERRBRASESHABRRGR YT
accounting policies of the Group for the years ended 31 BRDESNT

March 2017 and 2016 is set out below:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Financial position: B i AR5
Non-current assets IERBEE 297,379 346,624
Current assets mENEE 4,127,763 4,126,606
Current liabilities mEAEE (3.461,306) (3,563,900)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (6,134) —
Non-controlling interests FEVE R = — (884)
Net assets attributable to the owners BERNREEABGLEEFE
of the associate 957,702 908,446
Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying £ & & /%8 815 & A B B
amount of the interest in the associate: HE 2 $HER -
Net assets attributable to the owners BERNREEARBGEEFE
of the associate 957,702 908,446
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest 7 & B {5 B 4 N &) B =
in the associate 2t 48.23% 48.23%

Carrying amount of the Group's interest AREEB 2HBENRERZ
in the associate REE 461,900 438,144
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22. BrE N AR (&)

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FAT
Results of the associate: B NBIEE
Revenue e A 6,953,828 9,960,043
Profit for the year FE R 60,161 56,541
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEHE M2 mEMAX (11,144) (10,098)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEK=BE 49,017 46,443
Dividend received from the associate FAEYE = R RIRE
during the year — 14,480

The financial position of the Group'’s other associates are

not individually and aggregately material.

There are no significant restrictions on the abil

ity of

associates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of
cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the

Group.

The Group has discontinued recognition of its

share of

losses of one (2016: one) of the associates. The

accumulated unrecognised share of losses attr

ibutable to

the Group (based on unaudited management accounts)

are as follows:

ANEE 2 AR 7] 2 B 7558050 8 Bl &
BERMmMELTEK-

ik N
£ B 3
VARI&::

i

o

SEEAKEEL 2 ERNBRAE

ANRERETARESERER
ZEBARSG

-
<

AEE R EREREE — (2016 1 — ) B
BRAZER Rt AERAEEHGE
BeB(ERAEEREERB)OT

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Accumulated unrecognised share of losses of Z 5tk FEREEHE 2 2 7
the associates 21 (54,770) (54,770)
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23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. S ERER
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures %X &N IE ETH A E D ERK K 86,663 86,663
Share of post-acquisition profits and other — B{5 U BE%E 2 %A M H 2 m|
comprehensive expense, net of dividends X MKREKERE
received (1,359) (1,763)
85,304 84,900
Particulars of the Group's joint ventures at 31 March 2017 REE 25 EMRER2017F K20165F3 A
and 2016 are set out in Note 50(d). 318 25 IBE 5 BT EE50(d) °
The summarised financial information below represents TXZBAREER BN TIXBEXAR
the consolidated financial information of ¥ T ER: B %5 NElREZ2EWB QRN BRI AR
PR /2 7] and its wholly-owned subsidiary, #i) 55 $8 FH% 5 ERAGIZEGEUBER 25V BER
B R /A 1), which is prepared in accordance with DEBAEESHBRFERMA -

accounting policies of the Group.
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23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

23. §¥bEEE (E)

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Financial position: RO
Non-current assets FERHEE 211,862 216,476
Current assets MENE E 5,326 4,704
Current liabilities mE B E (23,987) (11,587)
Non-current liabilities ERBAR (22,593) (39,793)
Net assets of the joint venture BRENELEFE 170,608 169,800
The above amounts of assets and liabilities FitEERABLHEDE

include the following: TA%IE
Cash and cash equivalents RekERGEEIER 4,625 4,199
Current financial liabilities nPpemBEETERESIRA

(excluding trade and other payables and b FE A~ BR 30 R BB )

provisions) 16,930 4,785
Non-current financial liabilities EmFemAE

(excluding trade and other payables and (TEEESEHEMERNER

provisions) R AE)

— 17,943

Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying E & E /FEH A S P EEFIR

amount of the interest in the joint venture: ME{E 2 ¥ 8k :
Net assets of the joint venture L NPEEBEEFEE 170,608 169,800
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7~ & B {4 & > 2B =

in the joint venture 2 Bl 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group's interestin ~ AEB 7 A& EERF 2

the joint venture EmEE 85,304 84,900
Results of the joint venture: SBREDNEER
Revenue g A 12,136 12,331
Profit (loss) for the year FERMN(EE) 10,581 (871)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FREM2EMAX (9,773) (7,444)
Total comprehensive income (expense) FARENE (Fx)EHE

for the year 808 (8,315)

Dividend received from the joint venture
during the year

FRAEKRAEEERE
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23.

24,

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of joint
ventures to transfer funds to the Group in the form of
cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the
Group.

INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

23.

C) REEMARAT 2017 55

e EES (B

BEEUREBRETAL ,éf‘i\ﬁ}%§$
EJZ%‘}EZIKE@T’E&ZT R E BE
BB EANRSG -

24. EETHEHKRE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET

Listed equity securities, at quoted bid LETRAZFS  BERBEBZE
price in Hong Kong (note a) ANFRE (K iza) 92,469 91,608
PRC unlisted equity securities (note b) P EIJE ETARANEE 5 (B aEb) 359,347 422,614
451,816 514,222

notes:

As at 31 March 2017, the investment in Hong Kong listed equity
securities represents 4.67% (2016: 4.67%) equity interests in The
13.

As at 31 March 2017, the investments in unlisted equity securities
are stated at fair value and include:

] 9.9% equity interest in Jiangsu YangKou Port Development
and Investment Co., Ltd. (“Yangkou Port Co"”), which is
engaged in the business of development of port and related
infrastructures of approximately HK$358,916,000 (2016:
HK$421,677,000); and

ii) less than 20% interests in certain PRC companies held by
Yichang Port Group Limited (the “Yichang Port Group”), a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, which are
mainly engaged in port related services of approximately
HK$431,000 (2016: HK$937,000).

A reasonable estimate of fair value is determined by using valuation
techniques appropriate to the market and industry of each
investment. Valuation techniques used to support these valuations
include the asset-based approach which uses the fair market value
of its total assets minus its total liabilities, and the market approach
which uses prices and other relevant information generated by
market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or
businesses.

et

(a)

R2017F3A31H REBLETRAEZESRZ
1 EFE4.67% (2016 : 4.67%) + =B HE -

MR2017F3A318  HAFEEYEMNIEL
TRAES ZILEBE:

i) REAORBBEERBERER 2
AEFOBKERBEERAG(FA
BN A ]) 29.9%0% # - 49358,916,000
7T (2016 : 421,677,000 70) + &

ii) FEREHEOHERE2EESEKE
EERECAR(EEABEH]
KARZHEZENBRAR) IBAZ
AETHBERAZNR20%IEZ 4
431,0007% 7T (2016 : 937,000/ 7T) °

RFBEZARGANDEASRAKAEZT
BRITEBERBZEETEEE - BRXFZ
EREZHESZEREEEREA(ERA
BAEREBRABZAFME) RHEEUE
REBRRSEERLATELREELES
2SR GMEL 2 HMBMRAR) -
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24. INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

notes: (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

In determining the fair value of property assets of Yangkou Port Co
under the asset-based approach, the comparison method is
adopted under which comparison based on information of recent
transacted prices of comparable lands is made. Comparable
properties of similar size, characteristic and location are analysed in
order to arrive at a fair comparison of capital values.

A key unobservable input being 20% of saleable land discount on
comparable lands of Yangkou Port Co to discount the fair value of
properties by approximately HK$2,971 million (2016: HK$3,246
million), has been applied in valuing the properties. A slight
increase in the saleable land discount used would result in a
significant decrease in fair value measurement of the properties
and hence of the unlisted equity securities, and vice versa. A 5%
increase in the saleable land discount (i.e. revised to 25%), holding
all other variables constant, carrying amount of the properties
would decrease by approximately HK$744 million (2016: HK$803
million), and fair value of the Group’s investment in corresponding
equity instrument would decrease by approximately HK$19 million
(2016: HK$21 million).

25. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

On 8 March 2013, Yichang Port Group entered into an
agreement with a local government office to transfer
certain properties (the “Resumption Properties”) to the
local government for the development of a composite
project (the “New Premises”), which Yichang Port Group
will receive compensation including the receipt of certain
construction floor areas of the New Premises within four
years from the date of surrender.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Resumption
Properties were transferred to the local government and
the fair value of the New Premises, estimated as
RMB74,420,000 (approximately HK$93,025,000), was
recognised as deemed consideration and was approximate
to the carrying amount.

As at 31 March 2017, the New Premises are still under
construction.

24

25.

EETARE (&)

Hat - (&)
o) &)

RIBEEEAMEETFABRAAMEEE
ZATEER  KANAELRL 2 &I
BMRERERBEEZLLBOE  SEE %
BRMHBEZNELRYEETON A
HREREBEERAFLE -

MEGHERAZ —BEE2FTERE A
BAEFOQBRRAAE LR LM Z220%H]
HE LR UEMEZAFEBETELY
20.7118 % 70 (2016 : 3246188 L) » Al 4 &
THTEEM ARSI ERWERIELD
BAZBHFZAFEEFELRERR D -
R ZIRR o 35 0] S L s 5% (BN
FIE25%) MATEEMESRRFTTE 8
M7 REE KR LD 0744878 T (2016
SBO3BAEL) RAEEMNHEBESTAERE
ZRAFEEBRD 41,9008 8 T (2016 :
2,008 L) °

HitbFERBEE

M2013F3A8H ' EE BB E B HM K
R NEERDE MEMBFBERET
ME(HBEMEDLNERGEAEER ([H
BRTD - MEERABEEKEIFHE " &
ERER s BRNFANEEZNEM 2 H
TREEmMEE -

REZE2014F3 8318 IEFE - KDY
¥EBREZENRT  FERMAZAFEE
({55t A AR %74,420,0007T (#793,025,000
BIL))BARAGIERELHEEEDEMRS -

MR2017F3 8310 I ERRZRS -
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26. STOCK OF PROPERTIES

mt) REEBEBRAAE 2017 F3R

26. MEEFEE

2017 2016

HK$"000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Properties under development for sale (note a) #t X EEZ W% (K :+a) 1,056,262 1,094,786
Completed properties held for sale (note b) BRI #H1EHEWZE (K 7Eb) 407,808 433,445
1,464,070 1,528,231

notes:

Properties under development for sale are situated in Jiangsu
Province, the PRC. They comprise (1) Land Being Formed which is
developed for future sale; (2) Formed Land which is also developed
for future sale in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 March 2017, properties under development for sale
amounting to approximately HK$340,802,000 (2016:
HK$368,598,000) are carried at net realisable value, with provision
for stock of properties of approximately HK$188,176,000 being
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2016.

At 31 March 2017, properties under development for sale include
Formed Land of approximately HK$695,250,000 (2016:
HK$726,968,000) for which the Group may have to obtain certain
appropriate certificates for the disposal of the Formed Land. Based
on the past experience, the directors of the Company consider that
there is no material impediment to obtain these certificates for the
Group.

Completed properties held for sale are situated in Jiangsu Province,
the PRC. At 31 March 2017, completed properties held for sale
amounting to approximately HK$218,603,000 (2016:
HK$231,698,000) are carried at net realisable value, with provision
for stock of properties of approximately HK$26,139,000 being
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2016.

At 31 March 2017, stock of properties includes an amount of
approximately HK$795,807,000 (2016: HK$801,805,000)
which is expected to be realised after more than twelve

months from the end of the reporting period.

M et -

(a)

(b)

HHEERYEUNPEIIHE - RESRE
MBERBEBREEZFER LI QR —
REGBETRAEERAGEHRBEEZD
PR -

M201743A318 HEEEEDMED
340,802,000 7T (2016 : 368,598,000/ 7T )
BRAERFEINE MUEGFEBRELD
188,176,000/ 8 ST E R E E 20163 A31 8 Ik
FEERAANE ©

MR2017F3A31H - HEEERVEBEL
695,250,000 7T (2016 : 726,968,000 7T )
ZEFELH MAKEFTRESETAEE
EUHEXZEFEL - RBUELER &
ARAEERBAEBENDNEZEFERL
BmE AR -

EXIRHEHEMEMRFEIAHS -
R2017F3A31B ERLEFEHEDE
#9218,603,000% 7T (2016 : 231,698,000 /&
T)RAISRFEINE MOEFTERELD
26,139,000/ 7t B R E £2016F3 A31H Ik
FEBAANE -

M2017F3A31H MEGFERERER
RREHTEEBRBRT—EARER &
#H #9795,807,0007% 7T (2016 : 801,805,000
EIL) °
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27. LOANS RECEIVABLE

27. EWER

2017 2016
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET TETT
The amounts, net of allowance, bear interest H R 218 (30 B BiR AT
at the following rates: MEE
5% over Hong Kong Best Lending Rate BIEBREEEME([ETEH
(“HKBLR") (note a) BEEEFE]) MSE
(Ktita) 31,000 28,000
6% over HKBLR (note b) BILREBREERNEIN6E
(KtaEb) 31,100 28,000
Total Bt 62,100 56,000

No significant loans receivable balance has been past due
at the end of the reporting period for which impairment
loss has not been recognised. No recognition of
impairment loss for the balance not yet past due at the
end of the reporting period was considered necessary,
since there has been no past default history in respect of
those receivables.

notes:

(a)

The amount of unsecured loan receivable of HK$31,000,000 (2016:
HK$28,000,000) bears variable interest rate at 5% over HKBLR (i.e.

10%) per annum and is repayable on demand (2016: repayable
within one year).

The amount of unsecured loan receivable of HK$31,100,000 (2016:
HK$28,000,000) bears variable interest rate at 6% over HKBLR (i.e.

11%) per annum and is repayable on demand (2016: repayable
within one year). The repayment is guaranteed by an independent
third party.

PR E BT AR S 00 B 2 B B I SRR
EEBZERBRER - BRZEBUKK
ERELEIRLE WEFNHREH T
R REHZ AHRERBERRE -

et

(@) % % % A31,000,0007% 7T (2016 : 28,000,000
B ZERABARUERABSIREREBE
FEmMSEBNOE) 2 FBFFEFE I
BIREREE (016 ER—FREE) -

(b) % % % 731,100,000/ T(2016:
28,000,000) 2z & % 4 fE W B XA B T & 8
HEREMEMEE (BN1E) 2 F 8 E F =&t
B WAKRERMEERQ6: AR —FANE
B) BRH—BBIF=ZHER-
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28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES 28. FE B & A BRI IR
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable ZEcHEAEEM . R EWAREKE
on demand except for an amount of HK$32,000,000 (2016: &1 M4 %8 A32,000,0005 7T (2016 ¢
HK$30,000,000) which bears variable interest rate at 2% 30,000,000 70) W T EBEEBEF XN
over HKBLR (i.e. 7%) per annum and is repayable on 2B (BN7E) 2 2EF R R BWAR —F
demand (2016: repayable within one year). WEEZRERINQ016: AR —FRE

E) -

29. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS 2. ESREMERER TR

AND PREPAYMENTS T FIE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Trade debtors (note) 2 5 EWER (M) 105,901 107,439
Deposits and prepayments HERSSENE S 59,844 56,127
Advance payment and other receivables BOER 2B EH A EW
for port business BRI 2,422 23,119
Advance payment and other receivables MEBRRNEEZBALEM
for properties development and sale JE U5 BR =X 40,473 50,287
Advance payment and other receivables RAEERER 2B R R HM
for resort project in the PRC JE U8 BR 3K 6,176 8,335
Others EA 45,350 23,253

Total Bt 260,166 268,560
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29. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS 29.
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Included in the carrying amount of trade and other
receivables as at 31 March 2017 was accumulated
impairment loss of HK$3,450,000 (2016: HK$471,000) in
respect of balances which were past due at the end of the
reporting period and the relevant debtors were in financial
difficulties. the movements of allowance for doubtful
debts are as follows:

BEZREMBRER TE€K
KA ()

R2017F3A31H B 5 K& H ith fE IRER 3
FEAECF ARBRENTERBHES
2 2 5t § 18 &5 183,450,000 T (2016 :
471,000/ jT) - M 4R B8 & %5 A T E& B B/
B oRERBEHNOT

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FHET

Balance at beginning of the year FEH 471 181
Amounts written off as uncollectible S BE W Bl i 88 < ;B (103) (4)
Amounts reversed during the year FARE 2 HRIE (332) (873)
Provided for during the year FRNEEZRE 3,495 1,180
Exchange realignment PE 5 % (81) (13)
Balance at end of the year FRE 3,450 471

note: The Group's credit terms for customers of ports and logistics
segment normally range from 30 days to 90 days. Rental income
for property business is receivable according to the agreements and
the credit terms granted by the Group to other debtors normally
range from 30 days to 90 days.

Krat: AEEEORDRABZEFLPZEER—
MRAB0HENATE - WEEBZHES WA
TRIR W R 2 AR TE WK - T AN 5k [ K At R U
BERRRLZEES AR H30HE90HTE -
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29. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

note: (Continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade debtors, net of allowance for
doubtful debts, presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

2. ESREMERER TER
| ()

Hiat - (&)

NBERAMAEE NEBEREEBR EF
FEUWEANBEBRTERZRERITOT

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FET

Within 90 days 0HK 73,428 59,217
More than 90 days and within 180 days Hi#E0HERN180H A 17,336 33,108
More than 180 days 35180 H 15,137 15,114
105,901 107,439

As at 31 March 2017, included in the Group's trade debtor
balances are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$20,751,000 (2016: HK$34,562,000) which were past due at
the end of the reporting period for which impairment loss has not
been recognised. Trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired have no history of defaulting on repayments. The Group
does not hold any collateral over the balances.

Ageing of trade debtors which are past due but not

M2017F3A318 A&EE 28 5 EKE
A RS 4 IR {E 420,751,000 7T
(2016 : 34,562,000/ 7T ) Z FE W AR 3K - A 3
RIBR S R AR 2 HE Y EERR
EEE RIPAEREZE S ERERL
ERREMNZLE FAEEBYERZSEH
BFHTAEER -

BEMERTREZE S ERERRKRR

impaired:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Overdue: B
Within 90 days 90H R 17,143 21,364
More than 90 days and within 180 days @90 HEN180H KN 3,069 10,302
More than 180 days HBi®180H 539 2,896
20,751 34,562

The directors of the Company consider that there has not been a
significant change in credit quality of these trade debtors and there
is no recent history of default and therefore the amounts are
considered recoverable.

ARBEERR ZFEIRRERZEE
R IBE R TR o
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30. INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

31.

HELD FOR TRADING

30 FEEERETAERE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Listed equity securities, at quoted bid price in F R A E % - IR E A RBE
Hong Kong N 44,687 51,917
Overseas RN 7,013 6,645
51,700 58,562

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM
BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group. Deposits amounting to HK$113,000 (2016:
HK$152,176,000) have been pledged to secure general
banking facilities with maturity within one year from the
end of the reporting period and are therefore classified as
current assets. At 31 March 2016, the pledged bank
deposits included approximately RMB89,356,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$106,885,000) deposited in Hong
Kong, which were pledged to secure banking facilities
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and available in Hong
Kong.

The pledged bank deposits and short term bank deposits
with maturity date of less than three months carry fixed
interest rates ranging from 0.08% to 1.95% (2016: 0.01%
t0 9.3%) per annum. The bank balances carry prevailing
market interest rates ranging from nil to 1% (2016: nil to
1%) per annum.

1. EERRITER

BRERTRHE
RERTEEFRES

EEFRITEFRERAERETAEEZ
—RBITEEMERTRITZER - B
113,000/ 7T (2016 : 152,176,000 T ) 2
FRETFTHEF EREARBRERTEL—
FAHHEE —MEBITEEZER
5 A e EE - HN2016F3 4310 -
EERETHFEREE L AKKS9,356,000
7T (M E 1A 47106,885,00058 7T) N & 6 2 17
FoWBEBARBAEEAEMNLRE
BEAZEITEER-

EEABRTERLIBELIR=EAZ
HEIRITIF KM A & F0.08F £1.95E
(2016 : 0.01E=9.3[8) 2 E & FI| & - iR 17
EEHNSESFE21EQ6: TEE1E)Z
TIGFE o
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BZE2017F3A318IEFE
32. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND 32 EFRHMENER R ESH
ACCRUED EXPENSES 53
The following is an analysis of trade and other creditors BHNEMENERMEFTFHAIR
and accrued expenses at the end of the reporting period: STEERZ T -
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FAET
Trade creditors ageing analysis based on E?%é‘%‘—;i B ZESENERRZ
invoice date: B AT
Within 90 days 90 EI Al 49,873 56,146
More than 90 days and within 180 days HBiEo0RER180H A 672 728
More than 180 days HBiE 180 H 14,876 23,995
65,421 80,869
Construction costs payables JE 32 SR K 7R 32,982 49,758
Interest payable B F B 3,925 2,745
Advance receipt from customers U EN & F 2R 6,621 3,288
Other payables and advance receipt for port AR O %7 2 HibEBRER
business 2 BT U 8 3% 49,561 35,925
Other payables for staff salaries, retirement 8 T # % « Rk & E i iEF 2
and other benefits (note) H b SRR AR (B at) 52,679 69,626
Other payables for properties development — ¥ ¥ 3 & K §8 & 2 H ith fE 1+
and sale BRI 26,683 29,604
Other payables for resort project in the PRC A Bl E {18 B 2 H fth fE 1
BR 10,431 7,809
Retentions held for construction works and  #F{EEZ 2 TRELKZXEZRES
equipment 15,466 18,495
Others Hib 24,016 27,509
Total amounts QR 287,785 325,628
Less: Amount due within one year shown B R —ERNE W] AR E
under current liabilities BEZHE (263,721) (299,387)
Amount due after one year —F & B H 2 I8 24,064 26,241

note: At 31 March 2017, the amount includes other payable of
HK$47,505,000 (2016: HK$62,316,000) which represents staff
salaries, retirement and other benefits of a port business. Based on
agreed payment terms, an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$24,064,000 (2016: HK$26,241,000) is to be paid after more =g
than twelve months from the end of the reporting period and is
determined using an effective interest rate of 4.56% (2016: 4.56%)

per annum.

Ed

Bfat - R2017F3A31H ERlEERIEAY
47,505,000 7T (2016 : 62,316,000 7T )
Z E e BR 3R
IT#H& EREREMEF -

CNE-EREOEBZE
mEwHE 2N

o A H 4924,064,00058 7T (2016 ¢
26,241,000 7T) 2 %
BiE+ =

RIER RS T SR
&A% WIR B FF E4.56

2 (2016 : 4.56[F) EJE ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A318ILFE

33.

34.

35.

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free, repayable on
demand and in non-financing nature, except for an
amount of approximately HK$11,287,000 (2016:
HK$71,770,000) which bears interest at 6.35% (2016: 8%)
per annum and is repayable within one year.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) A JOINT
VENTURE

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

The amounts are unsecured and bear fixed-rate interest
ranging from 1% to 5.35% per annum (2016: 1% per
annum), in which approximately HK$2,257,0000 (2016:
HK$2,392,000) is due within one year and approximately
HK$94,808,000 (2016: HK$7,177,000) is due after twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

33.

34.

35.

A BE D FRE

ZEFEAEER L8 ARNEXKKE
NRIFEBMEME  MfE—F411,287,000%
70 (2016 : 71,770,000 70 ) 2 7% B 1% F F
#635[E(2016 : 8/F) RZER —F ANEE
BR G o

() —BEEhEERNE

ZEREABER 2ARAREREH
fit -

FEfS IR E R FIE

ZERBAEERREZENT1EE535E
ZBEFEEMEQ016: FRE1E)FE
& # #92,257,0000% 7T (2016 : 2,392,000
) R — F A EH - if1 4994,808,0007% 7T
(2016 : 7,177,000/ 7T ) 2 5% 38 B 72 ¥ 25 HF
EEZRBB T Z@ABEEE-
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36. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

"
L4

» RESEARAA 2017 FR

36. SRITR HMERK

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank and other borrowings comprise: BITREMERBE
Bank loans RITEXR 1,692,752 2,002,534
Other loans HEiER 65,175 26,576
1,757,927 2,029,110
Analysed as: DT A
Secured B 662,116 863,301
Unsecured 4 1 4 1,095,811 1,165,809
1,757,927 2,029,110
The bank and other borrowings are BT REMMEREZROT
repayable as follows:
Within one year or on demand —FRHIFEEK 1,311,705 1,289,156
More than one year, but not exceeding BiE—F  BETEmF
two years 177,891 314,165
More than two years, but not exceeding BRMF BT EAF
five years 132,891 425,789
More than five years A F 135,440 —
1,757,927 2,029,110
Less: Amount due within one year or on B — F AR BSREHHE
demand shown under current MENBEE 2 RIE
liabilities (1,311,705) (1,289,156)
Amount due after one year — F 1% R H B 446,222 739,954
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36. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

The above bank borrowings include fixed-rate borrowings
of approximately HK$454,849,000 (2016:
HK$383,658,000) with approximately HK$409,736,000
(2016: HK$307,306,000) repayable within one year,
approximately HK$45,113,000 (2016: HK$76,352,000)
repayable more than one year but not exceeding two
years. The fixed-rate borrowings are carrying interest
ranging from 4.35% to 6% (2016: 4.57% to 6.96%) per
annum.

The remaining bank borrowings carry floating-rate interest
ranging from 2.45% to 6.37% (2016: 1% to 7.04%) per
annum.

The above other borrowings include fixed-rate borrowings
of approximately HK$3,543,000 (2016: HK$5,044,000)
with approximately HK$2,831,000 (2016: HK$2,100,000)

repayable within one year, approximately HK$56,000 (2016:

HK$2,944,000) repayable more than one year but not

exceeding two years, and approximately HK$656,000 (2016:

Nil) repayable more than two years but not exceeding five
years. The fixed rate-borrowings are carrying interest
ranging from 1.5% to 3.5% (2016: 1.5% to 3%) per
annum. The remaining other borrowings carry floating-
rate interest ranging from 4.75% to 5.5% (2016: 4.75%
to 5.5%) per annum.

36. $R1T & H & (&)

ol 3R 47 B BB 1 #9454,849,000% JT
(2016 : 383,658,000/8 70) Z E B EH - &
H #7409,736,0007% 7T (2016 : 307,306,000
BIL) AR —F NERE - 445,113,000
70 (2016 : 76,352,000 70 ) AR B 1B — F
BETEMFANEERE ZEETLERENT
435E F6/E (2016 : 457EE6.96[F) 7
MR -

HERIRITEFZEFEFB - FFEH
2452 E6.37FE (2016 : 12 B7.04F ) T

o

ki

Lt HE f & 5 8 #F 493,543,000 JT
(2016 : 5,044,0008 70) Z E B G5 -
iﬁz 831,00078 7T (2016 : 2,100,000/ JT )

B —F NEE: 456,000 (2016 :
2944000,%75%/\ NH R — F BB F
M 838 5 1M #9656,00078 T (2016 : T ) /A
REBEBWNFETBRAFAEERE ZETE
BEREN F15EBE35E(2016: 15EF =
3E) 2 FE R EE E o HERH M & HULF
B KRR FHENFA475E E55E
(2016: 4.75[E Z5.5E) % -
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37. DEFERRED TAXATION 37. IEER A

The following items are the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current

and prior years:

LNTEHERAFERUNEIFECHRZE
TRLEFARME A RAEBIER

Fair value Fair value
adjustment Fair value  adjustment
on adjustment on project
investment  on stock of under
properties properties development Others Total
REWE WEFE BEDEER
NFEE NV EE NV EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FET FET
(note)
(Bti)
At 1 April 2015 H2015F4 /811 480,493 317,160 94,758 44,780 937,191
Exchange realignment I 34, 58 B (18,911) (12,675) (3,968) (1,863) (37,417)
Credit to consolidated meEWaEzBA

income statement (Ktat14)

(Note 14) (78,092) (38,798) — (111) (117,001)
Transfer 2 608 — — (608) —
At 31 March 2016 M20164F3 A31H 384,098 265,687 90,790 42,198 782,773
Exchange realignment ME W, 8 (21,655) (14,912) (5,119) (2,005) (43,691)
Credit to consolidated meElaEzBA

income statement (Kt ax14)

(Note 14) (1,566) (4,467) (189) (6,530) (12,752)
Transfer 2 316 — — (316) —
At 31 March 2017 72017438318 361,193 246,308 85,482 33,347 726,330

note: Included in the balance approximately HK$203,203,000 (2016:
HK$218,119,000) represents LAT arising from the fair value on

investment properties.

BaE - 58 AN & £ 2 #203,203,0007% JT(2016:
218,119,000 L) R EME A FEBEEE
7 I E R
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37. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At 31 March 2017, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$878,918,000 (2016: HK$813,571,000)
available to offset against future taxable profits. No
deferred tax asset in respect of the unused tax losses has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams on those subsidiaries. The unused tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of HK$201,176,000 (2016:
HK$212,873,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of PRC subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised was approximately
HK$634,976,000 (2016: HK$614,150,000). No liability has
been recognised in respect of these differences because
the Group is in a position to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax consequences in respect of stock of
properties arising from the transfer of Formed Land and
Land Being Formed from investment properties are
assessed based on the best estimate of the tax
consequence upon sale of the properties directly or sale
through entities holding these properties. For those
properties which would be subject to PRC LAT upon
disposal, deferred tax on the temporary difference
between the tax base and their carrying amounts would
include PRC LAT in addition to enterprise income tax.

37. IEREH A ()

M2017F3A31H A &£ B B K E A
TR % B 1B #878,918,000 (2016 :
813,571,000/ 7r) °] A R 3K 85 15 2R 2 JE =R
A AR ZEH B AR K
B zEEM - EmMTERRERZH
BEEERAECREEE - KERAZHB
518 P EE PR HA b 45 82 -

RmERTER  NEEZATHHREZE
%8 /201,176,000% 7T (2016 : 212,873,000
PETT) o R E A FER TR A AT A LA K 8
AR E B 2 AT eE R R - B I
REBETHNNGNEZERERAELEHIEE
go

R EHTER  FRWEEQREKDIK
BFEEMmMEREREERIEAE R
By 2= 248 5 5 %634,976,0007%8 7T (2016 -
614,150,000/ 7T ) © B3 7 78 & [ A 2 i) 8
EZEhREERE o RE EZERKEES
BEre TR R RASTREE - B &5t
ZEETERAE -

HEREAVEEREZMEFEZEFEL
WhPERIMESL ZBELEHRBRRZF
i DERUSERHEMEIBBLER
BRENEZERBRMEEARARR K
EhEF - BZEARLERBRTE LM
BERZDE AHREREEEEECH
B e B 22 R 2 R ST B RS B 1R P B 3R
BRMEEMEHR -
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38. DEFERRED INCOME 38. JEFE WA
The amount mainly represents the government grants ZECHTITBIEEBAETAOEEBER 2
related to certain ports construction projects and will be RITHEL - WHHR BB TFTINEEE 2T
recognised in profit or loss over the useful lives of the FRFHAREZTER -

related depreciable assets.

39. SHARE CAPITAL 39. A&
Number of
shares Value
[ &vi - g &5
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: BRRO10B T EBAR
Authorised: JETE
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and 20154418 »
31 March 2017 2016 F3A31H K
20173 A31H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
At 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 M2015F4 18 &
20163 A31H 4,577,360,572 457,736
Issued of shares under share option RIEEREBEIBITRG
scheme 10,048,000 1,005
At 31 March 2017 M2017F3HA31H 4,587,408,572 458,741
During the year, the Company issued 10,048,000 ordinary FER BEARAAFERETEFEE ZEBER
shares of HK$0.10 each at the subscription price of EETER AR RIRREBEIR0.1624
HK$0.1624 per share upon exercise of the share options 7 7T 3£ 7710,048,000 1% & I% E {E0.1078 JT

granted under the share option scheme of the Company. 7 EE o
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40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

On 10 September 2012 (the “Adoption Date”), the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2012
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentive or reward to any employees, executives or
officers, directors of the Group or any invested entity and
any celebrity, consultant, adviser or agent of any member
of the Group or any invested entity, who have contributed
or will contribute to the growth and development of the
Group or any invested entity (“Eligible Person”). The 2012
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
ten years commencing after the Adoption Date.

Under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, HK$1.00 is payable
by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of the
share option offer and an offer must be accepted on or
before a date as specified in writing, being a date not later
than 30 days after (i) the date on which the offer was
issued; or (i) the date on which the conditions for the
offer are satisfied. The directors of the Company may at
their discretion determine the specific exercise period
which should expire in any event no later than the last day
of the ten year period after the date of grant of the share
options. The exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company and will be at least the higher of: (i) the
subscription price as is permissible under the Listing Rules
from time to time; and (ii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

The maximum number of shares which may initially be
issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date, i.e.
455,849,357 shares. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting, the limit
may be refreshed to 10% of the total number of shares in
issue as at the date of approval by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time. Pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meetings of the Company held in 2013 and 2015, the
10% scheme limit was refreshed to 10% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at the
respective dates of such meetings.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR R M EE
For the year ended 31 March 2017
BZE2017F3A318ILFE

40. LR XA REBEZ2R S

2012694108 (TH M B ) - AA A K
AN — TE T e AR R ST B (12012 4F B8 R #E 5T
gl EEHEAABARNEEXAME
BEHE NRRERELEM AL EK
FRIBKERBE2AMNEES THRAE &
THE EBEERAMNIBALT AEEMF
I B RARISERKERE 2 BER A
ASIREBA(EEERATD LG T B =42
B o 2012 F FE AR MERT 817G B 5R A0 B R4 55
BUAHTF -

RIB2012F BRSNS  ARARNEZAE
RiEZHRARMARFXZMN1.00ETT
2HWAREE RS (BAT At A #i&
Z30AA:BHZHTH: HMBHZ
GRREEKRZB)RZAAEEEZEM - K
ARREFARNBEETHTITELR - HEE
ERBERAT  THBEERLEREE A
Bt FHMRZKFE R -TEEHAR
RAEFET HTRERAELIRTIIME
FHESE ORELHTRUNTEAFFZ
RBE: R)A2FERMHZEHE -

RABE2012FBIRETE R AR A FTHE
MAEMEMBRETSELE ZEREZH
BITERYLSA FEIZBRNDBESEST
BEARNRANRMBEEITRODBE 2
10% -+ B1455,849,357 % N & 15 A X 7] J&
REBRERE Lt ZRBEAEHAR
RERRERREAS LHEZHE BITR
DB Z10% - EE WL - BIF2012F 88
B& hE T &) KR AN 1 B A ) HL 8 AR AT BT
B RITE 2 FT A B AR A 2 SO 1T (B
AFEITZRNBHEEEARZTERBAT
BEZRTRHDBEZ30% BIEARQAR
2013F 2015 BT v RERBF R L
BB —BLBEREER 10% 25 EIRE
EENMZEREBRAEEB 2 ARRAIBEET
AR 1D B8 210% ©
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40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

The maximum number of shares of the Company in
respect of which options may be granted to each Eligible
Person under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including
those exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of shares in issue from time to time unless such grant has
been duly approved by shareholders of the Company at
general meeting at which the Eligible Person and his close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (or his associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) if the Eligible Person is a
connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules))
abstained from voting. Options granted to a substantial
shareholder and/or an independent non-executive director
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) in any 12-month period in excess of 0.10%
of total number of shares in issue and have an aggregate
value exceeding HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting in
advance.

40. ARG XA KB 2R 5 (&)

PMEA+ =@ B B R - AR PR 2012 F B AR
FTEIRART M A ERERE AR
FTEEERALTZERB(RERTE:
WAEREARITEZERE) P R2ZAK
RAIRNEE  ZETESBBTELET
ROBE21%  BRIFBBEHEZTEER
AERALTREETBREA(EER LT
RAD (KMEEBALTE—BBEAL
AIEBMEA(EER LR MELRE
ZRERE ERESANRQRREE R -
REM+ZEARE mEZRER K
BUYFRATESFIHESBEZ2EWBEA
(EERETMRADBEZEREmRMP R Z
BOHEBEEITRMDBEEZ0.10% K2 E
#83%5,000,000% 7T - AN BE LR ESAA
AR R RS L -
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40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

Details of the share options granted to certain directors
and employees of the Group under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme and movements in such holdings during the year
are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A318ILFE

40. ARG XFREBE 2R 5 (&)

RE2012F ME A BT E T ASEET
EERESIBBRRFNRSHAEY
BBEENT

Number of shares of the Company

to be issued upon exercise of the share options

REREETERSRTZ
ERRARBBE

Exercise Fair value Outstanding

price per per share at
Type Date of grant Exercise period* share  option  01.04.2015
=37} 20155
R BREZ 4A18
EH REBH  TEEME* T®E DVEE i K 4T B
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Granted Exercised
during the  Outstanding during the  Outstanding
year ended at  yearended at
31.03.2016 31.03.2016 31.03.2017 31.03.2017
HZE2016F R20165F BE2017F 020175
383181t 3A31H 3318t 3A31H
EERH HATE FEBTHE i K AT

i) 27.06.2014  27.06.2014-26.06.2017 0.1624  0.0218 39,502,400
i) 27.06.2014  27.06.2015-26.06.2017 0.1624  0.0218 39,502,400
i) 27.06.2014  27.06.2016-26.06.2017 0.1624  0.0217 39,502,400

v) 29.06.2015  29.06.2015-28.06.2018 02504  0.0352
vi) 29.06.2015  29.06.2016-28.06.2018 02504  0.0352
vii) 29.06.2015  29.06.2017-28.06.2018 0.2504  0.0351

(
(
(
() 29.09.2014  29.09.2014-28.09.2017  0.1720  0.0167 13,500,000
(
(
(

— 39,502,400  (10,048,000) 29,454,400
— 39,502,400 — 39,502,400
— 39,502,400 — 39,502,400
— 13,500,000 — 13,500,000
30,165,600 30,165,600 — 30,165,600
30,165,600 30,165,600 — 30,165,600
30,165,600 30,165,600 — 30,165,600

132,007,200

90,496,800 222,504,000  (10,048,000) 212,456,000

Exercisable at the end of the year IREARA] F17{E 53,002,400

122,670,400 182,290,400

* All the share options granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
were/will be vested in the relevant grantees upon the
commencement date of each respective exercise period.

The amount of cost of share options charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year is
approximately HK$889,000 (2016: HK$2,902,000).

* Fff B 1R 15 2012 4F 8 A% #E 51 &1 % H 00 B8 AR
B/ ensERTERENRLENEE
AR A -

EFEFANREEWZZ RN A ERER KR
% %4 5 #9889,000/% 7T (2016 : 2,902,000/%5
JC) °
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40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 40. LB ERARE 2R S (8)
(CONTINUED)
Bt 4 9B 1T {8 #9 10,048,000 17 85 A% #E

In respect of the 10,048,000 share options exercised = RTE B NEFSEAE0.17655

during the year, the weighted average share price at the 7T B EITE B A g T E R

date of exercise is HK$0.1765 and the weighted average £0.1790/8 7T °

closing price at the date immediately before exercise date

is HK$0.1790. EREEREOBSATFEE I AERE
B s EMKF T ERERER

The estimated fair values of the share options granted are NBIFERA —BEAFESE -

determined by RHL Appraisal Limited, a valuer not

connected with the Group, using the Binomial model. SFTEEREAFBEMERANEHLEKRRKR
DERARBEENREMTAE - BR

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair ENEEZRES T ETEHRKRNTREZE

value of the share options are based on the best estimate mAFTEE -

of the directors of the Company. The value of a share
option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

The following assumptions are used to calculate the fair AEERENATEERERATIERE:
values of share options:

Type (i) Type (i) Type (iii) Type (iv) Type (v) Type (vi) Type (vii)
EOE FG@E FGE BWE FEVE BWVE BViE

Grant date closing #H HEIZ
share price (HK$) B U E

(BT) 0.160 0.160 0.160 0.168 0.236 0.236 0.236
Expected life T8 BR S [R 3years F 3years £ 3years F 3years F 3years F 3years F 3years F
Expected volatility 78 8 )% 18 32.74% 32.74% 32.74% 26.26% 33.19% 33.19% 33.19%
Expected annual ~ TEHIG £
dividend yield % B & 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 5.95% 4.24% 4.24% 4.24%
Expected exercise 78 Bi7T &
multiple B 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8
Risk-free interest 4% /& b
rate A = 0.778% 0.778% 0.778% 0.942% 0.655% 0.655% 0.655%
No share options were granted, cancelled or lapsed during EN BERIR A E R L TRk ARk o

the year.
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41. DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 March 2016, Yichang Port
Group entered into an agreement with a company (the
“Transferee”), pursuant to which the Transferee agreed to
acquire a 37.634% equity interest in a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Yichang Port Group engaged in holding of
assets of Yunchi Port, namely B & /5755 @ Z 8 AR
A7) (Yichang Port Group Yunchi Port Limited) (“Yunchi
Port Co"), for a total consideration of RMB153,920,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$187,937,000). The
Transferee was wholly-owned by an entity which indirectly
held 49% interest in Yichang Port Group at the date of
the agreement. The consideration for the disposal was
settled by offsetting the loans owed to the Transferee by
Yichang Port Group.

The disposal was completed on 19 November 2015 and
Yunchi Port Co remains a subsidiary of the Company,
being owned as to 62.366% by Yichang Port Group. The
disposal was accounted for as an equity transaction during
the year ended 31 March 2016. An amount of
approximately HK$187,760,000 (being the proportionate
share of the carrying amount of the net assets by non-
controlling interests) had been transferred to non-
controlling interests during the year ended 31 March
2016. The difference of approximately HK$177,000
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests were adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration received had been credited to retained
profits during the year ended 31 March 2016.

41. HENBATH I ER

REZE2016F3A31MBIEFE BEBK
CEER-—BAR(ZEFIDTLBE
BEZZESFRAEREESHKEEE — /M
REBBEEHOBEEZZENB QR (A
HEBBEEZWEBRAR(E 0B
NA)) 237.634% R BREAAR
# 153,920,000 7T, (18 % 7 #9187,937,000 %
) o RBEAE B ABHEERER
EXBEEZO%ENERE2ERS -
FEZRENEEEESBEELERTZ
F 2 ERFAE -

HEEZEMN2015F11A19B8B TR - B
BREDARRARZHBRAR HEE)

BEEHEBG62366%  LEZEHEIRNEE
2016F3A3MBIEFEAEA —HRAR
S ANBE o & 58 49187,760,0007% Jr (BN 3k 4
REZEBELFDHZFEERAREBE) ER
HZE2016F3A31HIEFERE &= IET
RER - FERER 2 ARSTEED R
Bz RAFEEHEBZETEL177,000% T
EREE2016F3A31 B It FERE AR
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 12. €T A
a. Categories of financial instruments a. ERIBEZHER
(i) Financial assets (i) =HEE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Financial assets measured at REEN AT EC SR
amortised cost BE
— Loans receivable —EWRE R 62,100 56,000
— Trade and other debtors —E S5 R EMEUWRR 200,322 212,433
— Amounts due from associates — JEUR B E N B FR I8 48,709 30,511
— Amount due from a joint venture —El—EAEERR
MIE 161 —
— Bank deposits —RITFERK 184,192 464,164
— Bank balances and cash —IRITEFE AR 315,571 297,163
811,055 1,060,271
Financial assets measured at fair value A FEEBHEFE 2S5
— Investments in equity instruments ~ — iR A (B E A Eth
at FVTOCI FHKEZE B
TEKE 451,816 514,222
— Investments in equity instruments ~ — iR A LB EEA B
held for trading at FVTPL 2R EEEER
TEKE 51,700 58,562
503,516 572,784
Total Bt 1,314,571 1,633,055
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

a. Categories of financial instruments

(Continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities

42. €T A (&)

a. TEMIAZER (&)

(i) THERE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHETT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RBEKAFTE 2SR
afE
— Trade and other creditors —H 5 & H b BT BR 5K 276,520 316,937
— Amount due to a joint venture —EN—HEAeETE
A 254 125
— Amounts due to associates — BB RN B R IE 36,666 100,924
— Amounts due to non-controlling — JE A FE 4R AR B 25 B
interests 97,065 9,569
— Bank and other borrowings —RITREMEE 1,757,927 2,029,110
2,168,432 2,456,665

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
debtors, loans receivable, investments in equity
instruments, investments in equity instruments held
for trading, trade and other creditors, amounts due
from (to) associates/a joint venture/non-controlling
interests and bank and other borrowings. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

TREREEZEERREXE

AEEZIZERMTABRERTE
R RTEEFELRE BHREME
W BWER #aRTARKRE -
FIFEERaTARE BHRHEM
FERTBRAK - U () B & R R),/ — ]
BERE TR S IR RRTT
REAMER - bl @ T AMMSZ
R B R R B bt R B 2 BRER B T
X-BEEEEERERZEFRAR N
REBAERRRZERR A5H
ZERRBEEZFHER -
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(a) Market risk

0]

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk
is attributable to its financial instruments
that are subject to both variable rate and
fixed rate. Those financial instruments of
variable interest rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. Details of
the Group's interest bearing financial
instruments at variable rates have been
disclosed in Notes 27, 28, 31 and 36.
Financial instruments at fixed interest
rates expose the Group to fair value
interest risk. Details of the Group’s
interest bearing financial instruments at
fixed rate have been disclosed in Notes
31, 32, 33, 35 and 36.

In order to mitigate the interest rate risk,
the Group adopts a policy of maintaining
an appropriate mix of fixed and floating
rate borrowings which is achieved
primarily through entering into different
contractual terms of borrowings. The
position is regularly monitored and
evaluated by reference to anticipated
changes in market interest rate.

The Group's exposures to interest rate
risk on financial liabilities are detailed in
the liquidity risk management section of
this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of the rates announced by the
PBC arising from the Group’s RMB
borrowings and advance at variable rates
and Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate
and HKBLR arising from the Group’s HK
Dollars loans receivable and borrowings
at variable rates.

42. €T A (&)

b. ®rEKREEBZERBK (&)
(a) THEE

(i)

=Bk

REE 2 FERBKEE
BEREEEMIA -%FE
ZEERMIAFASEER
HASTEMNERRE - X
EEFESRMITAFES
» K §E27 2831 %36
WiEE - T8I A
AEBEHAFEENES
Rk - AEEZTELE SR
TAFBERME3 32
33 35 &36AEE -

RTFENXEAR AEH
EFRRBER EE@EBF]
NARAHRBZERK
REFERRZRERZE
BEHEE -HEANTDEHE
B WEMIBH R ZEB
HREITRIE

AEERERABTESH
MEER FERAME
NERABESREREE
MoESH - AEBEZRE
MENEXRABREZEFRN
FEARRBITHA QM X
ZRB(REARNEEZF
BARBERRBR)
AREBBRITREFE R
EEREBEEN XK
BAKEZF S B TEEK
BERRAER)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for variable rate instruments
at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management
personnel.

If interest rates are variable and had been
50 basis points (2016: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss
for the year ended 31 March 2017,
excluding the capitalised borrowing costs
of approximately HK$734,000 (2016:
HK$891,000), would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$4,622,000 (2016:
HK$5,881,000).

For loans receivable, amounts due from
associates and bank balances, the effect
on interest rate risk to the Group’s post-
tax loss is insignificant. Therefore, the
effect is not included in the sensitivity
analysis above.

42. €T A (&)

b. REREZEBRREREXE (&)
(a) T5E k(&)

(i)

= E bk ()

B E DT
TXZGREE DM TIIRIE
RBERTHERRFES L
HBAZzZHNEXERME
eI HREBR |E B
TEBZAEESRTA
REEFEDAKREEM
mE -ERMAFETRERE
ABERMNERERE )
BR A8 AN akoRl A 50 & o

HIFEF E EFT BKS0
A 252016 :50& 2 )
FTEEMESRETE
Bl 7R & B 5 B 2201743
A3 FE 2 R&EERE
(TBREEERLZERK
X #9734,0007% 7T(2016 :
891,000 L)) # £ F T
[% #94,622,0007% 7T (2016 :
5,881,00078 7T) °

BN EWER B
RARIE MRITAEER - A
FRBHAKRENRELE
BORZERM I REN-
At ZFELLEER
FELRSREDTA -
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 42. +E T A (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b.

policies (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the
value of a monetary item will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. Certain receivables of the Group
are denominated in foreign currencies
such as RMB and United States Dollars (“US
Dollars”) and which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management monitors
foreign currency exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Certain Hong Kong subsidiaries of the
Company also have certain transactions
denominated in RMB. RMB is not freely
convertible into other foreign currencies
and conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
The Group manages its exposures to
foreign currency transactions by
monitoring the level of foreign currency
receipts and payments. The Group
ensures that the net exposure to foreign
exchange risk is kept to an acceptable
level from time to time.

All of the Group's borrowings are
denominated in HK Dollars and RMB. The
Group mainly draws borrowings in the
functional currencies of the entities as
management considers the repayments
can be sourced from income to be
generated in those currencies.

TRAEREEBRERBXKE)

(a) W5 EE (&)
(i) E¥ER
SRR ERIER EE
R N
R - AEEE T EUKRK
BIDAANRE RET(E
T FEINEFE BAK
BAEHINERR - ALK
= B A1 I SN BRI
H-AmM EEEETY
ERINERE - X E R
ERERE P ERINEE

LA
i

g o
N

RRABETFEEHEBERF
NEETRHGUARKE
Bl A\RETATBAN
BRAEHMING - H kA
P B BT BT 2B A 2 SNEE
EHRBREHEMAR o K
5 B #E B AN Wk R A
FOKFPRERINE R F A
% o 7N 5 B B AR HOFHMNE
B TR RFEAAEXZ
IKFE o

AEERBEEFRBAET
MARBREMN - XEE
TEUERBZTEERR
HER WWHHRNERE
RRAAKRBAZEER
REMZBWAER -
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

42. €T A (&)

b. REREZEBRREREXE (&)

(a) HEmEEE (&)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (i) E¥EREE)

(ii) Currency risk (Continued) RARBTHEETES K
As HK Dollars is pegged to US Dollars, the SEREUATANEE
Group believes the exposure of B 2 B AR PTRT S PASE
transactions denominated in US Dollars TREMZZGMEHZ
which are entered by group companies RERMARE -
with a functional currency of HK Dollars
to be insignificant. AEERA  HIONEER

FERBARBEETZ
The Group considers its foreign currency Bk AEETFHRTE
exposure is mainly arising from the BERBBEZHEHBIUER
exposure of RMB against HK Dollars. The SGEEBMN KREE
Group regularly reviews the balances of WA AR E B PR ¥ 2 SN
assets and liabilities and the currencies in & & o
which the transactions are denominated
50 as to minimise the Group's exposure to REEAINE B B E
foreign currency risk. HONERBCEEEER
E¥aE(BEEERARE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s RE)VRBERTHE 2
foreign currency denominated monetary BEEELT :
assets and monetary liabilities, with
exposure to foreign currency risk which
are considered as significant by
management, at the end of the reporting
periods are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
a& BE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T FHER FAET
US Dollars ETT — — 3,490 3,762
RMB AR 3,651 3,793 170,761 455,761
HK Dollars BT 65,894 24,677 1 1
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

Pr1

C) RELEMER AT 2017 1R

42. €T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and b. £RIEREREBERBEGE)
policies (Continued) (a) TiEEE ()
(a) Market risk (Continued) (i) E¥EREE)
(ii) Currency risk (Continued) RS E 2T
Sensitivity analysis FHAETFHENEES
The above US Dollars denominated assets AEBMELATEK-
are insignificant to the Group. - WEBETHINEE
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is W25 BREE DT e
presented for US Dollars against
functional currencies. TRANAREENRARK
578 T BE X IE A15% N B
The following table details the Group’s TR ANEEE X[ 5%
sensitivity to a 5% increase in RMB BB EE - SRR E
against HK Dollars and 5% decrease in T EE A BIERINE R R
HK Dollars against RMB. 5% is the B JDERAS% ASEE L
sensitivity rate used when reporting RoHRESMERER
foreign currency risk internally to key THREWAINERE 2
management personnel. The sensitivity BEWIEE BRWMEST
analysis includes only outstanding foreign EERINEE R 25%%
currency denominated monetary items HEITHE TRZIEZRE
and adjusts their translation at the end of TARBREBT EFASY%
the reporting period end for a 5% change BFREEBERERL AR
in foreign currency rates. A positive HAT T ®KS%E - 8 F
number below indicates a decrease in NEEBEZBFTZEER -
post-tax loss where RMB strengthen 5% T AIFE R e
against HK Dollars. For a 5% weakening
of RMB against HK Dollars, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the
loss for the year.
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Decrease in loss for the year FREERD 9,728 17,944
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk from its investments in equity
instruments. Management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The
Group's equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities
operating in port development, hotel
operation and properties management
and investment industry sectors. The
Group has monitored the other price risk
and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk for investments in equity
instruments carried at fair value at the
end of the reporting period.

42. €T A (&)

b.

TRAEREEBRERBXKE)
i 45 B ()

(a)

(iii)

HitEEERER
AEEREZEDTARE
mAERANE S 2 ERE
R BEENEBFAR
BRUERREZREHEHANR
EELERR AEED
BuBRAREIESETR
REeBOBR BELE
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MRAES  AEESE
REMERRAR LTEHE
BEREEEE L mEY
Z B o
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the prices or fair values of the respective

equity instruments had been 5% higher/
lower,

o post-tax loss for the year ended 31
March 2017 would decrease/
increase by HK$2,129,000 (2016:
HK$2,417,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of investments
in equity instruments held for
trading; and

° investment revaluation reserve
would increase/decrease by
HK$22,591,000 (2016:
HK$25,711,000) for the Group as a
result of the changes in the fair
value of investments in equity
instruments not held for trading.

(b) Credit risk
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge obligations by the
counterparties and financial guarantees
provided by the Group is arising from:

— the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial
position; and

— the amount of contingent liability as
disclosed in Note 44.

42. €T A (&)

b. REREZEBRREREXE (&)

(a) %5 R ()

(iii) L o {8 45 LB (B0
HBRE 5T (H)
HEMER T AZERR
AV EE L/ TR5%
Al :

e HMNRBEEE R
= TEAEKRERATFE
B # 8- 8 £2017
F3A318 Ikt F E
FieBEE TR
£ 742,129,000 7T
(2016 : 2,417,000 7
gL &

e HRNTIEBIEEER
CHEFTAERER
TEEZEH KE
BEHBEEB LA
N [£22,591,000% 7T
(2016 : 25,711,000
EIT) °

(b) EEEME
AEERRZHEFRGEETE
£ DA R 7R &2 L i 4 41 B 75 R AR
AEZERNEERR(BEH
REBEELMBER) DHLE
J==3

— HERHBRRRLE2IE
EEREMEEZERBE
B: &

— WEHM4mEE2XAREE
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
In order to minimise the credit risk of the
debtors, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group
will understand the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines its credit limits. Credit sales
are made to customers with good credit
history. Credit limits attributed to customers
and credit term granted to customers on
different business units are reviewed regularly.
In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual
customer to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risks in
relation to its bank balances that are deposited
at several banks. Management of the Group
considers that the credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited at several banks is limited,
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings.

Other than the above, the Group has no other
significant concentration of credit risk, the
exposure of which spreads over a number of
counterparties.

42. €T A (&)

b.

TREREREBERBEKGE)
(b) f?ﬁﬁlﬁ(ﬁé‘)

ERERUKERZEER
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HEMREER LTS
ARREERARAEEZEE
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a
significant source of liquidity. As at 31 March
2017, the Group has unutilised bank loan
facilities of approximately HK$180 million (2016:
HK$222 million) available to finance the
Group's working capital requirements. Details
of the amounts utilised at the end of the
reporting period are set out in Note 36.

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. There are unutilised banking facilities
available to finance the Group’s working capital
requirements. The Group relies on borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity. Management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.
The Group will also consider the issue of equity
instruments so as to finance its investment
projects.

The following tables detail the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.

42. €T A (&)

b.
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42.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 42. +E T A ()

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. £RIEREREBERBEGE)
policies (Continued) © FBESEE (E)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESRINEZRARR
Liquidity and interest risk tables
Weighted More than
average Ondemand 90 days and Total
effective  or within within  More than undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate 90 days 365 days 365 days cash flows  amount
mETY REAS  HEBWA RERRER
ERA=E 90HR {4365 R #BiB365A EAR KREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

TAT TREL  TARL TELT TERL

2017
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRMERE
Trade and other creditors B REMENER — 116718 135738 24,064 276,520 276,520
Amounts due to associates/a joint venture/ JEREE & AR,/ —
non-controlling interests REGE/ AR
— non-interest bearing —TFE — 25,633 - — 25633 25633
— fixed rate interest bearing —TFR 5.18 12,609 5924 103,252 121,785 108,352
Bank and other borrowings BIREMER
— fixed rate interest bearing —T8 533 201,983 222,036 46,417 470,436 458,392
— variable rate interest bearing —%8 410 536,292 394,959 460,706 1,391,957 1,299,535
893,235 758,657 634,439 2,286,331 2,168,432
2016
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRMERE
Trade and other creditors BHRAMBENER — 77,721 212,975 26,241 316,937 316,937
Amounts due to associates/a joint venture/ i ¢ & 2 &,/ — ]
non-controlling interests RERE/ R
R E
— non-interest bearing —TEE — 29,279 — — 29279 29,279
— fixed rate interest bearing —ER 7.2 72,565 2,456 7,297 82,318 81,339
Bank and other borrowings ROREMER
— fixed rate interest bearing —EE 57 110,040 211,806 81,627 403,473 388,702
— variable rate interest bearing —%E 39 820,825 192,599 692,128 1,705,552 1,640,408

1,110,430 619,836 807,293 2,537,559 2,456,665




mt) REEBEBRAAE 2017 F3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A31BILEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments for non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the
end of the reporting period.

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

(i)

Fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured
at fair value on a recurring basis

The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

The fair value of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis.

42. €T A (&)

b. REREZEBRREREXE (&)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

C.

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and

financial liabilities that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis

As at 31 March 2017, the fair values of the
Group's investments in equity instruments held
for trading of approximately HK$51,700,000
(2016: HK$58,562,000) and listed investments
in equity instruments of approximately
HK$92,469,000 (2016: HK$91,608,000) are
based on Level 1 measurement (as defined in
Note 3) and stated at quoted bid price in active
market at the end of each reporting period.

As at 31 March 2017, the fair value of the
Group's unlisted investments in equity
instruments of approximately HK$359,347,000
(2016: HK$422,614,000) is based on Level 3
measurement (as detailed in Note 3) using the
valuation techniques described in Note 24.

There were no transfers between the different
levels of the fair value hierarchy for both years.

42. €T A (&)

C.

ETRMITAZAVEERE(E

(ii)

BEREBELLNFEMEE
ZEMEERTHEMBZ A
FEHE

R2017%F3A31H K & B
BEEEEZIITAKREZ
~ F {& & 451,700,000 J©
(2016 : 58,562,000/ 7t ) K&
ITTRETAREZAFE
B #792,469,0007% 7T (2016 :
91,608,000/ ) Ty E RN E — R
AFE(EHRAWEI) - WIRE®
SHEAERRERMBZEA
MBESER o

MR2017F3A31H &N & B 3k
tTTEZTAREZAFE
{& #7359,347,0007% 7T (2016 :
422,614,000 L) T E R FE =
HErE (B R W) EAME
2A4FF il 2 (R AT ET & -

PMEFEMS A FEES
RERH2EHEEE -
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 42. +E T A (&)

¢. Fair value measurement of financial ¢ EMIBEZAFEETEE)
instruments (Continued) (i) #LHERTARRSES
(iii) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value RAOFEETEZEHEK
measurement of unlisted investments in
equity instruments
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Balance at beginning of the year F & 422,614 485,246
Loss on revaluation recognised F AR E b 2 W T R
in other comprehensive income 2 EBMBE
during the year (62,991) (62,592)
Exchange realignment PE H 58 2 (276) (40)
Balance at end of the year FRER 359,347 422,614
Included in other comprehensive income is AR EEBE 2 EG®E
revaluation loss of HK$62,991,000 (2016: 62,991,000 (2016 :
HK$62,592,000) relating to unlisted 62,592,000 JT) B2 7 5} 5 HA o2
investments in equity instruments using Level 3 EEBEABE-RTE2IE
measurement held at the end of the reporting IR EIEREEH L2
period and is reported as changes in investment WMAREEMHEEEE -
revaluation reserve.
43. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 43. R KB R =t &
The Group joins defined contribution retirement benefit AEBREEREEZ2HERER/IURK
schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of the BAEE - ZEFFECEEHRTTEAES
schemes are separately held in funds under the control of ZEBESEURE -
trustees.
AEBEPEMNBEARZES  2AF
The employees of the Group'’s PRC subsidiaries are BT AT 2 B R & TR R K48 A 5T 81 2 B
members of the state-managed retirement benefit B-FEMBARERFEAXZFEL
schemes operated by the PRC government. The Bl - R KAR M ET EIEHE R LARA
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to contribute a REES AEEHRKBENGE 20—
specified percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement EERELBBEEM/K-

benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the specified contributions.
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43.

44,

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 4
(CONTINUED)

w

The cost charged to the consolidated income statement
represents contributions paid and payable to the funds by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
Where there are employees who leave the schemes prior
to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group may be reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions in accordance with the rules of the
schemes in that jurisdiction.

At the end of the reporting period, there were no material
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees
leaving the schemes prior to their interests in the Group'’s
contributions becoming fully vested and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable by the Group
in future years.

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme
("MPF Scheme™). The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at the rates specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated income
statement represent contributions paid and payable to the
funds by the Group at the rates specified in the rules of
the scheme.

During the year, the total retirement benefit scheme
contributions charged to consolidated income statement
amounted to approximately HK$6,558,000 (2016:
HK$7,133,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has no contingent
liability (2016: Nil).

44.

. RAKRE G E (&)

REAWaRBHZER  RASEEZ
FHBZRAMEZ L EEN REMNTE
SZHF - HEEBERNZAEHKAAM2H
AR HZEE  AEBEEMNHRA
RBEZADARER 2 5t 81 R RO H K2
TERER

REmERTER TEREENRREAN=Z
BAREBEHRAN 2 MERIE L ZER
EMELE 2EBRNRBRBR LA HAEER
RRFERD BAER 2 EARLUHER -

AEBEMARSERBEETE ((BEE
ARl RERABCRERBEATES
BRI ERFIERAESERBERL - R
e g e EEBURNAEBECEE /A
BYRXRTAZEHZESHA -RERES
AEIZAA BREMEEEHASAEN
AIFTAR Z b R et &I - A &K E A R o
B z2EREERREBEFEEHRE
Z K e B AL L USR] A0 R
RRFE AR -

A 58 18 & 51 81 M 1F 2 R K48 R AT &4 5K
B A WS RINE  HER AR EBIRGE
RAFTRHZEERRES DN REMNZH]

=
Moo

FRN REAERERAIHZEKETR
=t &) X 42 %5 49 5 6,558,000/% 7T (2016 :
7,133,000 7T) °

HREE

R2017F3A31H AEBETELAEE
(2016 : &) -
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45. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 45, REHERE
(a) The Group as a lessee: () XEBEEAEBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had R EE &R REBEET ] HHE
commitments for future minimum lease payments ZEBRTW I HEREER HAY
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of FURBEREMCEHETE N
leasehold interest in land, rented premises and plant B ERRGIKIA S IE A E o R
and machinery which fall due as follows: ZEXEIIT
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Within one year —F R 11,220 10,848
In the second to fifth year inclusive ECEFRIF(EEMERIE
£A) 14,290 6,091
Over five years BiBhF 985 1,512
26,495 18,451
Leases are negotiated, and monthly rentals are fixed, HymrBHRA—F=2=Z1+TF1T%
for terms ranging from one to thirty years. EGRAMEEEE -
(b) The Group as a lessor: (b) AEBEHLBEAX:
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had PG TER  NEERAKEY
contracted with tenants in respect of its investment ERMEFECHFPFERARARKR
properties and stock of properties for future MEMIBETH - TREWT -
minimum lease payments which fall due as follows:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAET
Within one year —F R 14,600 14,710
In the second to fifth year inclusive FCEFIF(HEMFRE
£A) 32,995 29,188
Over five years Bl hF 26,266 31,307

73,861 75,205
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45. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 45.

(CONTINUED)

(b) The Group as a lessor: (Continued)

Operating lease arrangements represent rentals
receivable by the Group for certain of its premises.
Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one to
twenty years.

46. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 46.

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets
were pledged to banks and financial institutions to secure
the general credit facilities granted to the Group:

REBEHRE (R
(b) AEEERHEA : (8)

EERERHEASERRE TR
B AE N2 R o FRA 2 B IR B —
FE_TERE

EERA

REEMTER - TIHEECEN TRT
L GHE  FRAKERSEG —REER
BZHEM:

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Investment properties KEYE 140,069 170,400
Property, plant and equipment LI X N 339,945 322,282
Prepaid lease payments T EERE 170,618 187,032
Bank deposits (note) RITFE R (M 7E) 113 152,176
Other intangible assets HihmpaE 7,315 8,547
Stock of properties MEFE 265,828 147,545
923,888 987,982

note: At 31 March 2016, the pledged bank deposits included
approximately RMB124,359,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$148,755,000) which were denominated in RMB and deposited
in Hong Kong.

In addition, the Company pledged its investment in certain
subsidiaries of a book value of approximately
HK$445,280,000 (2016: HK$445,280,000) to secure the
facilities granted.

B et 20163 831H BEEBREATFEFREIE
—E A8 AR 124,359,000 7T (18 E R4
148,755,000 B L) AARBHETEGRE
2 FE -

RN ARFRIRETHE AR Z KA RE
{& #9445,280,0007% 7T (2016 : 445,280,000
ABT)ETHER (FRMEELERE ZE
® e
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47. COMMITMENTS 47. EE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Expenditure contracted for but not provided BtUE A TIE B B 5T 4B R A
in the consolidated financial statements in 4 & B Mzx N BE 2 FI X
respect of acquisition of:
— Property, plant and equipment — W - W MR 5,366 2,949
— Investment properties —REWE 5,587 5,987
10,953 8,936
48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 48. BBEA TR R &
BALANCES
@ KREGEEVWBRZEMIT>BEE

(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

Sh - FAN - AEEIRS

o g

ETRBA

B <
financial statements, the Group also entered into the TEIVUATERR S :
following significant transactions with certain related
parties during the year:
Class of related party Nature of transactions 2017 2016
BEA L+ 2 E5 REME HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
(i) Associates of the Group Interest charged by the Group 2,102 2,586
NEEHBE QA 7N 5 B WEUR B
Interest charged to the Group 1,474 7,776
RNEE X AHFLE
Service fees charged by the Group 1,028 1,801
REBEWERREE
(i) Joint ventures of the Group Service fees charged by the Group 407 344
REBZEERE AEFBWRREE
Rentals charged to the Group 459 507
AEEXNES
(iiiy  Entity controlled by senior Service fees charged to the Group 424 559

management (note)
EREBABES 2EREKZE)

AEEXNREE
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48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 48. BEEA TR F R &R ()

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(a)
(@) (Continued)

note: These transactions constituted the de minimis connected
transactions as defined in the Listing Rules.

Other than the related party transactions set out in
the Note 48(a)(iii) above, none of the related party
transactions disclosed above constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in the Listing Rules.

(b)  The remuneration of directors and other members of (b)
key management, which is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends, is as

(#8)

it : ZEXZBEBRETRUEETHSE
REHBRKFHOMERS -

B b 3 M 5 48(a)iii) BT & 2 B8 B A+
RGN BN EFE BB A LR
SEXLETRUFATZEBERS
SFERERS o

EFREMTEEREXNEZME
THFMEEE2EMEAIABRZR
BRkmBRERAmETE #FHB0T:

follows:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FAET
Short-term benefits SE-LFER 20,506 19,699
Post-employment benefits RKAE A 779 763
Share-based payment expense UM A FE 2 X 1,016 2,902

22,301 23,364
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48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(0)

(Continued)

Details of the share options for the Company’s
shares granted to the directors and other members
of key management and outstanding during the year
are set out below:

48. B A TR 57 R & &k ()
(b) ()

FARTESRHEMTEEEENX
BURBRTEABARARD 2
BREZFBHIWT

Number of shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the share options

RERBETERERTZALARMHE

Granted Exercised
during during
Exercise  Outstanding theyear  Outstanding the year Outstanding
price per at ended at ended at
Grantee Date of grant  Exercise period share  01.04.2015  31.03.2016  31.03.2016 31.03.2017  31.03.2017
R015% BZE2016F R20165F EE2017F R2017%
=14 4R1H 3A31AL 38318 3R31AL 3A318
ERA RELAH TEHE EE i R AT B FERH WATE FEESTE ief K A7 2
HKS
B
Directors
Bz
Lau Tom Ko Yuen 27.06.2014 27.06.2014-26.06.2017 0.1624 15,000,000 — 15,000,000 — 15,000,000
AR 27.062014  27.06.2015-26.06.2017 0.1624 15,000,000 — 15,000,000 — 15,000,000
27.06.2014 27.06.2016-26.06.2017 0.1624 15,000,000 — 15,000,000 — 15,000,000
29.06.2015 29.06.2015-28.06.2018 0.2504 — 15,000,000 15,000,000 — 15,000,000
29.06.2015 29.06.2016-28.06.2018 0.2504 — 15,000,000 15,000,000 — 15,000,000
29.06.2015 29.06.2017-28.06.2018 0.2504 — 15,000,000 15,000,000 — 15,000,000
Chan Shu Kin 29.09.2014 29.09.2014-28.09.2017 0.1720 4,500,000 — 4,500,000 — 4,500,000
B2
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa 29.09.2014 29.09.2014-28.09.2017 0.1720 4,500,000 — 4,500,000 — 4,500,000
BER
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond ~ 29.09.2014 29.09.2014-28.09.2017 0.1720 4,500,000 — 4,500,000 — 4,500,000
-
Other members of key 27.06.2014 27.06.2014-26.06.2017 0.1624 24,502,400 — 24,502,400 (10,048,0000 14,454,400
management 27.06.2014 27.06.2015-26.06.2017 0.1624 24,502,400 — 24,502,400 — 24,502,400
HitTEEBEHE 27.06.2014 27.06.2016-26.06.2017 0.1624 24,502,400 — 24,502,400 — 24,502,400
29.06.2015 29.06.2015-28.06.2018 0.2504 — 15,165,600 15,165,600 — 15,165,600
29.06.2015 29.06.2016-28.06.2018 0.2504 — 15,165,600 15,165,600 — 15,165,600
29.06.2015 29.06.2017-28.06.2018 0.2504 — 15,165,600 15,165,600 — 15,165,600

Total &5t

132,007,200 90,496,800 222,504,000 (10,048,000) 212,456,000

Details of the balances with associates and a joint
venture at the end of the reporting period are set
out in Notes 28, 33 and 34.

@ REEHTHEE  BBERF k-
MeagbRrz/EBRFFTERIINHE
283334 -
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49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

49. KRT 2 M BRR KRB

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSET ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG 441,313 766,915
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG B 2,514,679 2,700,663
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments HiEWERER 51 RENR
17 856 1,001
Pledged bank deposits BHFRITER — 106,885
Short term bank deposits RMHISRITER 173,078 272,761
Bank balances and cash RITHEB AR 1,870 15,020
2,690,483 3,096,330
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary B —REM B AR RIE — 14,458
Other creditors and accrued expenses HuEMBRR MEH X 4,370 4,228
Bank borrowings — due within one year —FRE B ZRITER 622,350 622,800
626,720 641,486
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFEE 2,063,763 2,454,844
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERADHER 2,505,076 3,221,759
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBERE
Bank borrowings — due after one year —FRINPZRITER 35,000 237,500
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,470,076 2,984,259
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#FE
Share capital P& A 458,741 457,736
Reserves (note) (B L) 2,011,335 2,526,523
TOTAL EQUITY MR 2,470,076 2,984,259
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49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITIONAND 49 KA B 2B B R R E R & &

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

note:

(&)
Wi :

Share-based

Share payment Retained
premium reserve profits Total
PN &R
R13HE RIERE = 8% A wEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FET FET FET
At 1 April 2015 MR2015F4 A 18 494,694 2,068 1,411,006 1,907,768
Profit for the year F =R A — — 638,740 638,740
Distribution (Note 15) DI (M &t 15) — — (22,887) (22,887)
Recognition of equity-settled HRERBEEARND X
share-based payment expense TRIER & — 2,902 — 2,902
At 31 March 2016 M2016F3 A31H 494,694 4,970 2,026,859 2,526,523
Loss for the year FEEIE — — (516,703) (516,703)
Issue of shares under share option 5 ¥ 88 A #E 51 & 2 1T R 2=
scheme 846 (220) — 626
Recognition of equity-settled FERIRIRHE S E AR D
share-based payment expense I FRIEF — 889 — 889
At 31 March 2017 MH2017F3A31H 495,540 5,639 1,510,156 2,011,335
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

(a)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31 March 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

50. TEMEAA -

EhEEHR

BHERARE

@ ARBEZEHERAR2017F X
2016F3A3THZFHBWT ¢

Percentage of issued share capital/
registered capital

BRTRE /HEMERTAL
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully  held by the
registration/ paid up capital/  subsidiaries/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Company* to the Group  Principal activities
EMA L ERTRABRRE, HBKEAF/
WELREE i e B ZMEX  KLAA*EE AEEERLE TEER
2017 2016 2017 2016
% % % %
Glory Well Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
HERRRA BB ordinary shares REER
10,0007 7T
ERBMH

Jiangsu Wanhua Real Estate ~ The PRC US$8,800,000 100 100 100 100 Development, investment
Development Co., Ltd. e registered capital and sale of properties

THEERHERZER (note (i) below) MERRE BRARHEE
A7 8,800,000% 7T

(TFxha)

Jiangsu Yangtong The PRC US$100,000,000 75 75 75 75 Development, investment,
Investment and H registered capital sale and leasing of
Development Co., Ltd. (note (i) below) properties, developed
("Jiangsu Yangtong”) 100,000,000% 7T land, land under

IHTAFRERERR HftER development and projects
REI&FAE]) (F X2 i) under development

mE BRELH BE
R RRAERIER 2
HE - RE HERA
g

Jiaxing Feeder Port Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and
Investment Limited B ordinary share infrastructure investment

FEAMEREERAA BT BOSERERRE

TR D

Jiaxing International The PRC RMB262,800,000 90 90 90 90 Port operation
Container Feeder Port H registered capital EOgE
Limited (note (ii) below)

5 B B R R RS A AR 262,800,000 7T
BRRAT AMER

(T Hi &t (i)

Nation Cheer Investment Hong Kong HK$1,200,000 100 100 100 100 Securities investment
Limited Bk ordinary shares BHRE

HEREBRAA 1,200,0007% 7

TR D

Paul Y. Corporation Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and

REEEBRAA e ordinary shares infrastructure investment

2B BOSERERRE

HERRD
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

(@) (Continued)

50. T EK B AT

ERREN (R

@@ (&)

Percentage of issued share capital/
registered capital

235

BAER AR 2017 Fik

Bl
e
op

g o

BRTRE /HEMERTAL
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully  held by the
registration/ paid up capital/  subsidiaries/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Company* to the Group  Principal activities
EMA L ERTRABRRE, HBKEAF/
WELREE i e B ZMEX  KLAA*EE AEEERLE TEER
2017 2016 2017 2016
% % % %
Paul Y. Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
%5 ordinary shares BEER
2T
LB R
PYI Infrastructure Group British Virgin US$1 100*  100* 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands ordinary share REER
EBELES Ee
LER R
PYI Management Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Provision of management
REEEEEERATA P ordinary shares services
2870 R EERY
L
PYI Min Sheng Investment Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited BB ordinary shares REER
RERERABRAT 287
EBR R
PYI Properties (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
REFE(EB)ERLA &HE ordinary share REZR
1B
LER R
PYI Xingdong Properties The PRC US$20,000,000 100 100 100 100 Development, investment
(Jiangsu) Limited H registered capital and sale of properties
REARREZE(IH) (note (i) below) NELR REREE
BERAF 20,000,000% 7€
A AR
(TFxhiz)
PYI Yichang Investment Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and
Limited BB ordinary share infrastructure investment
REEEREFRDA BT BOSERERRE
LER R
Yichang Port Group Limited ~ The PRC RMB203,690,000 51 51 51 51 Port operation
HEABEEARAML B registered capital BOEE
NG| (note (ii) below)
AR #203,690,0007T
&R

(FX K i)
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(Continued)

50. TEMBEAA -
EhEER (&)

(a)

(%)

Percentage of issued share capital/
registered capital

Bl
e
op

Ba o

BRTRE /HEMERTAL
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully  held by the
registration/ paid up capital/  subsidiaries/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Company* to the Group  Principal activities
FEMBL ERTRABRRE, HBKEAF/
WELREE i e B ZMEX  KLAA*EE AEEELE  TEER
2017 2016 2017 2016
% % % %
Yichang Port Group The PRC RMB409,050,000 62.366 62.366  31.807 31.807 Port operation
Yunchi Port Limited H registered capital (note (iii) AOZE
HEABEEE NS (note (ii) below) below)
BT AR #409,050,0007C (Tx
i ER izt
(FX M5t () (i)
Hubei Minsheng Liquefied The PRC US$41,000,000 100 100 100 100 LPG and CNG distribution
Petroleum Gas Limited H registered capital and logistics
HMERERRRIER (note (i) below) RIEEARREEXRAR
BRRAT 41,000,000% 7 DERIR
AMAER
(TFXH ()
WILRERREFRMER  The PRC US$18,950,000 100 100 100 100 LPG technical research and
BRAT H registered capital development
(note (i) below) B A BRI
18,950,000 7T RER
(TFXha)
Rt EEEEEAERAT  ThePRC RMB45,000,000 75 75 75 75 Development, investment
H registered capital and sale of properties
(note (ii) below) MEBR RERHEE
AR #45,000,0007C
FME X
(T K (i)
TE/NVEOB R The PRC US$10,000,000 75 — 75 — Development of recreational
BARRA] i registered capital facilities
(notes (i) and (iv) below) REREER
10,000,000 70

(FXH a2 (i) % (iv)
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 50 T EMEBAT BMEAARS
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES ErEER (E)

(CONTINUED)
@ (&)
(@) (Continued)
* ZNRBEARNTEERES -
* The company is directly held by the Company.
LM EME AR ABR AR -
All of the above subsidiaries are limited companies.
B 5t -
notes:
(i) ERTR/IINEBERE -
(i) Being the wholly-foreign-owned-enterprises.

(i) WERA/PIAELEDRE-

(ii) Being the sino-foreign equity joint ventures.
(i)  FZMEARBEARAESS %M B

(i) The subsidiary is being owned as to 62.366% by Yichang RAIE BB R E % H62.366% ° A
Port Group, a 51%-owned subsidiary of the Company. The SEEBHESBHRENEHEE
Group maintains control over the subsidiary through control 5 H 2 MBS A R 012 I

over Yichang Port Group.
vy  M2017F3A318 T & N F OR

(iv)  Asat 31 March 2017, the registered capital of JT#k/\/F 0 RHAEA ﬁ%@\ AlzadMEARND &
S8 SR BAEER A 7] was paid up to US$6,680,000. 6,680,000 3 T & 7K

Remark: Except for the subsidiary as disclosed in note (iv) for the fEat - B‘f\ REZE201743A318 IEF F§* 7 B
year ended 31 March 2017, the registered capital of all ?{E(W)ﬁ?gz (RN 57‘9\\ B R H
principal subsidiaries registered in the PRC were fully FMzEBHEARR E(\\EY?:ZOW% 5
paid up during the years ended 31 March 2017 and ?O16¢3)5] BMMHIEFEAD HREM
2016. N

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has RMEMTAER - ARFHEEH MY

other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. AKREMETBENZKBAF &

A majority of these subsidiaries are engaged in EMBARAKRNBOREREZBRRK

investment holding and corporate services, which EERE REERPEZE-

operate in Hong Kong and the PRC.
MEMBERARAENRFRBITEME

E

-
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt BE -
securities at the end of the year.
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 50. T EHiB AR HEATIARSE

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES EhXER(A)

(CONTINUED)

b) BEEREERERZAEEHIESR
(b)  Details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the BB AR Z G

Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Voting rights held by Profit (loss) allocated to

Principal non-controlling non-controlling Accumulated non-
Name of entity place of business interests interests controlling interests
FERERFELZ TEREFERESR
ERER TEEEMY =R Za A (&) it FERER
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FTHER FTHER FET
Jiangsu Yangtong The PRC 25% 25% (4,618) (71,889) 303,065 325,997
TLERF iR i
Yichang Port Group The PRC 49% 49% 12,815 8,859 272,923 276,381
(note i) H
HEBBE
(Bt i)
Yunchi Port Co The PRC 37.634% 37.634% 1,803 — 176,714 184,923
DN N G
Individually immaterial
subsidiaries with
non-controlling
interests 124 (601) 46,730 36,278
WA TR 2 [
Pl JEEE KT8 A )
10,124 (63,631) 799,432 823,579
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE2017F3A31BILEFE

50.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of each

of the Group's subsidiaries that has material non-
controlling interests is set out below.

50 T EMBAT -HBEATIARS

ERREN (R

Bl

(b) (&)

ERBEEEAFERERZAKHE
MEBARSA BB BERMT -

Jiangsu Yangtong Yichang Port Group

LEOF R EEBKE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHERT FET
(note i)
(HtaEii)
Results of the entities: FEERES
Revenue W A — — 286,969 140,403
(Loss) profit for the year ZERHA AR
attributable to owners of FE(EB)ERN
the entity (18,472) (287,555) 26,155 18,080
(Loss) profit for the year, LNTATEEFE
attributable to (B 18) & 7
— owners of the Company . N/NEIE RN (13,854) (215,666) 13,340 9,221
— non-controlling interests —EHEZEEY
holding the entity FE 5 AR (4,618) (71,889) 12,815 8,859
(18,472) (287,555) 26,155 18,080
Other comprehensive expense, A T A + {5 H b
attributable to 2HEAX
— owners of the Company — RKABHEE A (54,940) (48,657) (16,938) (12,389)
— non-controlling interests —BFEZER
holding the entity JEPERR HE = (18,314) (16,219) (16,273) (11,903)
(73,254) (64,876) (33,211) (24,292)
Total comprehensive expense, A~ AL EEE2HE
attributable to > 4858
— owners of the Company — ARRNBEE A (68,794) (264,323) (3,598) (3,168)
— non-controlling interests ~ —3F AR EE
holding the entity FEERR A (22,932) (88,108) (3.458) (3,044)
(91,726) (352,431) (7,056) (6,212)

Dividends paid to non-
controlling interests

EffIRERER

BLE
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

(b) (Continued)

50. T EK B AT
EhERER(

(b)

(%)

Jiangsu Yangtong

Bl
e
o

Ba o

==
=]

H)

Yichang Port Group

SIERER EERBKER
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHERT FET
(note ij)
(Kt atii)
Financial position: BRI
Non-current assets EmMBEE 1,045,376 1,107,396 1,090,734 1,145,859
Current assets mENEE 1,491,220 1,523,032 238,280 264,852
Current liabilities mEaE (544,203) (569,622) (351,884) (381,557)
Non-current liabilities ErRHEE (780,131) (756,818) (242,804) (279,584)
Non-controlling interests JEIE R RE S — — (177,339) (185,527)
1,212,262 1,303,988 556,987 564,043
Equity attributable to AT ATREIEREZR
— owners of the Company — RRNBIEA A 909,197 977,991 284,064 287,662
— non-controlling interests —BFERZEBZ
holding the entity ER i g 303,065 325,997 272,923 276,381
1,212,262 1,303,988 556,987 564,043
Cash flows: BEnE
Net cash (outflow) inflow from &4 5 2R E
operating activities Rt H) mAF 58 (21,780) (64,197) 61,986 (20,113)
Net cash outflow from KEEREZEESR
investing activities HF 88 (43,132) (15,943) (14,710) (39,015)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from & EEH 2R E K
financing activities ARt F58 61,337 (10,718) (53,381) 59,875
Effect of foreign exchange rate 4pi& [ & pig 4 7 22
changes (125) (4,853) (3,579) (8,470)
Net cash outflow RE& ML TR (3.700) (95,711) (9,684) (7,723)
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HZE2017F3A31BILEFE

50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 50. X EM B AR HEAIARE

Bl

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES & hEER (K
(CONTINUED)

(b) (#&)
(b)  (Continued)

Additional financial information in respect of Yunchi
Port Co is disclosed as follows, which 62.366% of its

BERENERRZBEINIMBERRE

BT B H62366% 2 50 E
ARBEREESEBER N EXH

interests has been consolidated and included in the BHMEEER
financial information of Yichang Port Group as
disclosed above:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Results of Yunchi Port Co: EMBNF A
Revenue A 41,979 —
Profit for the year attributable to ZEBHEEARGFERF
owners of the entity 4,791 —
Profit for the year, attributable to AT A+ 4G & 2 % A
— parent of the entity — BB ZIERA 2,988 —
— non-controlling interests —RHEZERZIFERER
holding the entity 1,803 —
4,791 —
Other comprehensive expense, KTATEEEMEERSE
attributable to
— parent of the entity —ZEBZEQA (16,590) (3,348)
— non-controlling interests —RHEZERZIFERER
holding the entity (10,012) (2,020)
(26,602) (5,368)
Total comprehensive expense LTATELMEABSZ B
attributable to
— parent of the entity B3 ASYN-] (13,602) (3,348)
— non-controlling interests —RHEBEZERZIFERER
holding the entity (8,209) (2,020)
(21,811) (5,368)

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests

B IR ERE R 2B E
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 50 T EfB AR HBEATIARE
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES EhEEH(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) (#&)
(b) (Continued)
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial position: BB
Non-current assets FMEBEE 487,029 519,028
Current assets B EE 51,067 47,756
Current liabilities VEIN=NE (68,535) (75,412)
Equity attributable to owners ZEBEAEAZEGESR
of the entity 469,561 491,372
Equity attributable to AT AT LR
— parent of the entity —RZERBZEAT 292,847 306,449
— non-controlling interests —RFEREBZIEERER
holding the entity 176,714 184,923
469,561 491,372
Cash flows: Bormse:
Net cash inflow (outflow) from g sE ) 7 IH e A ()
operating activities FEE 7,837 (21,790)
Net cash outflow from investing BB ES IR R F5E
activities (1,528) (14,454)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from financing Bt & &8 2 I & R L) A A
activities H R (2,280) 55,024
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 4 & [ 2 piy 8 g2 28 (1,451) (382)
Net cash inflow WEmAFEE 2,578 18,398
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HE2017F3A31BIEFE
50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 50 T EMEBAT BMEAARS
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES ErEER (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b)y (&)

(b) (Continued)

notes:

(i) Being the non-controlling interests directly holding 49%
interests in Yichang Port Group, which the disclosure
information includes its proportionate share of Yichang Port
Group's 62.366% interests in Yunchi Port Co and 80%
interests in an immaterial non-wholly-owned subsidiary as
consolidated by Yichang Port Group. Non-controlling
interests directly holding 37.634% interests in Yunchi Port
Co and 20% interests in an immaterial non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of Yichang Port Group have been disclosed under
the name of entity “Yunchi Port Co” and “Individually
immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests” of
the same table respectively. (ii)

(ii) The financial information of Yichang Port Group has
consolidated and included its 62.366% interests in Yunchi
Port Co and 80% interests in an immaterial non-wholly-
owned subsidiary. The relevant disclosure information about
the non-controlling interests holding the entity for Yichang
Port Group represents the financial information of Yichang
Port Group attributable to the non-controlling interests
directly holding 49% interests in Yichang Port Group.

B EEFEES B K E@MO%E
HZEERER ZEBENBEH
RUEPBEEESHLEECIELES
AR REMB R A1562.366% 2 1
AR R—HEERFEZENBE R A
H80% zHEm HERFEZMAERF
37.634% N EEAKEE -
EAFEEH B R RI20% S 2 IEE
BiEZR CoRUNEEBLRBIEH0E
AR RIHAEEBREZRZ EREE
KK B AR AR —5 R AE L 5T -

EEAKEEZUBEENCEAAR
B EHEREMS A F62.366% 2 1
HER—REEEREZEH B A RME
%X - BEEBKEBMAHEE
ZERBZIEERESZEBEEER
REEEHEES BB EEA0%ER
ZHERESEEEEELEE M
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HZE2017F3A318ILFE

50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

(0)

Particulars of the Company’s principal associates
indirectly held by the Company at 31 March 2017

and 2016 are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/

Issued and fully
paid up capital/

50. T EMIB AR BMEATARE

ERREN (R

© ARFEEHFSEZARAETEHE
2~ A A20174% K20164F3A318 2
BT

Percentage of
issued share capital/
registered capital
attributable to

Name of associate registration registered capital the Group Principal activities
FEBREEEHT
AR BRATRBE RE/EMREX
BERNAEE L B E A BOk TEXK
2017
%
Paul Y. Engineering Group British Virgin HK$122,055,900 48.23 48.23 Investment holding in
Limited Islands ordinary shares companies engaged in
REREEBEERAA RERLHSE 122,055,900 7T provision of comprehensive
TR engineering and property
— related services
REZEBRRRERHEE
IRRMEMEBRSEZ
NG
Jiangyin Sunan International The PRC RMB400,000,000 40 40 Port operation
Container Terminal Co., Ltd. registered capital BO2E
L2 # i EIRR R R AR A 2R (note below)
BRATR A R % 400,000,000 7T
afER
(Fxhst)
Nantong Port Group Limited The PRC RMB966,004,400 45 45 Port operation
MBENEEARAQA H registered capital BORE

note: Being the sino-foreign equity joint ventures.

(note below)

A R # 966,004,400 7T
M E A

(Fxhat)

Kt - ERFRPIEERLEDE -
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HZE2017F3A31BILEFE

50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

March 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/

50.

Particulars of the Company'’s joint ventures at 31

Fully paid

TERBE LT k&

ERREN (R

g o

el

KRalzhEPER2017F %2016
FIANHZFBUOT

(d)

Percentage of
registered capital
attributable to

Name of joint venture registration registered capital the Group Principal activities
AR AEBERL
BELERB 3t 2 EREEMES HMEFEILE FEXH
2017 2016
% %
GRS e 1 NG The PRC RMB53,000,000 50 50 Investment holding
H registered capital REER
(note below)
A R % 53,000,000 7T
(Fxhrat)
MM FEEREFREFRAF The PRC RMB 10,000,000 50 50 Property holding
Hh registered capital BEME

note: Being the wholly-foreign-owned-enterprises.

(note below)

A EE#10,000,0007T
&R
(Fxhat)

The above tables list the subsidiaries and associates of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To provide details
of other subsidiaries and associates would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in excessive length

of particulars.

Hiat WERARINEBERE -

ERFAIARESERATIBFEAREFE
EEIHARAEBRBLLEEFEZAN
RAMBABRBERR] - ARAIEER
B HIEMHBRARRBEE AR ZER
HLRELE -
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51. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 12 May 2017, a total of 915,470,000 new shares have
been placed by the placing agent to not less than six
independent placees at the price of HK$0.156 per share.
The net proceeds of approximately HK$139 million is
expected to be used for working capital of the Group.

The 915,470,000 placing shares represent (i) approximately
19.94% of the issued share capital of the Company
immediately before completion of the placing and (ii)
approximately 16.63% of the issue share capital of the
Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the
new shares.

51.

RBEEHPRZER

M2017F5R 128 » EEERELLEFR0.156
B ZEBRATLR6E B AL ALE
& #£915,470,000 & #7 A% 1 AT 15 5K T8 F 58
WIVEBTHEABREAEEZEESR

A
E e

915,470,000 R ELE IR D ABE RN EZ R E
T8 BK AT N A B B B T AR 7R £919.94% K (i)
RRABEEBERBITHROEREZEE
TR A 4916.63% ©
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For the year ended 31 March
BZE3A31HLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FH&T FET FHExT
RESULTS E 4
Revenue WA 6,497,590 998,652 523,557 488,052 553,977
Profit (loss) before taxation & % gy 7 (& 18) 418,756 318,299 331,849 (474,228) (22,701)
Taxation 18 (114,230) (182,360) (203,434) 112,695 (1,318)
Profit (loss) for the year FRERF(EE) 304,526 135,939 128,415 (361,533) (24,019)
Attributable to: FEAL -
Owners of the Company KARER A 262,343 85,586 86,028 (297,902) (34,143)
Non-controlling interests JEIE AT RE S 42,183 50,353 42,387 (63,631) 10,124
304,526 135,939 128,415 (361,533) (24,019)
At 31 March
M3A31H8
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT FHET FET TERT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets wEE 9,625,328 9,097,182 9,431,923 8,425,813 7,781,556
Total liabilities A= (4,252,979) (3,590,572) (3,879,350) (3,302,658) (2,972,950)
5,372,349 5,506,610 5,552,573 5,123,155 4,808,606
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to RRRHAEANZIE
owners of the Company {5 ¥ 2% 4,841,175 4,922,674 4,844,034 4,299,576 4,009,174
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR B = 531,174 583,936 708,539 823,579 799,432
5,372,349 5,506,610 5,552,573 5,123,155 4,808,606
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Particulars of Principal Properties

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REMHE
Group'’s
Location and area Existing use Lease term interest
rEE
NEREE BRAR HE B4l R &
Nantong International Trade Center with gross floor area Rented for Leasehold with 100%
of about 6,000 sg m hotel operation medium term
88 Chongchuan Road, Nantong City, 8 1 FHIEERS
Jiangsu Province, the PRC B JE
BT & A BB ™ 5| 588 5%
FEEBERE SR
FESETH A 496,000 F 75 K
Commercial shops with gross floor area of about 5,000 sgq m Rented for Leasehold with 51%
169 Yanjiang Road, Wujiagang District, commercial use medium term
Yichang City, Hubei Province, the PRC o A8 1 hHHERS
REDHILE B A TR MEER T AE1695% [EiiEeS
7] 473 2 22 1 48 495,000 F 75 K
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER FRERREWE
DEVELOPMENT
Estimated
Stage of  completion Group
Location and area Existing use completion date interest
fh&t rEH
NEREE REEAZR 7E B P& BR SER B H# Fir it #E 28
2 sq km land under development located at the west  Undetermined  Land leveling March 2018 75%
of the outer gate of Yangkou Town, use stage 20183 A
Rudong County, Nantong City, MARERE THTFEER

Jiangsu Province, the PRC
PEIAEEAT

QN ER 8% ¥ O $E 40 A 7 A

2 RERES T
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Lau Tom Ko Yuen =R

Sue Ka Lok BRR 4

Wong Lai Kin, Elsa =EER

Mok Yat Fan, Edmond 22—
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Chan Shu Kin (Chairman) B o ER (£ %)
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa EBE

Mok Yat Fan, Edmond 5

Shing On Wai X %2 3
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Chan Shu Kin (Chairman) Be ff B2 (£ E)

Lau Tom Ko Yuen

25 R
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REREREMEL A (FE)

Bt % B S

KeBEMERADF
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EEXBHARAORYDBRAA

ROOHBTEZERA

PIRERESBER LA
Ry EAE —REA
BREAE —EHEAN)

= 1t Ak
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Hamilton HM 11
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FTEEXEME

BA

BEEIE
5 B B 51 5%
RERFEFRLI3E
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